
Tuesday, March 25, 2025, 6:00 PM
Council Chambers
One DesCombes Drive
Broomfield, CO 80020

View Correspondence
View Presentations

1. Meeting Commencement

1A. Pledge of Allegiance

1B. Review and Approval of Agenda

2. Petitions and Communications

2A. Recognition of Broomfield High School State Champion Wrestler

2B. Proclamation Declaring April 26, 2025 World Tai Chi and Qigong Day in Broomfield

2C. Proclamation for Child Abuse Awareness

2D. Front Range Passenger Rail Joint Service Update

2E. Housing Ballot Initiative Update

3. Councilmember Reports

4. Public Comment

5. Reports

6. Consent Items

6A. Minutes for Approval

6B. Proposed Resolution for Social Services Expenditures Fourth Quarter 2024

— Resolution No. 2025-66-BSS Review of Human Services Expenditures and Electronic Benefit
Transfers for Fourth Quarter 2024

6C. Proposed Resolution for First Amendment to Agreement for Network
Standardization Solutions with High Point Networks, LLC

— Resolution No. 2025-56 approving the First Amendment to Agreement with High Point
Networks, LLC for Network Equipment, Maintenance and Support

6D. Proposed Resolution Approving a Memorandum of Understanding with Adams
County for Emergency Election Relocation Procedures

— Resolution No. 2025-16 approving an Memorandum of Understanding between Broomfield
and Adams County Clerk & Recorder for emergency election relocation procedures

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82


6E. Matters Related to Marijuana Operations and Cultivation/Manufacturing

— Resolution 2025-64 A Resolution Imposing a Temporary Moratorium until May 24, 2025 on
the submission, acceptance, processing, approval of applications or permits for Marijuana
Cultivation and Marijuana Product Manufacturing uses

— Ordinance 2266 An ordinance to amend the Broomfield Municipal Code, Title 17, to make
permanent the sunsetted prohibitions on marijuana cultivation and manufacturing facilities,
and to update the Zoning Code on retail marijuana operations

— Ordinance 2267 An ordinance amending the Broomfield Municipal Code to permit the sale of
non-marijuana consumable food and drink at marijuana establishments

7. Action Items

7A. Public Hearing Ordinance for Business Improvement District Formation for
Broomfield Town Square - Second Reading

— Ordinance 2263 declaring the organization of the Broomfield Town Square Business
Improvement District, establishing and appointing a Board of Directors, and approving the
2025 and 2026 Operating Plan and Budget

7B. Proposed Resolutions for Urban Renewal Area Plan and Related Tax Sharing
Agreements for Broomfield Town Square

— Resolution 2025-69 approving the Broomfield Town Square Urban Renewal Area Plan

— Resolution 2025-70 approving a Substantial Modification of the Broomfield Plaza Civic Center
Urban Renewal Area Plan

7C. BURA Proposed Resolution for Urban Renewal Area Plan and Related Tax Sharing
Agreements for Broomfield Town Square

(Broomfield Urban Renewal Authority - BURA)

— Resolution 2025-71-UR Approving Certain Tax Increment Revenue Agreements Related to
the Broomfield Town Square

7D. Public Hearing - 11961 Quay Street Use by Special Review and Rezoning First
Reading

— Resolution No. 2025-60 Approving Olson Addition, Lot 40 and Olson Subdivision, Lot 12 Use
by Special Review for Outdoor Storage

— Ordinance No. 2264 Rezoning of Olson Addition, Lot 40 and Olson Subdivision, Lot 12 (11961
Quay Street) from Commercial C-1(J) to General Industrial I-2

7E. Proposed Resolution for Open Space Naming

— Resolution No. 2025-49 approving the Name for the Open Space at 18100 County Road 7 to
“Water Runs Back Open Space"

7F. Proposed Resolution for Authorized Spending for On Demand Services under Master
Services Agreements

— Resolution 2025-59 for Authorized Spending under Master Services Agreements

8. Mayor and Councilmember Requests for Future Action

8A. Councilmember Marsh-Holschen's Request for Future Action Regarding Continued
Telephone Services for City Council Meetings



8B. Mayor Pro Tem Shaff's Request for Censure regarding Councilmember Marsh-
Holschen's conduct

9. Adjournment

The City and County of Broomfield operates without regard to race, color, national origin, ethnicity, citizenship,
immigration status, gender, age, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, gender expression, marital status, source
of income, military status, or disability in all programs and activities. 
Individuals with disabilities requiring accommodation or persons needing a language interpreter must submit such
a request to the City Clerk no later than noon on Thursday prior to the scheduled Council meeting to allow adequate
time to make arrangements.  Please call 303.438.6332 or TDD 303.465.5411 or write cityclerk@broomfield.org to
make your request.
During the meeting, individuals can click the “CC” button on Live Council meeting video feeds to view closed
captioning. Auxiliary hearing aid equipment can be requested on the night of the meeting with our AV team located
at the back of the Council Chambers.

Date Posted: March 19, 2025

mailto:cityclerk@broomfield.org


City and County of Broomfield

City Council Regular Meeting

B. Proclamation Declaring April 26, 2025 World Tai Chi and Qigong Day in Broomfield

Meeting

Tuesday, March 25, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Petitions and Communications Item: 2B.

Presented By

Kelli Cole, Executive Office Manager

Community Goals

Overview

View Correspondence 

View Presentation

Proclamation declaring April 26, 2025 as World Tai Chi and Qigong Day in Broomfield 

 

 

 

Attachments

Memo - World Tai Chi and Qigong Day 2025.pdf
World Tai Chi and Qigong Day Proclamation 2025.pdf

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6765828d5b76a80054c41353%2FMemo%20-%20World%20Tai%20Chi%20and%20Qigong%20Day%202025.pdf?alt=media&token=20e6c283-ad97-4dd9-a69a-7d6351ce1afd
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6765828d5b76a80054c41353%2FMemo%20-%20World%20Tai%20Chi%20and%20Qigong%20Day%202025.pdf?alt=media&token=20e6c283-ad97-4dd9-a69a-7d6351ce1afd
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6765828d5b76a80054c41353%2FMemo%20-%20World%20Tai%20Chi%20and%20Qigong%20Day%202025.pdf?alt=media&token=20e6c283-ad97-4dd9-a69a-7d6351ce1afd
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6765828d5b76a80054c41353%2FWorld%20Tai%20Chi%20and%20Qigong%20Day%20Proclamation%202025.pdf?alt=media&token=a3705f07-9af9-45c5-935b-50d634347252
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6765828d5b76a80054c41353%2FWorld%20Tai%20Chi%20and%20Qigong%20Day%20Proclamation%202025.pdf?alt=media&token=a3705f07-9af9-45c5-935b-50d634347252
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6765828d5b76a80054c41353%2FWorld%20Tai%20Chi%20and%20Qigong%20Day%20Proclamation%202025.pdf?alt=media&token=a3705f07-9af9-45c5-935b-50d634347252


Memo for World Tai Chi and Qigong Day Proclamation 2025 
Prepared By: Kelli Cole 

 

Summary 

View Correspondence 

View Presentation 

 

On Saturday, April 26, 2025, at 10 a.m. local time, millions of people across more than 80 countries will 

unite for World Tai Chi and Qigong Day, creating a powerful "healing wave" that will spread across the 

planet. Starting in New Zealand and rolling through six continents, this global event promotes health, 

wellness, and a deep sense of community.  

 

World Tai Chi and Qigong Day is a synchronized global movement that transcends borders and cultures. 

People of all ages and skill levels will gather in public spaces, from bustling cities to serene parks, to 

practice Tai Chi and Qigong. These ancient Chinese exercises are renowned for their health benefits and the 

event will showcase a stunning visual display of unity and peace. 

 

Rooted in Traditional Chinese Medicine and refined over thousands of years, Tai Chi and Qigong are now 

globally recognized for their powerful health benefits. They are increasingly being integrated into hospitals, 

businesses, schools, prisons, and other institutions as effective tools for improving mental and physical 

well-being. 

 

This year, Broomfield, Colorado, will join hundreds of cities worldwide in celebrating World Tai Chi and 

Qigong Day. Residents and participants from surrounding areas will gather at Anthem Park to contribute to 

this international wave of health and healing, offering a unique opportunity to be part of a global movement 

for wellness and peace. Whether you're an experienced practitioner or a curious newcomer, this event 

provides a chance to connect with others and experience the profound benefits of these ancient practices. 

 

The proclamation declaring April 26, 2025 as World Tai Chi and Qigong Day in Broomfield is included as an 

attachment. 

 

Financial Considerations 

N/A 

 

Prior Council or Other Entity Actions 

N/A 

 

Boards and Commissions Prior Actions and Recommendations 

N/A 

 

Proposed Actions / Recommendations 

N/A 

 

Alternatives 

N/A 

                 

1 

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82


 

 

 

 

 

Proclamation 
 

 

 

PROCLAMATION DECLARING APRIL 26, 2025 AS WORLD  

TAI CHI AND QIGONG DAY IN BROOMFIELD  

  

 

WHEREAS,     On Saturday, April 26, 2025, at 10 a.m. local time, millions of people across more than 80 

countries will unite for World Tai Chi and Qigong Day, creating a powerful "healing wave" that 

will spread across the planet. Starting in New Zealand and rolling through six continents, this 

global event promotes health, wellness, and a deep sense of community; and 

  

WHEREAS, World Tai Chi and Qigong Day is not just a series of demonstrations and participatory 

exercises—it is a synchronized global movement that transcends borders and cultures. People 

of all ages and skill levels will gather in public spaces, from bustling cities to serene parks, to 

practice Tai Chi and Qigong. These ancient Chinese exercises are renowned for their health 

benefits and the event will showcase a stunning visual display of unity and peace; and 

  

WHEREAS,  Rooted in Traditional Chinese Medicine and refined over thousands of years, Tai Chi and 

Qigong are now globally recognized for their powerful health benefits. They are increasingly 

being integrated into hospitals, businesses, schools, prisons, and other institutions as effective 

tools for improving mental and physical well-being; and 

  

WHEREAS,  This year, Broomfield, Colorado, will join hundreds of cities worldwide in celebrating World 

Tai Chi and Qigong Day. Residents and participants from surrounding areas will gather at 

Anthem Park to contribute to this international wave of health and healing; and  

  

WHEREAS,  World Tai Chi and Qigong Day offers a unique opportunity to be part of a global movement for 

wellness and peace. Whether you're an experienced practitioner or a curious newcomer, this 

event provides a chance to connect with others and experience the profound benefits of these 

ancient practices. 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Guyleen Castriotta, Mayor of the City and County of Broomfield, do hereby declare and 

proclaim April 26, 2025 as: 

  

 

WORLD TAI CHI AND QIGONG DAY IN BROOMFIELD 

  

 

In witness whereof, I hereunto set my hand and official seal on this the 25th day of March, 2025. 

  

 

 

 

  

      ____________________________________________ 

        Guyleen Castriotta 

        Mayor 

  
 

 



City and County of Broomfield

City Council Regular Meeting

C. Proclamation for Child Abuse Awareness

Meeting

Tuesday, March 25, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Petitions and Communications Item: 2C.

Presented By

Lisana Muñoz, Director of Human Services

Community Goals

☑ Thriving, Diverse, Safe and Welcoming Community

Overview

The Child, Adult, and Family Services (CAFS) Division of the Department of Human Services  receives all calls

related to potential maltreatment of children within the City and County of Broomfield. Court Appointed Special

Advocates (CASA) is a volunteer-based, nonprofit organization that trains and supervises community volunteers

to represent the best interests of our most vulnerable citizens - child victims of physical, sexual or emotional

abuse and neglect. Each year, CASA serves approximately 50 children who have experienced abuse and neglect

within Broomfield County. In addition to connecting families within services such as public health, self-

sufficiency, and workforce programs, we partner with a variety of community providers (such as Community

Reach, Mental Health Partners, A Precious Child, and Broomfield FISH) to offer services and supports to help

families become stronger, more resilient, and healthier. 

 

 

 

Attachments

Council Memo Child Abuse Proclamation Memo 2025-03-25 (1).pdf
Proclamation Child Abuse Awareness Month 3-25-25 (1).pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67364d89186c45005431ded6%2FCouncil%20Memo%20Child%20Abuse%20Proclamation%20Memo%202025-03-25%20(1).pdf?alt=media&token=55fdc119-9de8-4284-a2c4-c1827df2ecda
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67364d89186c45005431ded6%2FCouncil%20Memo%20Child%20Abuse%20Proclamation%20Memo%202025-03-25%20(1).pdf?alt=media&token=55fdc119-9de8-4284-a2c4-c1827df2ecda
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67364d89186c45005431ded6%2FCouncil%20Memo%20Child%20Abuse%20Proclamation%20Memo%202025-03-25%20(1).pdf?alt=media&token=55fdc119-9de8-4284-a2c4-c1827df2ecda
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67364d89186c45005431ded6%2FProclamation%20Child%20Abuse%20Awareness%20Month%203-25-25%20(1).pdf?alt=media&token=949dbc72-da0e-4240-a498-62812be99f08
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67364d89186c45005431ded6%2FProclamation%20Child%20Abuse%20Awareness%20Month%203-25-25%20(1).pdf?alt=media&token=949dbc72-da0e-4240-a498-62812be99f08
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67364d89186c45005431ded6%2FProclamation%20Child%20Abuse%20Awareness%20Month%203-25-25%20(1).pdf?alt=media&token=949dbc72-da0e-4240-a498-62812be99f08


Memo for Child Abuse Prevention and Awareness Month 
Prepared By: Tiffany Ramos 

 

Summary 

View Correspondence 

 

Representatives from Broomfield Early Childhood Council (BECC), Court Appointed Special Advocates 

(CASA), Ralston House, Community Reach Center, Clinica, and A Precious Child join with Broomfield Library, 

Police, Recreation Services, Public Health, and Human Services staff to accept the proclamation and discuss 

upcoming events. 

The Broomfield Early Childhood Council (BECC) seeks to create an integrated system of care and support 

for all children, their families, and their providers. The BECC supports activities, and accomplishments to 

help achieve its goals within the following three domains: Health and Wellness, Family Support and 

Engagement, and Early Care and Learning. 

Court Appointed Special Advocates (CASA) is a volunteer-based, nonprofit organization that trains and 

supervises community volunteers to represent the best interests of our most vulnerable citizens - child 

victims of physical, sexual or emotional abuse and neglect. Broomfield’s CASA program is managed by the 

17th Judicial District, which includes both Broomfield and Adams Counties. 

Each year, CASA serves approximately 50 children who have experienced abuse and neglect within 

Broomfield County. CASA of Adams and Broomfield Counties states that publicly and privately funded 

studies have demonstrated the positive impact a CASA Volunteer makes in the life of an abused or 

neglected child. 

Ralston House is a nonprofit organization that works directly with law enforcement, social services, and 

district attorneys to provide services for children and their families at no cost, who have witnessed or 

experienced physical or sexual abuse. Every year, more than 1,000 children receive help and start on a path 

toward healing. Early intervention makes a difference. Effective child abuse prevention programs, such as 

the prevention training that Ralston House provides, succeed because of partnerships among families, 

social service agencies, schools, religious and civic organizations, law enforcement agencies, and the 

business community. Ralston House's Northglenn facility provides service to Broomfield and Adams County. 

The Child, Adult, and Family Services (CAFS) Division of the Department of Human Services  receives all 

calls related to potential maltreatment of children and at-risk adults within the City and County of 

Broomfield. All calls of concern are received through the Statewide Child Abuse Hotline (1-844-CO-4-KIDS) 

and are personally handled by our staff 24 hours per day. Community members are a vital partner in this 

effort. We encourage you to call with concerns, questions, and referrals. In addition to connecting families 

within services such as public health, self-sufficiency, and workforce programs, we partner with a variety of 

community providers (such as Community Reach, Mental Health Partners, A Precious Child, and Broomfield 

FISH) to offer services and supports to help families become stronger, more resilient, and healthier. We 

believe healthy families create healthy children and healthy communities. 

The Broomfield Police Department works with the Department of Human Services collaboratively on Child 

protection issues. All criminal allegations are completed through a bifurcated investigation. All criminal 

charges are filed with the District Attorney’s office. BPD provides education in a variety of venues to the 

public in regard to child abuse prevention.Victim Services contacts and provides victim rights and resources 

to all families victimized by child abuse. 

                 

1 

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m


 

Clinica, previously mental health partner’s, has been supporting mental health for Broomfield children, 

teens, and families for the last 60 years. Mental Health therapists, care coordinator, health and wellness 

coach, peer support specialist, prescribers, and nurse provide services to about 475 clients a month, 

helping them reach their goals to improve their emotional, psychological, and overall well-being. Clinica 

provides an array of trainings to assist all community members in enhancing their wellness and in helping 

community members support each other with mental health challenges. 

 

Prior Council or Other Entity Actions 

4/11/24: Proclamation Declaring April 2024 as Child Abuse Prevention and Awareness Month 

 

Boards and Commissions Prior Actions and Recommendations 

N/A 

 

Proposed Actions / Recommendations 

For Council to declare and proclaim April 2025 as Child Abuse Prevention and Awareness Month 

 

Alternatives 

N/A 

2 

https://docs.google.com/presentation/d/1NnZ7Imh133QgrRNChUH8GYjOV40zRLA_g-AK-c4wTjA/edit#slide=id.g1be8a604bc_0_7


Proclamation
PROCLAMATION DECLARING APRIL 2025 AS CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION AND AWARENESS MONTH IN 

THE CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD, COLORADO 

WHEREAS, every one of the more than 1.2 million children in Colorado today deserve to be valued, healthy and thriving; 
and

WHEREAS, children are our future employees, leaders, neighbors and community partners, that will shape the future of 
Colorado; and 

WHEREAS, child development is the foundation for community development and economic prosperity; and 

WHEREAS, childhood trauma, including abuse and neglect, is a serious problem affecting every segment of our 
community, and finding solutions requires input and action from everyone; and 

WHEREAS, childhood trauma can have long-term psychological, emotional, and physical effects that have lasting 
consequences for victims of abuse; and 

WHEREAS, everyone benefits when we focus on addressing underlying causes that lead to health and social inequities; 
and

WHEREAS, we all have a role in ensuring that children have positive experiences and that families have the resources 
they need, when they need them; and

WHEREAS, when parents, caregivers, family, friends, neighbors, employers, and elected leaders work together to 
increase five critical protective factors in families’ lives, that is when we can prevent child abuse, strengthen 
families and build brighter childhoods; and 

WHEREAS, The City and County of Broomfield believes community action and collaboration are crucial elements of child 
abuse prevention. We act in partnership with Broomfield Early Childhood Council, Clinica, Community Reach 
Center, Ralston House, A Precious Child, Broomfield Public Health, Human Services, the Broomfield Library, 
Broomfield Recreation Services, Broomfield Police, CASA of Adams and Broomfield Counties, and all community 
stakeholders to prevent child maltreatment; and

WHEREAS, we acknowledge that we must work together as a community in partnership to build awareness about child 
abuse and contribute to promote the social and emotional well-being of children and families in a safe, stable, 
and nurturing environment; and 

WHEREAS, strengthening families remains the best defense for our children and families; and

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Guyleen Castriotta, Mayor of the City and County of Broomfield, do hereby declare and proclaim the month 

of April 2025, as: 

CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION AND AWARENESS MONTH IN BROOMFIELD

I invite and urge all citizens in the community to recognize this month by dedicating ourselves to the task of 
improving the quality of life for all children and families. 

In witness whereof, I hereunto set my hand and official seal on this the 25th day of March 2025.
 
 ____________________________________________

 Guyleen Castriotta
 Mayor
 



City and County of Broomfield

City Council Regular Meeting

A. Minutes for Approval

Meeting

Tuesday, March 25, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Items Item: 6A.

Presented By

Crystal Clemens, City Clerk

Community Goals

Overview

View Presentation

Approval of Minutes for the Regular City Council Meeting of March 11, 2025.

 

Attachments

Minutes 03-11-25.pdf

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F677850865294e00054427ddc%2FDraft%20Minutes%2003-11-25.pdf?alt=media&token=04c79ef2-12e5-402b-8fd4-2edc5c6a6879
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F677850865294e00054427ddc%2FDraft%20Minutes%2003-11-25.pdf?alt=media&token=04c79ef2-12e5-402b-8fd4-2edc5c6a6879
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F677850865294e00054427ddc%2FDraft%20Minutes%2003-11-25.pdf?alt=media&token=04c79ef2-12e5-402b-8fd4-2edc5c6a6879


Minutes for the City Council Regular Meeting

One DesCombes Drive, Broomfield, CO 80020

March 11, 2025, 6:01 PM - March 11, 2025, 9:05 PM

 

Roll Call: (The following members were in attendance)

Guyleen Castriotta, Mayor (remote)
Laurie Anderson, Ward 4
Todd Cohen, Ward 5
Paloma Delgadillo, Ward 2
Heidi Henkel, Ward 5
Bruce Leslie, Ward 4 (remote)
Jean Lim, Ward 3 (remote)
James Marsh-Holschen, Ward 1 (remote)
Kenny Van Nguyen, Ward 1
Deven Shaff, Mayor Pro Tem, Ward 3
Austin Ward, Ward 2 (remote)

Also Present:

Jennifer Hoffman, City and County Manager
Anna Bertenzetti, Deputy City and County Manager
Dan Casey, Deputy City and County Manager
Nancy Rodgers, City and County Attorney
Michelle Parker, Deputy City and County Clerk
And various staff members

The Mayor Pro Tem called a recess at 8:00 p.m. The meeting reconvened at 8:10 p.m.

1. Meeting Commencement

1A. Pledge of Allegiance- 6:01 PM

1B. Review and Approval of Agenda- 6:02 PM

2. Petitions and Communications

2A. Recognition of Holy Family High School State Champion Swimmer- 6:09 PM

2B. Proclamation Declaring March 2025 People with Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities
Awareness Month- 6:14 PM

3/12/25, 2:35 PM AgendaLink

https://horizon.agendalink.app/broomfield/print/draft/6661e99bff577a004433c064 1/3



2C. Police Department Updates- 6:29 PM

3. Councilmember Reports

4. Public Comment

5. Reports

5A. Colorado General Assembly Legislative Update March 11- 7:26 PM

Councilmember Lim moved to take an Amend position on SB25-161 Transit Reform, seconded by 

Councilmember Henkel. The motion passed 10-0.

6. Consent Items

6A. Minutes for Approval- 7:53 PM

6B. Proposed Resolution Approving HOME Investment Partnerships American Rescue Plan 

Program (HOME-ARP) Funding for The Grove at Cottonwood- 7:53 PM

Councilmember Henkel moved to approve Consent Items 6A - 6B, seconded by Councilmember 

Nguyen. The motion passed 10-0.

7. Action Items

7A. First Amendment to the 2025 Budget- 8:13 PM

This Item was heard concurrently with Item 7B.

Councilmember Anderson moved to approve Resolution No. 2025-44 Authorizing and Approving 

the First Amendment to the City and County of Broomfield Budget for the Year 2025. The motion 

was seconded by Councilmember Nguyen, and passed 10-0.

7B. First Amendment to the BURA 2025 Budget- 8:13 PM
(Broomfield Urban Renewal Authority - BURA)

This Item was heard concurrently with Item 7A.

The Vice Chair called the meeting of the Broomfield Urban Renewal Authority to Order. Authority 

Member Nguyen moved to approve Resolution No. 2024-52-UR Authorizing and Approving the 

First Amendment to the Broomfield Urban Renewal Authority Budget for the year 2025. The 

motion was seconded by Authority Member Henkel, and passed 10-0. Authority Members 

Goldstein and Law-Evans were absent.

7C. Police Building Design Amendment- 8:57 PM

3/12/25, 2:35 PM AgendaLink

https://horizon.agendalink.app/broomfield/print/draft/6661e99bff577a004433c064 2/3



Councilmember Henkel moved to approve Resolution No. 2025-55 Approving the First
Amendment to Consulting Agreement with Anderson Mason Dale Architects, P.C. for the
Broomfield Police Building Project. The motion was seconded by Councilmember Nguyen, and
passed 10-0.

7D. Reappointment of and Amending the Employment Agreement for the Presiding Municipal
Judge- 9:00 PM

Councilmember Anderson moved to approve Resolution No. 2025-37 for reappointment and
approving the 2025 amendment to the Employment Agreement for the Presiding Municipal
Judge. The motion was seconded by Councilmember Nguyen, and passed 10-0.

8. Mayor and Councilmember Requests for Future Action

9. Adjournment

 

APPROVED:

 

_____________________________________________
Mayor Castriotta

_____________________________________________
Office of the City and County Clerk

3/12/25, 2:35 PM AgendaLink

https://horizon.agendalink.app/broomfield/print/draft/6661e99bff577a004433c064 3/3



City and County of Broomfield

City Council Regular Meeting

B. Proposed Resolution for Social Services Expenditures Fourth Quarter 2024

Meeting

Tuesday, March 25, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Items Item: 6B.

Presented By

Lisana Muñoz, Director of Human Services

Community Goals

☑ Thriving, Diverse, Safe and Welcoming Community

Overview

View Correspondence 

View Presentation

 

Resolution No. 2025-66-BSS acknowledges review of human services expenditures and electronic benefit transfers
for October, November, and December 2024 for human services programs operated by Broomfield County on behalf
of the State of Colorado.  Throughout 2024, the Department of Human Services served 9,235 estimated
unduplicated households across all programs as compared to serving 9,793 households in 2023, a 5.70%
decrease.  The decrease is largely attributable to the 8.79% decrease in unduplicated Medicaid households served
during the year as not all Medicaid households continued to be eligible for the program once the public health
emergency ended.  Department staff saw increases in households served in Food Assistance, the Child Care
Assistance Program, the Low Income Energy Assistance Program, and Adult Protection. 

 

 

Attachments

Memo for Electronic Benefit Transfers for 4th Quarter 2024 (1).pdf
Resolution No. 2025-66-BSS (1).pdf
Attachment 1 TANF 12.31.24.pdf
Attachment 2 SNAP 12.31.24.pdf
Attachment 3 Medicaid 12.31.24.pdf
Attachment 4 CCCAP 12.31.24.pdf
Attachment 5 Core Services Expenditures SFY.pdf

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67364dc3186c45005431dfa4%2FMemo%20for%20Electronic%20Benefit%20Transfers%20for%204th%20Quarter%202024%20(1).pdf?alt=media&token=eb00a16d-9814-4ff7-a19d-4b81a70665a3
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67364dc3186c45005431dfa4%2FMemo%20for%20Electronic%20Benefit%20Transfers%20for%204th%20Quarter%202024%20(1).pdf?alt=media&token=eb00a16d-9814-4ff7-a19d-4b81a70665a3
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67364dc3186c45005431dfa4%2FMemo%20for%20Electronic%20Benefit%20Transfers%20for%204th%20Quarter%202024%20(1).pdf?alt=media&token=eb00a16d-9814-4ff7-a19d-4b81a70665a3
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67364dc3186c45005431dfa4%2FResolution%20No.%202025-66-BSS%20(1).pdf?alt=media&token=1dc0e40c-2fdf-45b1-9453-ca315305b3ec
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67364dc3186c45005431dfa4%2FResolution%20No.%202025-66-BSS%20(1).pdf?alt=media&token=1dc0e40c-2fdf-45b1-9453-ca315305b3ec
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67364dc3186c45005431dfa4%2FResolution%20No.%202025-66-BSS%20(1).pdf?alt=media&token=1dc0e40c-2fdf-45b1-9453-ca315305b3ec
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67364dc3186c45005431dfa4%2FAttachment%201%20TANF%2012.31.24.pdf?alt=media&token=7bb36675-2561-45d4-8a37-0e945dcdce2c
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67364dc3186c45005431dfa4%2FAttachment%201%20TANF%2012.31.24.pdf?alt=media&token=7bb36675-2561-45d4-8a37-0e945dcdce2c
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67364dc3186c45005431dfa4%2FAttachment%201%20TANF%2012.31.24.pdf?alt=media&token=7bb36675-2561-45d4-8a37-0e945dcdce2c
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67364dc3186c45005431dfa4%2FAttachment%202%20SNAP%2012.31.24.pdf?alt=media&token=8afeaf87-1b20-4085-a785-9048a66caaeb
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67364dc3186c45005431dfa4%2FAttachment%202%20SNAP%2012.31.24.pdf?alt=media&token=8afeaf87-1b20-4085-a785-9048a66caaeb
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67364dc3186c45005431dfa4%2FAttachment%202%20SNAP%2012.31.24.pdf?alt=media&token=8afeaf87-1b20-4085-a785-9048a66caaeb
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67364dc3186c45005431dfa4%2FAttachment%203%20Medicaid%2012.31.24.pdf?alt=media&token=47a4da51-95de-44e8-839d-e391a4581721
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67364dc3186c45005431dfa4%2FAttachment%203%20Medicaid%2012.31.24.pdf?alt=media&token=47a4da51-95de-44e8-839d-e391a4581721
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67364dc3186c45005431dfa4%2FAttachment%203%20Medicaid%2012.31.24.pdf?alt=media&token=47a4da51-95de-44e8-839d-e391a4581721
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67364dc3186c45005431dfa4%2FAttachment%204%20CCCAP%2012.31.24.pdf?alt=media&token=8c00742e-8b8e-4188-bdd0-c1f94b517db2
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67364dc3186c45005431dfa4%2FAttachment%204%20CCCAP%2012.31.24.pdf?alt=media&token=8c00742e-8b8e-4188-bdd0-c1f94b517db2
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67364dc3186c45005431dfa4%2FAttachment%204%20CCCAP%2012.31.24.pdf?alt=media&token=8c00742e-8b8e-4188-bdd0-c1f94b517db2
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67364dc3186c45005431dfa4%2FAttachment%205%20Core%20Services%20Expenditures%20SFY.pdf?alt=media&token=7af198ac-3028-4c34-aff6-243bdffcf53f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67364dc3186c45005431dfa4%2FAttachment%205%20Core%20Services%20Expenditures%20SFY.pdf?alt=media&token=7af198ac-3028-4c34-aff6-243bdffcf53f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67364dc3186c45005431dfa4%2FAttachment%205%20Core%20Services%20Expenditures%20SFY.pdf?alt=media&token=7af198ac-3028-4c34-aff6-243bdffcf53f


 

Summary 

View Correspondence 

 

Each quarter, Human Services staff report to the Board of Social Services financial and statistical activity to 

inform the Board of the Department of Human Services (DHS) programmatic trends.  This report provides 

information on Human Services programs along with the related revenue and expenditures for 2024 with 

comparisons of activity over three state fiscal years.  Graphics of programmatic and financial activity are 

shown in Attachments 1 to 5 of this memo.   

 

DHS administers the following programs on behalf of the State of Colorado: 

 

1. Colorado Works/Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF) 

2. Food Assistance - Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) 

3. Health First Colorado (Medicaid) 

4. Colorado Child Care Assistance Program (CCCAP) 

5. Adult Financial Programs 

6. Child Support Services 

7. Child Welfare 

8. Adult Protective Services 

 

In addition, DHS staff report benefit payments and unduplicated households served for Broomfield residents 

who participate in the Low Income Energy Assistance Program (LEAP).  Administrative functions during the 

LEAP season are now handled by Goodwill. 

 

Trends in Human Services Programs 
 

DHS provides assistance to Broomfield families to meet their daily needs with human services benefits 

including food and medical benefits, cash assistance through the CO Works/TANF program, child care 

assistance, unemployment and job search assistance, health and wellness resources, and rent and housing 

support.  Please note this report contains information on clients served and electronic benefit transfer 

expenditures for state fiscal year 2024/2025 (SFY 24/25) as well as activity throughout calendar year 2024. 

 

The financial landscape for many Colorado counties is proving to be challenging in SFY 24/25 as funds from 

the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) and other pandemic supports have come to an end while state and 

federal legislation require a continuation of many of the protections provided throughout the pandemic with 

no added funding to meet the demand.  The human services programs most affected by this legislation are 

CO Works/TANF, the Child Care Assistance Program, and Child Welfare.  

 

Colorado Works (a/k/a TANF) 

As one of human services' most flexible funding sources, CO Works/TANF funding is available to Human 

Services case managers to assist eligible low-income families to meet a variety of basic needs.  DHS staff 

closely monitor CO Works/TANF clients’ cases providing access to needed goods and services and assisting 

clients to become self-sufficient by finding sustainable employment.  The top dual-axis graph in Attachment 

1 provides a look at the number of distinct households served and the monthly expenditures including EBT 

client benefits and operating expenditures to run the CO Works/TANF program for calendar year 2024.  

Monthly households served fluctuated in a narrow band throughout 2024 averaging about 62 households 

served each month.  As shown in the bottom dual-axis graph in Attachment 1, DHS staff assisted 168 

unduplicated CO Works/TANF households throughout 2024 providing $483,749 in cash benefits and supportive 

                 

1 

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m


 

services.  This compares to DHS staff serving 175 unduplicated households in 2023 with $447,922 in cash and 

supportive services benefits. 

 

DHS received a slight increase in its CO Works/TANF allocation in SFY 24/25 to $782,194.  The Colorado 

Department of Human Services (CDHS) provided American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funding to counties for  

additional client support as required by House Bill 22-1259 (HB22-1259) through September 30, 2024. CDHS 

staff continue to work with Colorado counties to determine the order of financing operations for the 

continuation of additional supports to TANF/CO Works clients required by HB22-1259 for October 2024 to 

June 2025. Financing includes county TANF allocations, county TANF reserves, state TANF reserves, and 

Colorado general fund.  

Food Assistance (SNAP) 

Broomfield continues to see increases in the number of Food Assistance/SNAP households.  Food 

Assistance/SNAP unduplicated households served increased 7.61% from 2,905 unique households served 

throughout 2023 to 3,126  unique households served in 2024.  The top dual-axis graph shown in Attachment 

2 illustrates the distinct Food Assistance households served each month throughout calendar year 2024.  

SNAP benefits averaged $669,648 per month in 2024 although you will notice a spike in SNAP benefits to 

$1,089,121 in July 2024 when summer EBT payments for children were processed to the counties by CDHS. 

The bottom dual-axis graph shown in Attachment 2 illustrates cumulative SNAP benefits of $8,035,782 paid 

in 2024 along with the increase in unique households served during the year.     

 

Health First Colorado (Medicaid) 

As anticipated, DHS saw a decrease in qualifying Medicaid clients as the Public Health Emergency (PHE) 

Unwind period closed in April 2024 and Medicaid clients that were “locked-in” to coverage during the 

pandemic were redetermined for eligibility. The unique number of Medicaid households that continued to 

qualify for coverage decreased 8.79% in calendar year 2024 to 6,991 from 7,665 unique households in 2023.  

Attachment 3 demonstrates the high number of distinct households “locked-in” to coverage in SFY 22/23 

when Medicaid cases that should have closed were locked in an open status due to a federal mandate.  

Distinct Medicaid households served began to decrease in SFY 23/24 as clients were redetermined for 

eligibility and no longer qualified for the program.  This downward trend has continued into SFY 24/25. 

Food Assistance/SNAP and Medicaid eligibility functions are funded by the combined County Administration 

allocations through CDHS and HCPF.  DHS received $1,139,815 in combined County Administration funding for 

SFY 24/25.  As required by  Senate Bill 22-235 (SB22-235), a funding model for County Administration was 

developed by an outside consultant, North Highland.  The model, which determined that County 

Administration is underfunded by almost $30 million statewide, was shared with the Joint Budget 

Committee.  Both HCPF and CDHS have funding requests in the Governor’s budget of a combined $25.2 

million for SFY 25/26 for increased County Administration funding. North Highland will continue to modify 

the funding model in future years with input from state and county partners.  State departments plan to 

work with the JBC to educate them on human services eligibility programs and the need for increased 

funding to remain in federal compliance for programs administered by Colorado counties.   

 

CO Child Care Assistance Program (CCCAP) 

DHS’ Colorado Child Care Assistance Program (CCCAP) continued to see significant increases in unduplicated 

households and children served throughout 2024 as compared to 2023.  DHS staff assisted 137 unduplicated 

households in 2024 with 205 children receiving care as compared to assisting 103 unduplicated households in 

2023 with 170 children receiving care.  This increase represents a 33.01% increase in CCCAP households 

served and a 20.59% increase in children receiving care in 2024 as compared to 2023.     

2 

https://leg.colorado.gov/sites/default/files/2022a_1259_signed.pdf
https://leg.colorado.gov/sites/default/files/2022a_235_signed.pdf


 

Since 2021, federal ARPA stimulus funds allowed the CCCAP program to decrease parent copays, expand 

child care slots, and make investments to support the child care infrastructure.  New federal rules for the 

CCCAP program will impact DHS’ ability to continue to serve an increasing number of CCCAP children.  The 

CCCAP program will continue funding infant-toddler payments based on enrollment rather than attendance.  

This measure provides compensation to child care providers when holding a CCCAP spot open for a child that 

does not attend consistently.  Colorado will also maintain the lower parental fees for the CCCAP program 

initiated by the stimulus funds.  Colorado’s required increases to provider payments went into effect 

October 1, 2024; these increases have raised DHS’ provider costs significantly while funding remains limited.  

As a result, DHS has moved to a freeze on participation in the program for new participants in order to 

contain costs for SFY 24/25.   

The dual-axis graphs shown in Attachment 4 reflect the continuing increases to the monthly direct provider 

payments throughout 2024.  The top graph shows the distinct CCCAP households served monthly and the 

associated monthly provider payments throughout 2024.  The bottom graph reflects the monthly and 

cumulative direct provider payments for the first six months of SFY 24/25.  Of the $550,445 paid to 

providers from July to December 2024, $88,192 was federal ARPA stimulus funds which have now been 

exhausted.  Due to the new federal rules, Governor Jared Polis signed House Bill 24-1223 (HB24-1223) into 

law on June 4, 2024 which includes changes to the application, eligibility, provider reimbursement, and 

parent fees of the CCCAP program.  As the Colorado Department of Early Childhood (CDEC) phases in these 

changes through 2026, Colorado counties must continue to cover the increased provider costs and other 

costs identified in the federal rule and HB24-1223.  State and county partners continue to seek solutions to 

these unfunded but mandated costs.  Due to the rising increase in mandated cost and limited state 

allocation, Broomfield’s freeze for our CCCAP program will continue for an indefinite period of time.  

Child Welfare 

CDHS made adjustments to the child welfare block allocation model in SFY 22/23.  The adjustments 

effectively increased DHS’ child welfare block allocation $94,742 in SFY 23/24 and SFY 24/25.  In addition,  

DHS received a $201,444 increase for SFY 24/25 in its child welfare block allocation to $2,582,291.  The 

increase was related to appropriations attached to Senate Bill 24-008 (SB24-008), Concerning Increasing 

Support for Kinship Foster Care Homes and House Bill 24-1038 (HB24-1038), Concerning Addressing the 

High-Acuity Crisis for Children and Youth in Need of Residential Care.  The Department has seen increased 

costs of care in the 3rd and 4th quarters of 2024 related to HB24-1038.  In addition, the Department has 

seen increased core services costs since the implementation of House Bill 23-1027 (HB23-1027), Concerning 

Family Time Provided Pursuant to the Children’s Code.  To date, no additional funding has been appropriated 

to cover costs associated with this bill.  The graph in Attachment 5 shows the monthly increase in core 

services expenditures beginning in June 2024.  Much of the monthly increases are related to payments to 

core services providers assisting with family visitation required by HB23-1027. 

DHS also received funding of $104,826 for the Collaborative Management Program (CMP) in August 2024.  

CMP counties receive funding each year to deliver the program.  DHS has worked with outside partners to 

manage this program for the past year and now plans to bring the program back in house for more effective 

program service delivery to improve outcomes for children, youth, and families.  

 

Low Income Energy Assistance Program (LEAP) 

DHS continues to provide outreach to Broomfield residents to educate the community that funds remain 

available to assist low income households with home energy bills from October to April.  Throughout 

3 

https://leg.colorado.gov/sites/default/files/2024a_1223_signed.pdf
https://leg.colorado.gov/bills/sb24-008
https://leg.colorado.gov/bills/hb24-1038
https://leg.colorado.gov/sites/default/files/2023a_1027_signed.pdf
https://cdhs.colorado.gov/cmp


 

calendar year 2024, 471 unduplicated households have received LEAP benefits.  This represents an 8.78% 

increase over the 433 unduplicated households that received LEAP benefits in 2023.  

 
2024 In Summary 

Throughout 2024, DHS served 9,235 estimated unduplicated households as compared to serving 9,793 

households in 2023, a 5.70% decrease.  The decrease is largely attributable to the 8.79% decrease in 

Medicaid households served during the year as not all Medicaid households continued to be eligible for the 

program once the public health emergency ended.  DHS staff saw increases in households served in Food 

Assistance, the Child Care Assistance Program, the Low Income Energy Assistance Program,  and Adult 

Protection. 

 

Financial Considerations 

As shown in the sources and uses of funds summary below in Table A, DHS shows an increase in its uses of 

funds of 9.76% with a corresponding increase in its sources of funds of 12.12% in calendar year 2024 as 

compared to 2023.  DHS's total sources of funds totaled $19,628,140 in 2024 while uses of funds totaled 

$18,594,161.  DHS exceeded its 2024 Amended Budget in both sources and uses of funds; uses of funds were 

over budget by $1,109,487 while sources of funds were in excess of the amended budget by $1,350,125.  The 

primary drivers for these increases were increasing SNAP benefits and unprecedented increases in CCCAP 

provider payments described earlier in this report.    

 

Table A 

 

 

Prior Council or Other Entity Actions 

The Board of Social Services reviews human services expenditures each quarter. 

 

Boards and Commissions Prior Actions and Recommendations 

N/A 

 

4 



 

Proposed Actions / Recommendations 

If the Board desires to acknowledge the review of social services’ expenditures for the period January 1 to 

December 31, 2024, as presented, the appropriate motion is… 

 

That Resolution 2025-66-BSS be adopted. 

 

Alternatives 

As desired by the Board. 

5 



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-66-BSS 

 

A Resolution Acknowledging Review of Expenditures and Electronic Benefit Transfers for  

October, November, and December 2024 

 

Be it resolved by the Board of Social Services of the City and County of Broomfield, Colorado: 

Section 1. 

The Board of Social Services hereby acknowledges the review of expenditures from 

the social services fund from January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2024 summarized 

in Table A, incorporated into the attached memorandum. 

Section 2. 

This resolution is effective upon its approval by the Board of Social Services. 

 

 

 Approved on March 25, 2025 

 

BOARD OF SOCIAL SERVICES OF THE CITY AND 

COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD, COLORADO 

 

 

 

        

Chair 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

       

Office of the City and County Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

NCR 
        

City and County Attorney 

Page 1 

Revised 3/2024 



Attachment 1



Attachment  2



Attachment 3



January March May July September November January

0K

20K

40K

60K

80K

100K

M
O
N
TH
LY
 P
RO
V
ID
ER
 P
A
YM
EN
TS

0

20

40

60

80

D
IS
TI
N
CT
 H
O
U
SE
H
O
LD
S 
SE
RV
ED

82
70

84
80 79 87

87

74

91

77

90
90

CO Child Care Assistance Program (CCCAP)
Monthly Direct Provider Payments & Distinct Households Served

Calendar Year 2024

July August September October November December January

0K

100K

200K

300K

400K

500K

600K

CU
M
U
LA
TI
VE
 P
RO
VI
DE
R 
PA
YM
EN
TS

284,114

390,214

90,432

550,445

201,436

468,892

111,004 106,10090,432 82,678 78,678 81,553

CCCAP Direct Provider Payments
State Fiscal Year 2024/2025

 Monthly Actuals & Cumulative Expenditures

Cumulative Expenditures

Monthly Expenditures

Attachment 4



July August Septemb..October NovemberDecemberJanu..Febr..March April May June

0K

10K

20K

30K

40K

50K

60K

70K

80K

M
on
th
ly
 E
xp
en
di
tu
re
s

14
,9
75

27
,7
35

44
,6
36

20
,4
42

43
,3
21

52
,5
33

33
,6
95

53
,2
25

69
,3
45

10
,4
57

16
,1
67

41
,0
20

15
,8
10

31
,9
24

69
,6
33

16
,2
87

24
,3
61

68
,3
14

12
,0
13

29
,6
93

10
,9
00

30
,9
37

38
,8
61

60
,0
37

22
,1
16

28
,4
19

39
,4
03

54
,8
27

61
,0
95

78
,4
32

CORE SVCS NET MONTHLY EXPENDITURES AGAINST ALLOCATION
State Fiscal Year - 3 Year Comparison

State Fiscal  Year
2022/2023
2023/2024
2024/2025

Attachment 5



City and County of Broomfield

City Council Regular Meeting

C. Proposed Resolution for First Amendment to Agreement for Network Standardization Solutions with High
Point Networks, LLC

Meeting

Tuesday, March 25, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Items Item: 6C.

Presented By

Kateri Abeyta, Director of Information Technology

Community Goals

Overview

View Correspondence

View Presentation

The City and County of Broomfield has partnered with High Point Networks (HPN) for support, maintenance,
equipment, and technical services related to the City’s network infrastructure which includes wired and wireless
connectivity for staff, residents, and guests and network connectivity for partners from outside agencies like the
State of Colorado and the 17th Judicial District.  A First Amendment with HPN for equipment purchases,
maintenance, and support is proposed for 2025 and a portion of 2026 until the cooperative agreement through the
National Association of State Procurement Officials (NASPO) expires. 

 

 

Attachments

Memo for High Point Networks Agreements.pdf
High Point Networks Resolution 2025-56 .pdf
First Amendment to High Point Network Inc. Agreement - 3.25.2025.pdf

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67a1575159673d0054897437%2FProposed%20Resolution%20No_%202025-56%2C%20First%20Amendment%20to%20Agreement%20with%20High%20Point%20Networks.pdf?alt=media&token=a4a98571-8026-4b6c-813d-71b84cc2c123
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67a1575159673d0054897437%2FProposed%20Resolution%20No_%202025-56%2C%20First%20Amendment%20to%20Agreement%20with%20High%20Point%20Networks.pdf?alt=media&token=a4a98571-8026-4b6c-813d-71b84cc2c123
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67a1575159673d0054897437%2FProposed%20Resolution%20No_%202025-56%2C%20First%20Amendment%20to%20Agreement%20with%20High%20Point%20Networks.pdf?alt=media&token=a4a98571-8026-4b6c-813d-71b84cc2c123
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67a1575159673d0054897437%2FHigh%20Point%20Networks%20Resolution%202025-56%20%20.pdf?alt=media&token=f1513d37-eb5a-4be2-af65-bdd5df0801ba
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67a1575159673d0054897437%2FHigh%20Point%20Networks%20Resolution%202025-56%20%20.pdf?alt=media&token=f1513d37-eb5a-4be2-af65-bdd5df0801ba
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67a1575159673d0054897437%2FHigh%20Point%20Networks%20Resolution%202025-56%20%20.pdf?alt=media&token=f1513d37-eb5a-4be2-af65-bdd5df0801ba
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67a1575159673d0054897437%2FFirst%20Amendment%20to%20High%20Point%20Network%20Inc.%20Agreement%20-%203.25.2025.pdf?alt=media&token=a5b8752f-853a-40d8-9837-5ebb5b75ee58
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67a1575159673d0054897437%2FFirst%20Amendment%20to%20High%20Point%20Network%20Inc.%20Agreement%20-%203.25.2025.pdf?alt=media&token=a5b8752f-853a-40d8-9837-5ebb5b75ee58
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67a1575159673d0054897437%2FFirst%20Amendment%20to%20High%20Point%20Network%20Inc.%20Agreement%20-%203.25.2025.pdf?alt=media&token=a5b8752f-853a-40d8-9837-5ebb5b75ee58


Memo for Annual Aggregate Spending with High Point Networks
Prepared By: Kateri Abeyta, IT Director

Summary
View Correspondence
View Presentation

The City and County of Broomfield has partnered with High Point Networks (HPN) for support, maintenance, 
equipment, and technical services related to the City’s technology infrastructure which includes wired and 
wireless connectivity for staff, residents, and guests and network connectivity for partners from outside 
agencies like the State of Colorado and the 17th Judicial District.

Extreme Networks, the primary provider for data communications products and services has negotiated an 
agreement through the National Association of State Procurement Officials (NASPO), with standardized 
pricing which allows all of its authorized resellers to provide equipment, software and hardware licensing, 
and software assurance to extend this same pricing, of which HPN is an authorized reseller. Due to Extreme 
Network’s negotiated agreement, a competitive process would not yield any additional reduction of price, 
as such the City has elected to enter into agreement with HPN, an authorized partner and reseller of 
Extreme Networks, to provide such services as a procurement without competition as allowed under 
Broomfield Municipal Code 3-20-160(B).

As of January 1, 2025 CCOB IT has spent $81,255.12 with HPN to replace end-of-life (EOL) network 
equipment and to cover our annual network equipment licence, support, and maintenance costs. 
Additionally, as the Fiber Master Plan network buildout continues in 2025, core network architecture 
activities are planned to create links to facilitate the redundant network connectivity of the backbone rings 
and network equipment will be installed into lift and pump stations to bring those sites online. Additionally, 
there are 12 network switches currently in production that are EOL and require replacement. The 
equipment, licenses, maintenance, and support for these activities will total $857,837. 

B.M.C. § 3-20-040 of the Municipal Code requires City Council approval to authorize annual aggregate 
spending with a single vendor in excess of $200,000.

Proposed Resolution 2025-56 would approve the First Amendment with HPN for equipment purchases, 
maintenance, and support costs from HPN for 2025 in an amount not to exceed $857,837. Resolution 2025-56 
also authorizes continued aggregate spending with HPN for the above services for one-additional nine month 
period, which coincides with the expiration of the NASPO master agreement, subject to annual budget 
appropriations being approved by the City Council.

Financial Considerations

As shown in the sources and uses of funds summary below, the project can be completed within the 
budgeted amount.

Sources and Uses of Funds Amount

IT - Network Hardware/Telecom Replacement - Citywide (20-70031-
55600 0AZ0089)

$1,127,681

IT Ops-R & M Svcs-Electronics (01-18700-53630) $86,500

Network Equipment, End-of-Life Switch Replacements, Software, Support -$779,852

                

1

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82


Sources and Uses of Funds Amount

Services

Contingency (10%) -77,985

Projected Balance $356,344

Prior Council or Other Entity Actions

April 7, 2020 - Proposed Resolution No. 2020-102, Authorizing and Approving the Purchase of Equipment, 

Maintenance, and Support from High Point Networks and Authorizing Annual Aggregate Spending

Boards and Commissions Prior Actions and Recommendations

N/A

Proposed Actions / Recommendations

If Council desires to approve the First Amendment with High Point Networks to provide network hardware 
and installation and configuration professional services, the appropriate motion is...

That Resolution 2025-56 be adopted.

Alternatives

Direct staff to research other vendors.

2

https://drive.google.com/file/d/15lCWHGiflLzJjb_4ep6O1vP3463pgPuf/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/15lCWHGiflLzJjb_4ep6O1vP3463pgPuf/view


RESOLUTION NO. 2025-56 

A resolution approving the First Amendment to Agreement with High Point Networks, LLC for 

Network Equipment, Maintenance and Support 

Section 1.   

The First Amendment to Agreement by and between the City and County of Broomfield and 

High Point Networks, LLC in an amount not to exceed $857,837 for calendar year 2025 is 

approved. 

Section 2. 

The Mayor or the Mayor Pro Tem is authorized to sign, and the Office of the City and County 

Clerk to attest, the First Amendment in a form approved by the City and County Attorney. 

Section 3. 

The City and County Manager or designee thereof is authorized to renew the agreement for an 

additional nine-month period, subject to annual budget appropriation approved by the City 

Council. 

Section 4. 

This resolution is effective upon its approval by the City Council. 

 

 Approved on March 25, 2025 

 

The City and County of Broomfield, Colorado 

 

 

        

Mayor 

Attest: 

 

       

Office of the City and County Clerk 

Approved as to form: 

    

      KKH 

        

City and County Attorney 

Page 1 

Revised 3/2024 



 
FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT FOR NETWORK STANDARDIZATION SOLUTION SERVICES 

BETWEEN THE CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD AND HIGH POINT NETWORKS, LLC 

1. PARTIES. The parties to this First Amendment (this “Amendment”) are the City and County 

of Broomfield, a Colorado municipal corporation and county (the “City”), and High Point 

Networks, LLC, a North Dakota limited liability company (the “Contractor”) collectively, 

the “Parties”, or individually, a “Party.” 

2. RECITALS. The Recitals to this First Amendment are incorporated herein by this reference 

as though fully set forth in the body of this First Amendment. 

2.1. The Parties entered into a service Agreement for A Network Standardization 

Solution, dated January 3, 2025 (the “Agreement”). 

2.2. Extreme Networks, Inc. is a data communications company which has a Master 

Agreement through the National Association of State Procurement Officials 

(“NASPO”), which is a cooperative purchasing program facilitating public 

procurement, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit D (the “Master 

Agreement”).   

2.3. Page 41 of the Master Agreement contains a unique provision relating to Partner 

Services provided by Contractor’s Authorized Partners/Resellers; and, High Point 

Networks, LLC is an authorized Partner/Reseller of Extreme Networks, Inc. under 

the Master Agreement through NASPO.  

2.4. Through the Master Agreement the Contractor is able to provide support, 

maintenance, equipment and technical services relating to the City’s technology 

infrastructure.   

2.5. The Parties to this First Amendment desire to amend the Agreement to add 

renewal terms and clarify the terms of the services provided. 

3. THE AMENDMENT. In consideration of the mutual covenants and promises of the Parties 

contained herein, and other valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which 

are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

3.1. Services.  The Contractor represents and warrants that as an authorized Partner of 

Extreme Networks, Inc. under the Master Agreement, the Contractor agrees to 

honor and abide by the terms and pricing as set forth in the Master Agreement 

which is incorporated herein by this reference and attached hereto as Exhibit C. As 

such the Contractor shall provide services upon request by the City to replace 

end-of-life network equipment, renew annual network equipment licenses, 

support, and maintenance of network equipment, and purchase new network 

equipment to support core network architecture activities as part of the Fiber 

Master Plan. The Contractor will provide a quote for the services requested when 

the specifics of the services are identified and agreed upon which the City shall 

show agreement with by executing a purchase order for such services.    

Page 1  
Updated 4/16/2024 

 
 
 



 
3.1.1. In addition to the services provided in the Master Agreement above, the 

Contractor also shall activate warranty and support periods for procured 

Extreme Network devices based on the activation date (i.e. the date the 

City actually turns the equipment on for use) rather than the delivery 

date of the equipment to the City.   

3.2. Term. The Term of the Agreement is hereby amended to add an additional 9-month 

renewal term such that the Agreement may be renewed for 2026; provided, that 

the Master Agreement for NASPO services expires September 30, 2026, and as such 

this Agreement shall expire concurrent with the NASPO Master Agreement. The 

Contractor agrees to continue to provide all services required in accordance with 

the Agreement and any prior amendments thereto throughout any extended Term. 

This Agreement may be renewed for an additional 9 months upon the same terms 

and conditions by written amendment executed by both Parties. Such renewal shall 

be a prerogative of the City and not a right of the Contractor and is subject to 

annual budget and appropriation determinations by the City.    

3.3. Pricing for the goods and services shall be as established in Exhibit C. The 

not-to-exceed price for calendar year 2025 services under the Agreement shall be 

$857,837. The Parties will enter into amendment if the City desires to extend the 

services into 2026, which shall detail the pricing at that time. (Note: The Insurance 

Requirements are contained in Exhibit B of the Agreement, which was 

inadvertently mislabeled as Exhibit C in the original Agreement.)    

4. DIGITAL ACCESSIBILITY STANDARDS. In 2021, the State of Colorado adopted HB21-1110 

relating to the digital accessibility standards required to be implemented under the 

Colorado Anti-Discrimination Act which makes it unlawful to discriminate against 

individuals with a disability. The Contractor shall ensure that all digital deliverables and 

digital technology provided pursuant to the terms of this Agreement shall comply with at 

least the Web Content Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG) 2.1 Level AA, or such updated 

standard as the Colorado Governor’s Office of Information Technology may adopt from 

time-to-time.   

5. AGREEMENT IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT. Except as amended herein, all other terms, 

conditions, and provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and are 

hereby ratified and reaffirmed by the Parties in their entirety. 

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.]  

Page 2  
Updated 4/16/2024 

 
 
 



 
This First Amendment is executed by the Parties hereto in their respective names as of 

_______________________, 20___. 

 

 

THE CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD, 

a Colorado Municipal Corporation and County 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Jennifer Hoffman, City and County Manager 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

City and County Attorney’s Office 

 

 

 

 

Page 3  
Updated 4/16/2024 

 
 
 



 
       CONTRACTOR: 

 

High Point Networks, LLC, a North Dakota limited 

liability company 

  

   

By: _____________________________________ 

Name:  

Address: 2919 17th Ave, Suite 208, Longmont, CO 

80503 

 

 

Page 4  
Updated 4/16/2024 

 
 
 



 
EXHIBIT C 

 

Extreme Networks Master Agreement with NASPO 

Page 5  
Updated 4/16/2024 

 
 
 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1gbZ3BUWLtDvJ1PJmIARWCk_cVXhad3cu/view?usp=drive_link


City and County of Broomfield

City Council Regular Meeting

D. Proposed Resolution Approving a Memorandum of Understanding with Adams County for Emergency Election
Relocation Procedures

Meeting

Tuesday, March 25, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Items Item: 6D.

Presented By

Crystal Clemens, City Clerk

Community Goals

Overview

View Correspondence 

View Presentation

Resolution No. 2025-16 would approve a memorandum of understanding between Broomfield and Adams County
concerning emergency relocation procedures for election ballot processing. 

 

 

 

Attachments

Memo for Adams County MOU Emergency Relocation Procedures.pdf
Resolution No. 2025-16 Adams County MOU Emergency Relocation Procedures.pdf
MOU Adams County Emergency Election Procedures Signed

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67b5312c23108a0054f5627e%2FMemo%20for%20Adams%20County%20MOU%20Emergency%20Relocation%20Procedures.pdf?alt=media&token=15b00efa-abfb-491c-b040-97d8344e5e06
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67b5312c23108a0054f5627e%2FMemo%20for%20Adams%20County%20MOU%20Emergency%20Relocation%20Procedures.pdf?alt=media&token=15b00efa-abfb-491c-b040-97d8344e5e06
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67b5312c23108a0054f5627e%2FMemo%20for%20Adams%20County%20MOU%20Emergency%20Relocation%20Procedures.pdf?alt=media&token=15b00efa-abfb-491c-b040-97d8344e5e06
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67b5312c23108a0054f5627e%2FResolution%20No.%202025-16%20Adams%20County%20MOU%20Emergency%20Relocation%20Procedures.pdf?alt=media&token=cebfeb5e-cd61-4dbf-87cc-cc621b4a886c
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67b5312c23108a0054f5627e%2FResolution%20No.%202025-16%20Adams%20County%20MOU%20Emergency%20Relocation%20Procedures.pdf?alt=media&token=cebfeb5e-cd61-4dbf-87cc-cc621b4a886c
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67b5312c23108a0054f5627e%2FResolution%20No.%202025-16%20Adams%20County%20MOU%20Emergency%20Relocation%20Procedures.pdf?alt=media&token=cebfeb5e-cd61-4dbf-87cc-cc621b4a886c
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67b5312c23108a0054f5627e%2FMOU%20Broomfield.pdf?alt=media&token=e5b7f73c-2e48-4322-a001-a379235db6cb
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67b5312c23108a0054f5627e%2FMOU%20Broomfield.pdf?alt=media&token=e5b7f73c-2e48-4322-a001-a379235db6cb
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67b5312c23108a0054f5627e%2FMOU%20Broomfield.pdf?alt=media&token=e5b7f73c-2e48-4322-a001-a379235db6cb


Memo for Adams County MOU Emergency Relocation Procedures 
Prepared By: Crystal Clemens, City and County Clerk and Recorder 

Summary 

View Correspondence 

View Presentation 

 

During the 2019 legislative session, the Colorado General Assembly passed HB 19-1278: Modifications to 

Uniform Election Code, commonly known as the Omnibus Bill. The bill was signed by Governor Polis on May 

29, 2019. Colorado Department of State updated the ballot plan and requires counties to have an 

alternative facility to conduct ballot processing activities in the event of an emergency or other unforeseen 

circumstances.  

 

Historically, the City and County of Broomfield has worked with Adams County concerning emergency 

relocation procedures. This agreement goes back more than a decade. The memorandum of understanding 

(MOU) is for mutual assistance between the City and County of Broomfield and Adams County to use the 

other county’s election facilities and election systems in the event of an emergency or other unforeseen 

circumstances where it becomes impossible or impracticable to conduct election ballot processing 

operations in a party’s original location.  

 

In an Emergency Event, the City and County of Broomfield would use the Adams County Election Office at 

4430 S. Adams County Parkway in Brighton, Colorado, and Adams County would use the City and County of 

Broomfield facility at 1 DesCombes Drive in Broomfield.  

 

The MOU is applicable for the following elections: November 4, 2025, Coordinated Election, June 24, 2026, 

Primary Election, and November 3, 2026, General Election.  

 

The hosting county will prioritize completing their own election before providing their facility for the 

visiting county.  The MOU fulfills the Secretary of State requirements concerning emergency relocation 

procedures for election outlining the location as well as procedures, terms and notices. 

 

Resolution No. 2025-16 would approve a memorandum of understanding between Broomfield and Adams 

County concerning emergency relocation procedures for election ballot processing. Under the provisions of 

the Broomfield Charter and considering this MOU is an agreement with rights and responsibilities of the 

parties, approval of a memorandum of understanding between governments requires a two-thirds majority 

vote of the entire Council for the passage of the resolution. 

 

Financial Considerations 

N/A 

 

Prior Council or Other Entity Actions 

Prior Council Action  

Resolution No. 2023-28, Resolution No. 2021-162, and Resolution No. 2019-178 Authorizing and Approving A 

Memorandum of Understanding By and Between the City and County of Broomfield and Adams County Clerk 

and Recorder for Emergency Election Relocation Procedures. 

 

Boards and Commissions Prior Actions and Recommendations 

N/A 

                 

1 

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://drive.google.com/file/d/15nxOUvN04C1s359-Rn0xP4pLAyi2shKl/view?usp=drivesdk
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Cu6vZiWfsIJeZ0dvHgc_BFjD0Pghm3tD/view?usp=drivesdk
https://drive.google.com/a/broomfield.org/file/d/1ebI5dPbqWrlSMtf7RcKmJDQbDOZmqW7a/view?usp=drivesdk


 

Proposed Actions / Recommendations 

If Council desires to approve the MOU, the appropriate motion is... 

That Resolution 2025-16 be adopted. 

 

Alternatives 

Council may decline the memorandum of understanding and propose different options.  The approved 

emergency location is due to the Colorado Secretary of State’s Office no later than July 17, 2025.   

2 



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-16 

 

A resolution approving an Memorandum of Understanding between Broomfield and 

Adams County Clerk & Recorder for emergency election relocation procedures 

 

Be it resolved by the City Council of the City and County of Broomfield, Colorado: 

Section 1.   

The Memorandum of Understanding between the City and County of Broomfield and 

the Adams County Clerk and Recorder for Emergency Election Tabulation Relocation 

Procedures is hereby approved. 

Section 2. 

The Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem is authorized to sign and the Office of the City and 

County Clerk to attest the Memorandum of Understanding , in a form approved by the 

City and County Attorney.   

Section 3. 

This resolution is effective upon its approval by the City Council. 

 

 Approved on March 25, 2025. 

 

The City and County of Broomfield, Colorado 

 

 

        

Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

       

Office of the City and County Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

      NCR 
        

City and County Attorney 

Page 1 

Revised 3/2024 













City and County of Broomfield

City Council Regular Meeting

E. Matters Related to Marijuana Operations and Cultivation/Manufacturing

Meeting

Tuesday, March 25, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Items Item: 6E.

Presented By

Branden Roe, Principal Planner

Community Goals

☑ Thriving, Diverse, Safe and Welcoming Community

Overview

View Correspondence

View Presentation

Staff is bringing forward an ordinance that proposes to amend Title 17, Zoning of the Broomfield Municipal Code,
to make permanent a prohibition on marijuana cultivation and marijuana product manufacturing uses and to
update the Zoning Code about retail marijuana uses. Staff is also bringing forth a related resolution for a temporary
moratorium on marijuana cultivation and marijuana product manufacturing until the prohibition ordinance goes into
effect. 

Lastly, based on Council's direction, staff is bringing forth an ordinance that proposes to amend Title 5, Business
Taxes, Licenses and Regulations of the Broomfield Municipal Code, to add new regulations related to the sale of
prepackaged foods and beverages at retail marijuana establishments consistent with state law. 

 

 

 

Attachments

Memo for Moratorium and Ordinances No 2266 and 2267 Related to Marijuana.pdf
Resolution No. 2025-64 Temporary Moratorium Resolution for Marijuana Cultivation_Manufacturing.pdf
Ordinance No. 2266 Related to Marijuana.pdf
Ordinance No. 2267 to Permit Non-Marijuana Infused Food and Drink Sales 1st Reading.pdf

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67ae4540cffa5300542c69a5%2FMemo%20for%20Moratorium%20and%20Ordinances%20No%202266%20and%202267%20Related%20to%20Marijuana.pdf?alt=media&token=35354d0a-b52f-4d5d-be40-dfd5ef5447dd
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67ae4540cffa5300542c69a5%2FMemo%20for%20Moratorium%20and%20Ordinances%20No%202266%20and%202267%20Related%20to%20Marijuana.pdf?alt=media&token=35354d0a-b52f-4d5d-be40-dfd5ef5447dd
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67ae4540cffa5300542c69a5%2FMemo%20for%20Moratorium%20and%20Ordinances%20No%202266%20and%202267%20Related%20to%20Marijuana.pdf?alt=media&token=35354d0a-b52f-4d5d-be40-dfd5ef5447dd
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67ae4540cffa5300542c69a5%2FResolution%20No.%202025-64%20Temporary%20Moratorium%20Resolution%20for%20Marijuana%20Cultivation_Manufacturing.pdf?alt=media&token=989b10a0-2517-498f-bef1-0e30be832bde
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67ae4540cffa5300542c69a5%2FResolution%20No.%202025-64%20Temporary%20Moratorium%20Resolution%20for%20Marijuana%20Cultivation_Manufacturing.pdf?alt=media&token=989b10a0-2517-498f-bef1-0e30be832bde
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67ae4540cffa5300542c69a5%2FResolution%20No.%202025-64%20Temporary%20Moratorium%20Resolution%20for%20Marijuana%20Cultivation_Manufacturing.pdf?alt=media&token=989b10a0-2517-498f-bef1-0e30be832bde
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67ae4540cffa5300542c69a5%2FOrdinance%20No.%202266%20Related%20to%20Marijuana.pdf?alt=media&token=e275ec21-ee37-41fc-b698-022edb11df13
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67ae4540cffa5300542c69a5%2FOrdinance%20No.%202266%20Related%20to%20Marijuana.pdf?alt=media&token=e275ec21-ee37-41fc-b698-022edb11df13
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67ae4540cffa5300542c69a5%2FOrdinance%20No.%202266%20Related%20to%20Marijuana.pdf?alt=media&token=e275ec21-ee37-41fc-b698-022edb11df13
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67ae4540cffa5300542c69a5%2FOrdinance%20No.%202267%20to%20Permit%20Non-Marijuana%20Infused%20Food%20and%20Drink%20Sales%201st%20Reading.pdf?alt=media&token=f0b604dc-d587-474d-a694-5c4c8e2d3295
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67ae4540cffa5300542c69a5%2FOrdinance%20No.%202267%20to%20Permit%20Non-Marijuana%20Infused%20Food%20and%20Drink%20Sales%201st%20Reading.pdf?alt=media&token=f0b604dc-d587-474d-a694-5c4c8e2d3295
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67ae4540cffa5300542c69a5%2FOrdinance%20No.%202267%20to%20Permit%20Non-Marijuana%20Infused%20Food%20and%20Drink%20Sales%201st%20Reading.pdf?alt=media&token=f0b604dc-d587-474d-a694-5c4c8e2d3295


Memo for Matters Related to Marijuana Operations and Cultivation/Manufacturing (Ord. Nos. 2266 and 2267 First 

Reading) and Resolution No. 2025-64 
Prepared By:  Branden Roe, Planning Manager 
  Crystal Clemens, City and County Clerk 
  Joel Heiny, Assistant City and County Attorney 

 

Summary 

View Correspondence 

View Presentation 

 

Staff is bringing forward three proposals for City Council consideration related to marijuana in Broomfield. 

 

● Ordinance No. 2266 that proposes to amend Title 17, Zoning of the Broomfield Municipal Code, to 

make permanent the  prohibition of marijuana cultivation and marijuana product manufacturing uses 

(the existing prohibition is set to sunset on April 1, 2025) and update Chapter 17-02 to recognize that 

Retail Marijuana Businesses are an approved use, subject to licensing;  

● Resolution 2025-64 that proposes a temporary, sixty-day moratorium related to marijuana cultivation 

and marijuana product manufacturing to cover the time between April 1st and approval of Ord. No. 

2266; 

● Ordinance No. 2267 that proposes to amend Broomfield’s Marijuana Licensing Code to permit the sale 

of non-marijuana infused pre-packaged foods and beverages at retail marijuana establishments 

consistent with state law. 

 

Marijuana Cultivation and Manufacturing Prohibition, Temporary Moratorium; Zoning Code Update: 

Broomfield Municipal Code Section 17-02-100 currently includes a prohibition on marijuana cultivation and 

marijuana product manufacturing uses within the City and County of Broomfield which sunsets on April 1, 

2025. 

 

Ordinance No. 2266, if approved, would make permanent the existing code language prohibiting marijuana 

cultivation and marijuana product manufacturing in Broomfield. Ordinance No. 2266 does not include a 

sunset clause related to the prohibition of these uses. Therefore, if approved, the prohibition would remain 

in place unless Council were to take action in the future to pass an ordinance that would end the prohibition 

and establish operational regulations. 

 

Since Ordinance No. 2266 cannot be adopted prior to the scheduled sunset date on April 1, 2025, a short 

moratorium is needed. Resolution No. 2025-64 would approve a temporary moratorium for marijuana 

cultivation and marijuana product manufacturing uses until Ordinance No. 2266 can be adopted. 

 

Ordinance No. 2266 also proposes an update to the Zoning Code to make clear that retail marijuana stores 

are permitted in Broomfield subject to state licensing and local licensing regulations, including local 

location requirements. Ordinance No. 2266 also removes previously sunsetted code language related to 

retail marijuana, which has no force and effect but should be removed to eliminate confusion for readers.  

 

Sale Of Non-Marijuana Infused Food and Drink: In 2024, Senate Bill 24-076  (SB24-076) amended  state law 

and allowed for marijuana establishments to sell non-marijuana food and beverages so long as the revenue 

did not exceed 20% of the store’s annual gross sales. Prior to SB 24-076, state law prohibited the sale of food 

and drink in facilities, and Broomfield’s Marijuana Code mirrored that prohibition. 

 

Ordinance No. 2267 if approved would amend Title 5 of the Broomfield Municipal Code, the Broomfield 

Marijuana Code, to allow licensed retail marijuana establishments in Broomfield to sell non-marijuana 

infused prepackaged foods and beverages consistent with state law. 

                 

1 

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://leg.colorado.gov/sites/default/files/2024a_076_signed.pdf


 

 

Financial Considerations 

There are no financial impacts from Resolution 2025-64 related to temporary moratorium, or Ordinance No. 

2266 making permanent the prohibition on marijuana cultivation and marijuana product manufacturing and 

recognizing a retail marijuana business as an approved use.  

 

Ordinance No. 2267, if approved, would allow retail marijuana establishments to add the sale of 

non-marijuana prepackaged foods and beverages which could result in increased sales tax generated from 

the food and beverage sales.  

 

Prior Council or Other Entity Actions 

February 26, 2013 - Council adopted Ordinance No. 1966 prohibiting the operation of all marijuana 

establishments in Broomfield with a sunset provision on February 1, 2015. 

 

August 12, 2014 - Council adopted Ordinance No. 2002 extending the prohibition of marijuana 

establishments in Broomfield with a new sunset provision date of February 1, 2017 
 

September 13, 2016 – Council adopted Ordinance No. 2032 extending the prohibition of the operation of 

marijuana cultivation facilities, marijuana product manufacturing facilities, and retail marijuana stores until 

February 1, 2021. 

 

January 12, 2021 – Council adopted amended Ordinance No. 2146 extending the prohibition on retail 

marijuana stores through May 3, 2021, and extending the prohibition on marijuana cultivation facilities and 

marijuana product manufacturing facilities through April 1, 2025. 

 

March 16, 2021 - Council adopted Ordinance No. 2149, regulating marijuana within Broomfield, and restating 

its intent that marijuana cultivation facilities and marijuana product manufacturing facilities be prohibited. 

 

February 25, 2025 - Request for future action related to permitting retail marijuana shops in Broomfield to 

be allowed to sell non-marijuana food and drinks.  

 

Boards and Commissions Prior Actions and Recommendations 

N/A 

 

Proposed Actions / Recommendations 

If Council desires to proceed with the temporary moratorium to allow for the consideration of Ordinance 

2266 on marijuana cultivation and manufacturing facilities prohibition, the appropriate motion is… 

 

That Resolution 2025-64 be adopted. 

 

If Council desires to make permanent the prohibition on marijuana cultivation and manufacturing facilities 

and updating the Zoning Code related to retail marijuana stores, the appropriate motion is… 

 

That Ordinance No. 2266 be adopted on first reading and ordered published in full; and that a 

public hearing and second reading of the Ordinance be held on April 8, 2025, at 6 pm as allowed 

by City Council Procedures and Rules of Order.  
 

2 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1OezlMBOG-poMjZMKgbfMdxE1J07bft_u/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/13sPOsCHQtNfzSZy94dd2lFrgSdMoaZI6/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1DqYDBiIPO0_2e-TW5-9FlSPiveloDwf7/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1FaQUr3Uj27YmnLnXBEiNuPBp1eMiU2xE/view?usp=drivesdk
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1ZXElmyxHMrD_Jr4k3Od5dHQ9IjwWhk8b/view?usp=drivesdk


 

If Council desires to permit the sale of food and beverages in marijuana establishments, the appropriate 

motion is…  

 

That Ordinance No. 2267 be adopted on first reading and ordered published in full; and that a 

public hearing and second reading of the Ordinance be held on April 8, 2025, at 6 pm as allowed 

by City Council Procedures and Rules of Order.  

 

Alternatives 

Decide not to approve Resolution No. 2025-64 and Ordinance No. 2266, and do not make permanent the 

prohibition for marijuana cultivation and marijuana product manufacturing. This is not advised as 

Broomfield does not have regulations in place governing cultivation and manufacturing.  Should Council wish 

to explore cultivation and manufacturing, staff would need sufficient time to prepare such regulations for 

Council’s approval.  

 

Decide not to approve Ordinance No. 2267 and do not allow retail marijuana establishments to sell 

non-marijuana infused prepackaged food and beverage products. 

 

Marijuana Cultivation and Marijuana Product Manufacturing 

The Broomfield Municipal Code has existing regulations related to retail and medical marijuana stores. 

These were established in March 2021 by Ordinance 2149 and permit retail and medical marijuana stores, 

with specific licensing requirements and regulations, including location requirements.  

 

Prior to the adoption of the marijuana regulations in 2021, there were multiple prohibitions on retail and 

marijuana stores as well as marijuana cultivation and marijuana product manufacturing that had deadlines 

(or sunsets) on the prohibitions. Ordinance No. 1966 (2013) had a provision that would sunset the prohibition 

on all marijuana establishments on February 1, 2015. Ordinance No.  2002 (2014) extended this prohibition 

on marijuana establishments to February 1, 2017. Ordinance 2032 (2016) extended the prohibition until 

2021. The fourth extension occurred in January 2021 (Ordinance No. 2146) which established the current 

sunset date of April 1, 2025 for the prohibition on cultivation and manufacturing facilities.  

 

The prohibition on marijuana cultivation and marijuana product manufacturing in Section 17-02-100 has 

been in place for more than 12 years based upon Council’s continued determination that the prohibition is 

necessary for the preservation and furtherance of the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the City 

and County. In 2021, Council approved Ordinance 2149, establishing the current marijuana regulations for 

retail establishments.  In Section 1 of that ordinance, Council affirmed its intent that the operation of 

marijuana cultivation facilities and marijuana product manufacturing would be prohibited in Broomfield. 

However, Ordinance 2149 did not specifically repeal Section 17-02-100.  

 

As there has been no direction to end this prohibition and there is no ordinance in place to regulate 

cultivation and manufacturing, staff is bringing forth and recommending a formal ordinance related to the 

continued prohibition of marijuana cultivation and marijuana product manufacturing.   Ordinance No. 2266, 

if approved, would continue the prohibition on marijuana cultivation and product manufacturing in 

perpetuity until Council chose to take action to end that prohibition.  

 

Related to Ordinance No. 2266, proposed Resolution No. 2025-064 would approve a moratorium on 

cultivation and manufacturing. The moratorium would last for 60 days beginning on April 1, 2025, to provide 

a continued prohibition of the uses in between the sunsetting of the current code language and a new 

ordinance being processed. The moratorium would expire on May 24, 2025. 

 

3 



 

Zoning Code Update 

 

Ordinance No. 2266 also proposes an update to the Zoning Code to make clear that retail marijuana stores 

are permitted subject to state licensing and local licensing regulations, including local location 

requirements, under the Broomfield Marijuana Code, Chapter 5-42. The proposed ordinance also removes 

previously sunsetted code language related to retail marijuana. Similar to the historical approach taken for 

marijuana cultivation and marijuana product manufacturing, Chapter 17-02 of the Broomfield Municipal 

Code had language prohibiting retail marijuana establishments which prohibition automatically repealed 

under Ordinance 2146 on May 3, 2021, and has no legal force or effect.  Ordinance No. 2266 formally 

removes this sunsetted and repealed language from the Broomfield Municipal Code to eliminate confusion 

for readers.  

 

Non-Marijuana Infused Food and Beverage Sales) 

In 2024, the Colorado General Assembly approved, and Governor Polis signed Senate Bill 24-076  (SB24-076) 

into law. This senate bill known as the Streamline Marijuana Regulation Bill made a number of changes 

related to Colorado state regulations and licensing of marijuana establishments. One component of this bill 

grants retail marijuana businesses the  ability to now sell non-marijuana food and beverages with a limit on 

total sales not to exceed 20% of the store’s total annual gross sales. 

Ordinance No. 2267 proposes to amend Broomfield’s local marijuana licensing regulations to allow for retail 

marijuana establishments to be able to sell pre-packaged foods. Specifically, any non-marijuana food or 

beverages to be sold in the retail marijuana establishments would be required to be commercially prepared 

(by a person or entity other than the licensee), prepackaged, and require no preparation other than heating 

within its original container or package. Consistent with state law, the proposed ordinance limits the sale of 

food and beverages to no more than 20% of the store’s total annual gross sales. Ordinance No. 2267 also 

includes language prohibiting the consumption of food sold by the marijuana establishment within the 

“restricted access area,” which is the customer area on the sales floor.   

 

4 

https://leg.colorado.gov/sites/default/files/2024a_076_signed.pdf


RESOLUTION NO. 2025-64 

A resolution imposing a temporary moratorium until May 24, 2025 on all applications permits 

for, and operation of o Marijuana Cultivation and Marijuana Product Manufacturing uses  

Recitals. 

Whereas, Article XVIII of the Constitution of the State of Colorado, Section 16, 

Subsection 5(f), approved by voters on November 6, 2012 and effective December 10, 2012, 

provides that cities and counties may prohibit the operation of marijuana cultivation and 

testing facilities, marijuana product manufacturing facilities, and retail marijuana stores, 

collectively defined as “marijuana establishments” through the enactment of an ordinance; 

Whereas, the City Council previously found it necessary to the preservation and 

furtherance of the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of the City and County to 

prohibit the operation of marijuana establishments, including marijuana cultivation facilities 

and marijuana product manufacturing facilities, within the City and County of Broomfield and 

prohibited same by enactment of Ordinance No. 1966 on February 26, 2013, Ordinance No. 

2002 on September 9, 2014, Ordinance No. 2032 on September 13, 2016, and Ordinance No. 

2146 on January 12, 2021; 

Whereas, on March 16, 2021, Council adopted Ordinance No. 2149, regulating 

marijuana within Broomfield, and restating its intent that marijuana cultivation facilities and 

marijuana product manufacturing facilities be prohibited;  

Whereas, the Broomfield Municipal Code prohibition of marijuana cultivation facilities 

and marijuana product manufacturing facilities within the City and County of Broomfield 

sunsets on April 1, 2025; 

Whereas, the City Council hereby finds and declares that it is necessary to the 

continued preservation and furtherance of the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of 

the City and County to prohibit the operation of marijuana cultivation facilities and marijuana 

product manufacturing facilities within the City and County of Broomfield; 

Whereas, the Local Government Land Use Control Enabling Act, C.R.S. §§ 29-20-101 et 

seq., provides Broomfield with the broad authority to plan for and regulate the use of land to 

best protect and promote the health, safety, and general welfare of the present and future 

inhabitants of the City and County Broomfield and to guide future growth, development, and 

distribution of land uses within Broomfield.  

Whereas, contemporaneously with this Resolution, staff has prepared an ordinance to 

make permanent the prohibition on marijuana cultivation facilities and marijuana product 

manufacturing facilities within the City and County of Broomfield as currently stated in B.M.C 

17-02-100. This moratorium is needed to provide the time to have this ordinance be adopted 

by City Council, which will extend beyond April 1, 2025;  

Page 1 



Whereas, a 60 day temporary moratorium on marijuana cultivation facilities and 

marijuana product manufacturing facilities will continue the existing prohibition of the uses in 

between the sunsetting of the current code language and a new ordinance being approved.  

Now, therefore, be it resolved by the City Council of the City and County of Broomfield, 

Colorado: 

Section 1.   

The foregoing recitals are affirmed and incorporated herein.  

 

Section 2. 

A. A moratorium is hereby imposed as of April 1, 2025, prohibiting the submission, 

acceptance, processing, approval of applications or permits for marijuana 

cultivation facilities and marijuana product manufacturing facilities within the 

City and County of Broomfield. 

 

B. The moratorium imposed by this resolution shall expire on May 24, 2025, unless 

repealed, or upon the effective date of Ordinance No. 2266, which would make 

permanent the existing prohibition on marijuana manufacturing and 

cultivation, whichever is sooner. 

Section 3.  

Should any one or more sections or provisions of this resolution be judicially determined to be 

invalid or unenforceable, such determination shall not affect, impair or invalidate the 

remaining sections or provisions of this resolution, it being the intent of City Council that such 

invalid or unenforceable provisions are severable. 

Section 4. 

This resolution is effective as of its approval by the City Council. 

 

 Approved on March 25, 2025 

 

The City and County of Broomfield, Colorado 

 

 

 

        

Mayor 

 

Page 2 



Attest: 

 

 

 

       

Office of the City and County Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

 

        

City and County Attorney 

Page 3 



 

Bold type indicates new material to be added to the Broomfield Municipal Code 

Strikethrough type indicates deletions from the Broomfield Municipal Code 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2266  

An ordinance to amend the Broomfield Municipal Code, Title 17, to make permanent the 

prohibition on marijuana cultivation and manufacturing facilities and add retail marijuana 

stores as a permitted use    

   

Be it ordained by the City Council of the City and County of Broomfield, Colorado: 

Section 1.   

Chapter 17-02, General Provisions, of the Broomfield Municipal Code is amended to add the 

following section: 

 

17-02-095 - Retail marijuana businesses. 
 

(A) Retail marijuana stores licensed pursuant to the Colorado Marijuana Rules to 

operate a business described in C.R.S. § 44-10-601, as amended, require a license 

pursuant to chapter 5-42, Broomfield Municipal Code. 

Section 2.   

Section 17-02-100(a) establishing a sunsetted (April 1, 2025) prohibition on marijuana 

cultivation facilities and marijuana product manufacturing facilities in Broomfield is made 

permanent.  This section will remain in the Broomfield Municipal Code and states as follows: 

 

17-02-100 - Certain marijuana establishments prohibited. 
 

(A) Marijuana cultivation facilities; and marijuana product manufacturing facilities, as 

defined in Section 16(2) of Article XVIII of the State Constitution, are prohibited within 

the City and County of Broomfield. In addition to any other penalties that may exist 

under state, federal, and local laws, violation of this section shall be punishable by a 

fine not exceeding $1000.00, or by imprisonment not exceeding one year, or by both. 

such fine and imprisonment, as set forth in Chapter 1-12, B.M.C.  
 

(B) Retail marijuana stores, as defined in Section 16(2) of Article XVII of the State 

Constitution, are prohibited within the City and County of Broomfield.  In addition to 

any other penalties that may exist under state, federal, and local laws, violation of 

this section shall be punishable by a fine not exceeding $1000.00, or by imprisonment 

 

 

Page 1 

https://library.municode.com/co/broomfield/codes/municipal_code?nodeId=TIT5BUTALIRE_CH5-42MA
https://library.municode.com/co/broomfield/codes/municipal_code?nodeId=TIT1GEPR_CH1-12GEPE


 

not exceeding one year, or by both such fine and imprisonment, as set forth in Chapter 

1-12, B.M.C.  

Section 3. 

This ordinance is effective seven days after publication following final passage. 

 

Introduced and approved after first reading on March 25, 2025, and ordered published in full. 

 

Introduced a second time and approved on April 8, 2025, and ordered published. 

 

 

      The City And County Of Broomfield, Colorado 

 

 

    
_______________________________ 

      Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

___________________________ 

Office of the City and County Clerk 

      Approved As To Form: 

            

            

           NCR 
      ________________________________ 

      City and County Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 2 

https://library.municode.com/co/broomfield/codes/municipal_code?nodeId=TIT1GEPR_CH1-12GEPE
https://library.municode.com/co/broomfield/codes/municipal_code?nodeId=TIT1GEPR_CH1-12GEPE


 

Bold type indicates new material to be added to the Broomfield Municipal Code 

Strikethrough type indicates deletions from the Broomfield Municipal Code 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2267 

 

An ordinance amending the Broomfield Municipal Code to permit the sale of non-marijuana 

infused consumable food and drink at marijuana establishments. 

Be it ordained by the City Council of the City and County of Broomfield, Colorado: 

Section 1.   

Section 5-42-040 of the Broomfield Municipal Code is amended as follows: 

 

5-42-040 - License required. 

(A) All persons who are engaged in or who are attempting to engage in the distribution, 

testing and/or sale of marijuana in any form shall do so only in strict compliance with 

the terms, conditions, limitations, and restrictions in Section 14 and Section 16 of 

Article XVIII of the Colorado Constitution, state statute, the Colorado Marijuana Rules, 

this code, and all other state and local laws and regulations. 

(B) Within the city, it is unlawful for any person to sell or to possess for sale any marijuana 

product unless licensed to do so, unless the license required is in full force and effect, 

and all applicable fees and taxes have been paid in full and the license applies to the 

person and location where the sale or possession occurs. 

(C) No license may be issued to authorize marijuana product sales anywhere other than at 

a fixed location that is designated in the license application and approved license. 

(D) Any person selling marijuana without a license is a per se nuisance. 

(E) All marijuana business locations must be licensed separately. 

(F) A marijuana business may only sell retail marijuana, retail marijuana products, 

marijuana accessories, nonconsumable products such as apparel, and 

marijuana-related products such as childproof packaging containers, hemp 

products, and food, including food that is not infused with marijuana or hemp 

product or extracts, but a marijuana business shall not sell or give away cigarettes 

or alcohol. All food sold must be commercially prepared by a person or entity other 

than the licensee, prepackaged, and require no preparation other than heating 

within its original container or package. The marijuana business shall not sell food 

in excess of twenty percent of the store's annual gross revenues. 

 

Section 2. 

Section 5-42-250(M) of the Broomfield Municipal Code is amended as follows: 

Page 1 

Revised 3/2024 



 

 

5-42-250 - Operational requirements. 

… 

(M) Reporting of source, quantity, and sales. The records to be maintained by each 

marijuana establishment shall include the source and quantity of any marijuana 

distributed, produced, or possessed within or from the premises. Such reports shall 

include the following information, at a minimum, for both acquisitions from 

wholesalers and sales transactions: 

(1) Date, weight, type of marijuana, and dollar amount or other consideration of 

transaction; 

(2) For wholesale transactions, the sales and use tax license number of the seller 

from the State of Colorado and city, if any; and 

(3) The amount of marijuana within the marijuana establishment. Each year, with 

the licensee's application for license renewal, the licensee shall submit a report 

to the authority with this information for the prior operational year. The 

secretary of the authority may designate the form of the report.; and 

(4) For food not infused with marijuana or hemp, the annual gross revenue 

from sales of such food and the annual gross revenue of the marijuana 

establishment as a whole. 

 

Section 3. 

Section 5-42-260 of the Broomfield Municipal Code is amended as follows:  

 

5-42-260 - Unlawful acts. 

 

(A) Any person who pleads guilty or no contest to or who, after trial, is found guilty of 

violating any of the following shall be subject to penalties pursuant to the general 

penalties set forth in section 1-12, B.M.C. It is unlawful for any person to: 

… 

 

(34) Distribute any consumable product, other than bottled water, that is not a 

marijuana-infused product not in strict compliance with state statute, the 

Colorado Marijuana Rules, this code, and all other state and local laws and 

regulations. 

… 

(37) Consume any food sold by the marijuana establishment, other than 

water, in any restricted access area.  

 

Section 4. 

This ordinance is effective seven days after publication following final passage. 

Page 2 

Revised 3/2024 



 

 

Introduced and approved after first reading on March 25, 2025, and ordered published in full. 

 

Introduced a second time and approved on April 8, 2024, and ordered published. 

 

The City and County of Broomfield, Colorado 

 

 

 

        

Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

       

Office of the City and County Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

NCR 
 

        

City and County Attorney 

 

 

Page 3 

Revised 3/2024 



City and County of Broomfield

City Council Regular Meeting

A. Public Hearing Ordinance for Business Improvement District Formation for Broomfield Town Square - Second
Reading

Meeting

Tuesday, March 25, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Action Items Item: 7A.

Presented By

Jeff Romine, Economist - CMO

Community Goals

Overview

View Correspondence 

View Presentation

 

The action would establish a Business Improvement District (BID) related to the Broomfield Town Square (BTS)

project.  Additionally, it establishes the Board of Directors, the District boundary, and the 2025 and 2026 District Budget

The BID is the third component of financing for the BTS project, as outlined in the 2019 Redevelopment and

Reimbursement Agreement (Redevelopment Agreement).

 

 

 

Attachments

Broomfield Town Square BID Formation 2nd Reading (2).pdf
Ordinance No. 2263 Broomfield Town Square BID Formation 3-25-2025.pdf
BTS -- Petition to form BID FINAL SIGNED 2-20-2025.pdf
BTS -- Petition to form BID DRAFT 2-14-2025.pdf

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F677d75c0abff690054447341%2FBroomfield%20Town%20Square%20BID%20Formation%202nd%20Reading%20(2).pdf?alt=media&token=175256bf-c75a-454f-bcf8-694c6054d164
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F677d75c0abff690054447341%2FBroomfield%20Town%20Square%20BID%20Formation%202nd%20Reading%20(2).pdf?alt=media&token=175256bf-c75a-454f-bcf8-694c6054d164
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F677d75c0abff690054447341%2FBroomfield%20Town%20Square%20BID%20Formation%202nd%20Reading%20(2).pdf?alt=media&token=175256bf-c75a-454f-bcf8-694c6054d164
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F677d75c0abff690054447341%2FOrdinance%20No.%202263%20Broomfield%20Town%20Square%20BID%20Formation%203-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=d8340bec-9227-49ad-be49-427c2c50858b
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F677d75c0abff690054447341%2FOrdinance%20No.%202263%20Broomfield%20Town%20Square%20BID%20Formation%203-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=d8340bec-9227-49ad-be49-427c2c50858b
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F677d75c0abff690054447341%2FOrdinance%20No.%202263%20Broomfield%20Town%20Square%20BID%20Formation%203-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=d8340bec-9227-49ad-be49-427c2c50858b
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F677d75c0abff690054447341%2FBTS%20--%20Petition%20to%20form%20BID%20FINAL%20SIGNED%202-20-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=ce102c93-dd70-495f-8022-1144e17a70dd
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F677d75c0abff690054447341%2FBTS%20--%20Petition%20to%20form%20BID%20FINAL%20SIGNED%202-20-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=ce102c93-dd70-495f-8022-1144e17a70dd
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F677d75c0abff690054447341%2FBTS%20--%20Petition%20to%20form%20BID%20FINAL%20SIGNED%202-20-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=ce102c93-dd70-495f-8022-1144e17a70dd
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F677d75c0abff690054447341%2FBTS%20--%20Petition%20to%20form%20BID%20DRAFT%202-14-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=3e632de2-07cd-47ca-a51a-ee5c976078e2
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F677d75c0abff690054447341%2FBTS%20--%20Petition%20to%20form%20BID%20DRAFT%202-14-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=3e632de2-07cd-47ca-a51a-ee5c976078e2
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F677d75c0abff690054447341%2FBTS%20--%20Petition%20to%20form%20BID%20DRAFT%202-14-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=3e632de2-07cd-47ca-a51a-ee5c976078e2


Memo - Broomfield Town Square BID Formation 2nd Reading 
Prepared By: Jeff Romine, Economist; Karl Frundt, Senior Attorney 

Summary 

 

View Correspondence 

View Presentation 

 

Proposed Ordinance 2263, if approved, would establish a Business Improvement District (BID) related to the 

Broomfield Town Square (BTS) project.    

 

The BID is the third component of financing for the BTS project, as outlined in the 2019 Redevelopment and 

Reimbursement Agreement (Redevelopment Agreement). Other components of public or district financing to 

support the development include the establishment of the Metropolitan District (formed in 2020) and the 

amendment and formation of an Urban Renewal Area (which will be considered by the City Council and the 

Broomfield Urban Renewal Authority on March 25, 2025).  Note: The Redevelopment Agreement, approved 

on November 12, 2019, established the financial commitments of the City and County of Broomfield, such as 

committed shares of annual tax revenue resulting from the development, net and gross maximum 

reimbursement limits, other contributions, and commitments to support the proposed BTS development.     

 

Business Improvement District 

 

Background and Requirement for Formation: 

A BID is a legal governmental entity that can be created by a municipality pursuant to Colorado’s “Business 

Improvement District Act”, CRS 31-25-1201 et seq. to promote the vitality of commercial business areas 

within a municipality.  A BID has the power to own property, impose a tax levy, and provide the following 

services within its boundaries: consult on planning or managing development activities; maintenance of 

improvements; promotion or marketing of district activity or public events; activities in support of business 

recruitment, management, and development; security for businesses and public areas; and snow removal or 

refuse collection.  

 

A BID can be formed by the City Council upon approval of an ordinance. In order for the City Council to 

consider an ordinance forming the BID, first a petition seeking the formation of BID must be submitted to 

the City that is signed by persons who own real or personal property within the proposed district having a 

valuation for assessment of not less than fifty percent (50%) of the valuation of all real and personal 

property in the service area of the proposed district. Accompanying the petition shall be an operating plan 

and proposed budget for the district. Each year the BID must submit to the City its operating plan and 

proposed budget no later than September 30th. 

 

Once established, a BID is governed by a board of directors of no less than five (5) individuals appointed by 

the City Council and who serve at the pleasure of the Council.  Board members must be eligible electors who 

live within the district’s boundaries or own taxable real or personal property within the district.  

 

Transfer of Property and Qualification as Petitioners: 

On or about February 13, 2025, the City transferred by Special Warranty Deed to Bryon White, Tim 

Fredregill, Patricia McHenry, Rod Wagner, and Joseph Vostrejs (the Grantees), each as to a 1/5th interest, as 

tenants in common Lot 2, Broomfield Town Square, Filing No. 1 in the City and County of Broomfield. This 

transfer was authorized by Ordinance No. 2108 approved by the City Council on November 12, 2019. 

Pursuant to the Special Warranty Deed, the property is subject to be reclaimed by the City if the Grantees 

or their successors or assigns have not on or before December 31, 2026, either (i) commenced construction 

of horizontal infrastructure of the Broomfield Town Square development north of 1st Avenue; or (ii) issued 

                 

1 

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1WN754Yqg91xIRknNkOYWHEKGvhT_0mE5/view?usp=sharing


 

bonds or otherwise obtained sufficient financing to allow for the commencement of construction of all 

horizontal infrastructure required for the Broomfield Town Square development within 60 days of obtaining 

all necessary permits from the City and County of Broomfield. Acceptance of the deed qualified the 

Grantees to petition the City for the formation of the Broomfield Town Square BID. 

 

Subsequent to acceptance of the Lot 2, the Grantees submitted to the City a proposed Petition to Organize a 

BID together with a 2025 and 2026 Operating Plan and Budget for the Broomfield Town Square Business 

Improvement District. The proposed boundary of the BID at its formation is limited to Lot 2.  The developer 

is expected to request that the City Council expand the boundary upon further transfer of property by the 

City to include the entire Broomfield Town Square development.  

 

Operating Plan and Budget: 

The proposed 2025 and 2026 Operating Plan and Budget identify: (1) the composition of the Board of 

Directors; (2) the temporary boundary and service area of the BID; (3) the services and improvements to be 

provided by the BID together with the proposed 2025 and 2026 budget; and (4) the estimated taxes, fees, 

and assessments to be imposed by the BID. 

 

As submitted, the Petition and the proposed plan names Bryon White, Tim Fredregill, Patricia McHenry, Rod 

Wagner, and Joseph Vostrejs (the Grantees) to the Board of Directors.  The Grantees are the only qualified 

electors able to serve at the time of formation.  

 

The proposed plan and budget anticipate the BID will construct, install or cause to be constructed or 

installed, certain public improvements including, without limitation, water services, safety protection 

devices and services, sanitation services, marketing, streetscape improvements, street improvements, 

gutters, culverts, drainage facilities, sidewalks, parking facilities, paving, lighting, grading, landscaping, 

storm and wastewater management facilities, and associated land acquisition and remediation. The costs of 

the public improvements include the costs of design, acquisition, construction, and financing. A preliminary 

estimate of the costs is approximately $68M.  The proposed 2025 and 2026 budgets for the BID total $50,000 

annually. 

 

The BID is anticipated to hold an election on May 6, 2025 for the purposes of authorizing debt, taxes, 

revenue limits, spending limits, and special assessments. The initial maximum debt authorization for the BID 

shall be $104M.  This debt limit is an aggregate limit with the Metropolitan Districts so that, collectively, the 

BID and the Metropolitan Districts may not issue bonds in excess of $104M. Similarly, the BID’s taxing ability 

shall be constrained to debt service mill levy limitations of 50 mills in the aggregate when combined with 

the debt service mill levies of the Metropolitan Districts. An additional 15 mills is permitted for operations 

and administrative expenses. The maximum voted interest rate permitted for any debt issued by the BID 

shall be eight percent (8%) which may be increased to ten percent 10% with administrative approval of the 

City and County Manager and the City and County Attorney. The maximum underwriting discount shall be 

three percent (3%). 

 

The BID may consider issuing debt beginning in 2026 if the issuance of debt is approved by the electors of 

the BID at the May 6, 2025 election.  

 

Proposed Ordinance No. 2263:   

Proposed Ordinance No. 2263, if approved, finds that the Petition submitted by the Grantees meets the 

statutory criteria for the creation of a Business Improvement District and establishes the Broomfield Town 

Square Business Improvement District.  It also (1) establishes the Board of Directors; (2) establishes the 

temporary boundary; and (3) approves the 2025 and 2026 Operating Plan and Budget. 

2 



 

Financial Considerations 

 

The formation of the BID is expected to have limited financial impact to the City and County.  The BID will 

cause some additions to regular activities of both the City and County and BURA, such as the collection of 

funds through imposing certain tax levies. It is anticipated that, like other taxing entities, the BID will seek 

to have Broomfield collect and disperse any taxes levied by the BID.  This process is similar to that used for 

other taxing entities. The City will be provided a fee for this service.  

 

Prior Council or Other Entity Actions 

 

February 25, 2025 - Approved, on first reading, the formation of the Broomfield Town Square Business 

Improvement District (BID) 

  

September 12, 2023 - Approved the Broomfield Town Square Filing No. 1 Site Development Plan and Urban 

Renewal Site Plan, Improvement Agreement, and Ownership and Maintenance Agreement. 

 

September 13, 2022 - Approved the Broomfield Town Square PUD Plan, Final Plat, and the Ninth Amendment 

to the 2016 Comprehensive Plan for a Land Use Map Amendment related the BTS property.  

 

November 12, 2020 - City Council and BURA approved a Supplemental Cost Sharing Agreement with 

Broomfield Town Square Alliance, LLC. 

 

August 25, 2020 - Approved Service Plans for Broomfield Town Square Metropolitan District Nos. 1 and 2. 

 

November 12, 2019 - City Council and BURA approved a Redevelopment and Reimbursement Agreement with 

Broomfield Town Square Alliance, LLC. 

 

May 21, 2019 - City Council and BURA approved a Predevelopment Agreement with Broomfield Town Square 

Alliance, LLC. 

  

Boards and Commissions Prior Actions and Recommendations 

 

March 22, 2021 - Land Use Review Commission found and declared the Broomfield Town Square URA Plan to 

be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and recommended approval of the plan.  

 

Proposed Actions / Recommendations 

 

If Council desires to approve the petition and approve the ordinance that would create the Business 

Improvement District, the appropriate motion is… 

 

That Ordinance No. 2263  be approved on second reading and ordered published by title. 

 

 

Alternatives 

Do not establish the Business Improvement District at this time.  This would not preclude the developer from 

resubmitting the petition at a later date.  

 

 

3 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1BO0RJxvQN3mkc7qtvT1BwsNFpa1oTeWx/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1n3C2q-1CfiSWSS3Z2fK64D1Pm6kB3Xrm/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1WH3VUwM1vpIIdZ7iY9jcJNJpoOxJApWP/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/15eJc4IIOwZzz0cdxWMuRJ1t6Hg9M7NaC/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1NiHK8LgeUuEJ30D_s50606te4b3wdXkN/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1WeSfSsoT6aKMXAHS6eyR6PCYNbIekONL/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1gmIkckTyUqFFpH1ruOsmBzm2QcAI4ROd/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/10BfO-eBqI7XCNlyYFw8uG48Dvx4OvJi1/view?usp=sharing


 

 

 

Broomfield Town Square Development Background 

 

Approved Development Plans  

On September 12, 2023, the City Council approved a site development plan, improvement agreement and 

other related agreements for the Broomfield Town Square development which comprises approximately 39 

acres and is generally located northeast of Main Street and West 120th Avenue. Broomfield currently owns 

the properties and Broomfield’s master planning documents have long envisioned a town square in this 

location. 

 

The approved site development plan allows up to 491 residential units including 12 townhomes and 479 

rental apartments and anticipates up to 63,590 square feet of commercial development including a 

redevelopment of the former grocery store in the initial phase. Significant public improvements, including a 

4 acre lake, plaza and walk areas, and publicly accessible parking garage are also included in Phase 1. 

Future phases could include up to 152 additional residential units for a total of 643 residential units and up 

to 187,000 square feet of total commercial uses across the property. 

 

Redevelopment and Reimbursement Agreement  

On November 12, 2019, City Council approved a Redevelopment and Reimbursement Agreement concerning 

the Broomfield Town Square development. This Redevelopment Agreement addresses the sharing of 

revenues generated from within the property by Broomfield and the Broomfield Urban Renewal Authority 

(BURA) with the developer to assist with financing the public improvements included within the 

development.  

 

Specifically, the Redevelopment Agreement commits Broomfield to sharing with the Developer the maximum 

net reimbursement amount of $20M in tax increment revenue generated by the City and County from the 

project. If the developer issues bonds for development project financing, the reimbursement amount will 

include eligible financing costs for a gross maximum reimbursement total of up to $54.0M.  If the 

development financing does not include bond financing maximum gross reimbursement shall not exceed 

$48M.  In addition to the revenue sharing provisions, the Redevelopment calls for the transfer of the land 

owned by Broomfield, including the former grocery store and parking areas, to the developer for the 

purposes of redevelopment and development. This commitment extends until December 31, 2044.  

In addition to the sharing of tax increment revenue and property transfer, the City agreed in the 

Redevelopment Agreement to cooperate with the developer to form and/or adopt an Urban Renewal Plan, 

Business Improvement District, and Metropolitan District for the project. Such action will aid the developer 

in financing the public improvements required for the project. 

 

Metropolitan District 

On August 25, 2020, City Council approved Service Plans for Broomfield Town Square Metropolitan District 

Nos. 1 and 2. The Service Plans include interest rate caps and a provision that an analysis of interest rates 

will be performed prior to the issuance of debt to assess reasonableness of the proposed interest rates. A 

maximum of $104M of debt is authorized by the Service Plans.  Any issuance of debt by the Metropolitan 

Districts will require the approval of the City and County Manager and City and County Attorney. 

 

Urban Renewal Plan 

The Broomfield Town Square project is partly within the existing Broomfield Plaza Civic Center Urban 

Renewal Area (Broomfield Plaza URA). The developer has proposed a new Broomfield Town Square Urban 

Renewal Area (Town Square URA) encompassing the entire project area. Consequently, staff will be 

presenting for City Council consideration on March 25, 2025 resolutions to amend the impacted Broomfield 

4 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1n3C2q-1CfiSWSS3Z2fK64D1Pm6kB3Xrm/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1WeSfSsoT6aKMXAHS6eyR6PCYNbIekONL/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1NiHK8LgeUuEJ30D_s50606te4b3wdXkN/view


 

Plaza URA and approve the new Town Square URA. The tax increment revenue (reimbursement amount) 

pledged by Broomfield in the 2019 Redevelopment Agreement will annually flow through the newly created 

Town Square URA, until either the gross reimbursement amount has been met or the agreement expires at 

the end of 2044.  

 

In coordination with the proposed amended and new URA plans, staff will also request on March 25, 2025 

that BURA approve tax revenue sharing agreements with Boulder Valley School District (BVSD), Broomfield 

Town Square Metropolitan District, North Metro Fire & Rescue District, and Northern Colorado Water 

Conservation District (Northern Water). The anticipated financial contribution to the Broomfield Town 

Square project by BVSD is estimated to be approximately $20.0M through 2050.  There is no financial impact 

to North Metro or Northern Water as BURA will not retain any of the taxes levied by either entity and each 

will receive 100% of any tax increment generated by the project.  Mile High Flood District had previously 

consented to the formation of the Town Square URA in 2022 and will renew its letter of approval upon the 

City Council’s approval of the new URA plan.  

5 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2263 

 

An ordinance declaring the organization of the Broomfield Town Square Business Improvement 

District, establishing and appointing a Board of Directors, and approving the 2025 and 2026 

Operating Plan and Budget 

Recitals. 

 Whereas, a Petition for the Organization of the Broomfield Town Square Business 

Improvement District (the “Petition”) was filed with the Clerk of the City and County of 

Broomfield (the “City”) on or about February 19 , 2025.  

 

 Whereas, on February 25, 2025, the City Council of the City and County of Broomfield 

(“City Council”) fixed by order the time and place for a hearing on the Petition. 

 

 Whereas, on March 25, 2025, the City Council held a public hearing on the Petition. 

 

 Now, therefore, be it ordained by the City Council of the City and County of 

Broomfield, Colorado: 

 

Section 1.   

 

The City Council hereby makes the following findings regarding the Petition for the proposed 

Broomfield Town Square Business Improvement District (the “BID”): 

 

(1) Notice of place and time of the hearing on the Petition was published in the Broomfield 

Enterprise and mailed to each property owner within the service area and the boundaries of 

the proposed BID at such property owner’s last known address, as disclosed by county tax 

records. 

 

(2)  The Petitioners are the owners of real or personal property in the service area of the 

proposed BID (a) having a valuation for assessment of not less than fifty percent (50%) of the 

valuation for assessment of all real and personal property in the service area of the proposed 

BID; and (b) which comprises at least fifty percent (50%) of the acreage in the legal 

boundaries of the proposed BID. 

 

(3)  The signatures of the Petitioners are genuine. 

 

(4)  The Petition was accompanied by a bond with security approved by the City Council or a 

cash deposit sufficient to cover all expenses connected with the proceedings in case the 

organization of the BID is not effected. 

 

 

Page 1 



 

(5)  The corporate name of the proposed BID is Broomfield Town Square Business Improvement 

District. 

(6)  A general description of the boundaries and service area of the proposed BID is as follows: 

(a) The legal description of the BID is set forth in Exhibit A, attached here to and 

incorporated herein. A map of the BID is on file with the City and County Clerk. 

(b) The legal description of the Service Area of the BID is set forth Exhibit B, 

attached hereto and incorporated herein. A map of the Service Area is on file 

with the City and County Clerk.  

(c) Pursuant to Section 31-25-1208(3), C.R.S., if at any time, the tax classification 

of property within the Service Area is changed from residential or agricultural 

to business or commercial uses, such property shall no longer be excluded from 

the boundaries of the BID. 

(7)  The property within the boundaries and the service area of the proposed BID is located 

within the boundaries of the City; therefore, the City has jurisdiction to organize the BID. 

(8)  None of the taxable real or personal property to be included in the boundaries of the 

proposed BID is classified for property tax purposes as either residential or agricultural. 

(9)  No property to be included in the boundaries of the proposed BID is within the boundaries 

of another business improvement district authorized under Title 31, C.R.S. 

(10)  All of property within the service area of the BID is a location hereby designated for new 

business or commercial development pursuant to Section 31-25-1203(10), C.R.S. 

(11)  The Petition was duly signed and presented in conformity with Sections 31-25-1201, et 

seq., C.R.S., as amended (the “Business Improvement District Act”), the allegations of the 

Petition are true, and the types of services or improvements to be provided by the proposed 

BID are those services or improvements which best satisfy the purposes set forth in the 

Business Improvement District Act. 

Section 2.  

 

The City Council hereby declares the above-described Broomfield Town Square Business 

Improvement District organized in accordance with the Business Improvement District Act, 

and all other applicable statutes and laws of the State of Colorado. The BID shall be a 

quasi-municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State with all powers and 

responsibilities thereof. 

 

 

 

Page 2 



 

Section 3.   

 

Pursuant to Section 31-25-1209(1)(b), C.R.S., the City Council may appoint the initial 

members for the Board of Directors of the BID (the “Board”) to serve at the pleasure of the 

City Council.  Each member of the Board shall be an elector of the BID as “elector” is defined 

in Section 31-25-1203(4)(a), C.R.S. 

(1)  The City Council hereby establishes the Board of Directors of five (5) members and hereby 

appoints as directors the individuals named in the 2025 and 2026 Operating Plan to serve as 

the initial members of the Board of Directors. 

(2)  Members of the Board of Directors shall serve at the pleasure of the City Council pursuant 

to Section 31-25-1209(1)(b), C.R.S.  Any subsequent members of the Board of Directors shall 

be appointed by resolution of the City Council. 

(3)  The Board of Directors shall carry out the responsibilities required of such Board by the 

Business Improvement District Act, any Operating Plan and Budget, and all other applicable 

ordinances and laws. 

 

Section 4.   

In accordance with Section 31-25-1211, C.R.S., the 2025 and 2026 Operating Plan and Budget 

is hereby approved.  A copy of the 2025 and 2026 Operating Plan and Budget is available on 

file with the City and County Clerk. Given the date of this Ordinance, the 2025 and 2026 

Operating Plan and Budget shall apply to the BID’s activities for the remainder of 2025 and for 

2026.  If the BID amends the 2025 and 2026 Operating Plan or either the 2025 Budget or 2026 

Budget after this Ordinance is effective, the amendment must be approved by the City 

Council in substantially the same manner as the process for formulating the operating plan 

and budget for each year.  Beginning on September 30, 2026 (for use in 2027), an annual 

Operating Plan and Budget will be submitted to the City Council on or before September 30th 

of each year. 

 

Section 5.  

  

All acts, orders, resolutions, or parts thereof, of the City that are inconsistent or in conflict 

with this Ordinance, are hereby repealed to the extent only of such inconsistency or conflict. 

 

Section 6.  

 

 

Page 3 



 

Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be adjudged unenforceable or invalid, such 

judgment shall not affect, impair, or invalidate the remaining provisions of this Ordinance, it 

being the intention that the various provisions hereof are severable.  

 
Section 7.   

The City and County Clerk is hereby directed to advise the representatives of the BID in 

writing of this action and to attach a certified copy of this Ordinance. 

 
Section 8. 

This ordinance is effective seven days after publication following final passage. 

 

 

Introduced and approved after first reading on February 25, 2025, and ordered published in 

full. 

 

Introduced a second time and approved on March 25, 2025, and ordered published. 

 

 

      The City And County Of Broomfield, Colorado 

 

 

    
_______________________________ 

      Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

___________________________ 

Office of the City and County Clerk 

      Approved As To Form: 

            

            
 

      ________________________________ 

      City and County Attorney  

 

 

Page 4 



 

EXHIBIT A 

Legal Description and Map of the Boundaries of the BID 

 

Lot 2, Broomfield Town Square, Filing No. 1,City and County of Broomfield, State of Colorado

 

 

Page 5 



 

EXHIBIT B 

Legal Description and Map of the Service Area of the BID 

 

Lot 2, Broomfield Town Square, Filing No. 1, City and County of Broomfield, State of Colorado 

 

 

 

Page 6 







































City and County of Broomfield

City Council Regular Meeting

B. Proposed Resolutions for Urban Renewal Area Plan and Related Tax Sharing Agreements for Broomfield Town
Square

Meeting

Tuesday, March 25, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Action Items Item: 7B.

Presented By

Jeff Romine, Economist - CMO

Community Goals

☑ Financial Sustainability and Resilience

Overview

View Correspondence

View Presentation

The action, approving the Resolutions 2025-69 and 2025-70, will approve a new Broomfield Town Square Urban
Renewal Area Plan (Town Square URA) and amend the existing Broomfield Plaza-Civic Center Urban Renewal Area
Plan (Broomfield Plaza URA) to accommodate the Broomfield Town Square development project.
 
The BURA action, Agenda Item 7C, would approve tax increment revenue agreements between BURA and
Broomfield Town Square Metropolitan District, North Metro Fire Rescue District, Northern Colorado Water
Conservancy District, and Boulder Valley School District. Additionally, it would authorize the Mayor to sign at a
future date a Letter Agreement to be issued by Mile High Flood District following City Council’s approval of the
Town Square URA concerning the use of District’s mills for the project.  
 
The formation of the Town Square URA will complete the public financing components outlined in the 2019
Redevelopment and Reimbursement Agreement (Redevelopment Agreement) for the Broomfield Town Square
project.  

 

 

 

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82


Attachments

Memo - Urban Renewal Area Plan and Related Tax Sharing Agreements for Broomfield Town Square 3-25-2025.pdf
Resolution No. 2025-69 Broomfield Town Square URA.pdf
Resolution No. 2025-70 Substantial Modification Broomfield Plaza Civic Center URA.pdf
BTS -- Urban Renewal Plan FINAL 3-25-2025.pdf
Broomfield Plaza Civic Center URA - Amended Plan Area FINAL.pdf
Property Conditions Assessment (Blight Study) June 2029.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7ae6ff146006c3d8520%2FMemo%20-%20Urban%20Renewal%20Area%20Plan%20and%20Related%20Tax%20Sharing%20Agreements%20for%20Broomfield%20Town%20Square%203-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=a14b8136-c576-46b0-a1b3-ac2ae7eb3f33
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7ae6ff146006c3d8520%2FMemo%20-%20Urban%20Renewal%20Area%20Plan%20and%20Related%20Tax%20Sharing%20Agreements%20for%20Broomfield%20Town%20Square%203-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=a14b8136-c576-46b0-a1b3-ac2ae7eb3f33
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7ae6ff146006c3d8520%2FMemo%20-%20Urban%20Renewal%20Area%20Plan%20and%20Related%20Tax%20Sharing%20Agreements%20for%20Broomfield%20Town%20Square%203-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=a14b8136-c576-46b0-a1b3-ac2ae7eb3f33
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7ae6ff146006c3d8520%2FResolution%20No.%202025-69%20Broomfield%20Town%20Square%20URA.pdf?alt=media&token=2e210e4e-5cd0-4314-8645-7fbe9e138cea
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7ae6ff146006c3d8520%2FResolution%20No.%202025-69%20Broomfield%20Town%20Square%20URA.pdf?alt=media&token=2e210e4e-5cd0-4314-8645-7fbe9e138cea
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7ae6ff146006c3d8520%2FResolution%20No.%202025-69%20Broomfield%20Town%20Square%20URA.pdf?alt=media&token=2e210e4e-5cd0-4314-8645-7fbe9e138cea
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7ae6ff146006c3d8520%2FResolution%20No.%202025-70%20Substantial%20Modification%20Broomfield%20Plaza%20Civic%20Center%20URA.pdf?alt=media&token=c60508b8-3ec7-4973-96b2-0318b833a8da
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7ae6ff146006c3d8520%2FResolution%20No.%202025-70%20Substantial%20Modification%20Broomfield%20Plaza%20Civic%20Center%20URA.pdf?alt=media&token=c60508b8-3ec7-4973-96b2-0318b833a8da
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7ae6ff146006c3d8520%2FResolution%20No.%202025-70%20Substantial%20Modification%20Broomfield%20Plaza%20Civic%20Center%20URA.pdf?alt=media&token=c60508b8-3ec7-4973-96b2-0318b833a8da
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7ae6ff146006c3d8520%2FBTS%20--%20Urban%20Renewal%20Plan%20FINAL%203-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=70ce7e86-314c-4d40-967b-cd11b81cbc99
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7ae6ff146006c3d8520%2FBTS%20--%20Urban%20Renewal%20Plan%20FINAL%203-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=70ce7e86-314c-4d40-967b-cd11b81cbc99
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7ae6ff146006c3d8520%2FBTS%20--%20Urban%20Renewal%20Plan%20FINAL%203-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=70ce7e86-314c-4d40-967b-cd11b81cbc99
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7ae6ff146006c3d8520%2FBroomfield%20Plaza%20Civic%20Center%20URA%20-%20Amended%20Plan%20Area%20FINAL.pdf?alt=media&token=031967a1-891f-4bcf-89c7-b713e7b1e951
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7ae6ff146006c3d8520%2FBroomfield%20Plaza%20Civic%20Center%20URA%20-%20Amended%20Plan%20Area%20FINAL.pdf?alt=media&token=031967a1-891f-4bcf-89c7-b713e7b1e951
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7ae6ff146006c3d8520%2FBroomfield%20Plaza%20Civic%20Center%20URA%20-%20Amended%20Plan%20Area%20FINAL.pdf?alt=media&token=031967a1-891f-4bcf-89c7-b713e7b1e951
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7ae6ff146006c3d8520%2FProperty%20Conditions%20Assessment%20(Blight%20Study)%20June%202029.pdf?alt=media&token=014d8ce4-be6d-4e4f-931b-9e589dddd7a8
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7ae6ff146006c3d8520%2FProperty%20Conditions%20Assessment%20(Blight%20Study)%20June%202029.pdf?alt=media&token=014d8ce4-be6d-4e4f-931b-9e589dddd7a8
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7ae6ff146006c3d8520%2FProperty%20Conditions%20Assessment%20(Blight%20Study)%20June%202029.pdf?alt=media&token=014d8ce4-be6d-4e4f-931b-9e589dddd7a8


Memo - Approving the Broomfield Town Square Urban Renewal Area Plan, Amending an Existing URA Plan, and 

Approving Certain Related Tax Sharing Agreements for Broomfield Town Square  
Prepared By: Jeff Romine, Economist; Karl Frundt, Senior Attorney 

Summary 

 

View Correspondence 

View Presentation 

 

Proposed Resolutions 2025-69 and 2025-70, if approved by the City Council will approve a new Broomfield 

Town Square Urban Renewal Area Plan (Town Square URA) and amend the existing Broomfield Plaza-Civic 

Center Urban Renewal Area Plan (Broomfield Plaza URA) to accommodate the Broomfield Town Square 

development project.  

 

Proposed Resolution 2025-71-UR, if approved by the Broomfield Urban Renewal Authority (BURA), will 

approve tax increment revenue agreements between BURA and Broomfield Town Square Metropolitan 

District, North Metro Fire Rescue District, Northern Colorado Water Conservancy District, and Boulder Valley 

School District. Additionally, it would authorize the Mayor to sign at a future date a Letter Agreement to be 

issued by Mile High Flood District following City Council’s approval of the Town Square URA concerning the 

use of District’s mills for the project. 

 

The formation of the Town Square URA will complete the public financing components outlined in the 2019 

Redevelopment and Reimbursement Agreement (Redevelopment Agreement) for the Broomfield Town Square 

project. Other components of public or district financing to support the development include the 

establishment of the Metropolitan District (formed in 2020) and the formation of the Broomfield Town 

Square Business Improvement District (which will be considered by the City Council by separate action on 

2nd Reading on March 25, 2025).  

 

Note: The Redevelopment Agreement, approved on November 12, 2019, established the financial 

commitments of the City and County of Broomfield, such as committed shares of annual tax revenue 

resulting from the development, net and gross maximum reimbursement limits, other contributions, and 

commitments to support the proposed Broomfield Town Square development project.   

          

Urban Renewal Plan Areas 

 

Background and Requirement for Formation: 

Broomfield currently has twelve designated urban renewal areas, which can be seen in the Urban Renewal 

Area Map from the 2016 Broomfield Comprehensive Plan.  The Colorado Urban Renewal Law, C.R.S. § 

31-25-101 et seq. (“Urban Renewal Law”) permits cities, including cities and counties, to create urban 

renewal authorities and adopt urban renewal plans for the purpose of preventing and eliminating blight.  

The Broomfield Urban Renewal Authority was established in 1986.  

 

Urban renewal is an important tool for Broomfield to assist in the redevelopment of “blighted” property, as 

defined by urban renewal law, and to help foster growth and development in an efficient and orderly 

manner. An urban renewal designation provides the opportunity for a portion of the taxes generated in the 

area to be retained for use in the area to support the construction of certain eligible public improvements 

such as roads, sanitary sewer, water, drainage, and open lands and other public places. The financing tool is 

referred to as tax increment financing (TIF). TIF is not a new tax. Rather, it allows for growth in incremental 

revenue generated in the designated area to fund development projects in the urban renewal area, through 

a variety of mechanisms, including bond financing, project loans, or development reimbursements for 

improvements that might typically be constructed by the city and county. Designation of an urban renewal 

                 

1 

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://broomfield.org/DocumentCenter/View/4593/Overall-Map---Existing-URAs?bidId=
https://broomfield.org/DocumentCenter/View/4593/Overall-Map---Existing-URAs?bidId=


 

area allows for the city pledged TIF revenues to fund eligible improvements within the plan area for up to 25 

years.  

 

State statute defines an urban renewal plan generally as a plan that conforms to a general or master plan 

for the physical development of the municipality as a whole. The plan must indicate such elements as land 

acquisition, demolition and removal of structures, redevelopment, improvements, and rehabilitation as may 

be proposed to be carried out in the urban renewal area. The plan must also show zoning, land uses, 

maximum densities, building requirements, and the plan’s relationship to local objectives, respecting 

appropriate land uses, improved traffic, public transportation, public utilities, recreational and community 

facilities, and other public improvements. C.R.S. § 31-25-103(10). 

 

An authority is not authorized by law to undertake an urban renewal project for an urban renewal area 

unless the area has been determined to be blighted and is appropriate for an urban renewal project. The 

plan must go to the Land Use Revision Commission for review and recommendation as to its conformity with 

the Comprehensive Plan. Council then determines, by resolution, if the urban renewal plan should be 

approved. 

 

Summary of Proposed Plan Areas - Approval of the Town Square URA and Amendment to the Broomfield 

Plaza URA 

The proposal is to consider the Town Square Urban Renewal Area, which is a new urban renewal plan, 

consisting of approximately 53 acres comprising the site of the former Safeway store (located southeast of 

Main Street and E. 1st Avenue) and the site of the future Broomfield Town Square plaza and lake (located 

northeast of Main Street and E. 1st Avenue). A map of the plan area is linked above. The area includes 

primarily undeveloped city owned land north of E. 1st Avenue, the Library/Auditorium building, and the 

North Metro Fire Rescue District Administration Building. The new URA boundary also includes a portion of 

the commercial property south of E. 1st Avenue  including the former Safeway store (now vacant) and 

adjacent properties.  

 

Additionally, an amendment to the Broomfield Plaza URA plan area is required as the boundary of the 

existing Broomfield Plaza URA plan area overlaps with the portions of newly proposed Town Square URA 

north of E. 1st Avenue. The overlapping area was originally included in the Broomfield Plaza URA plan area 

in 2013 in anticipation of the development of a civic center/town center on the vacant city owned land.  

Subsequent to the plan’s approval, the city acquired the Safeway property for inclusion within the future 

civic center/town center which was not located within an urban renewal plan area. It is proposed that the 

overlapping area north of E. 1st Avenue be removed from the Broomfield Plaza URA and incorporated into 

the Town Square URA. 

 

Blight Study  

The City and County of Broomfield retained Matrix Design Group, Inc. (Matrix) in 2019 to conduct a property 

conditions assessment (Blight Study) of the Broomfield Town Square development property to verify whether 

blight factors were present in the study area. The 2019 Blight Study completed by Matrix identified the 

presence of eight (8) blight factors within the study area. Such factors include:  

a. Slum, deteriorated, or deteriorating structures 

b. Predominance of defective or inadequate street layout 

c. Faulty lot layout in relation to size, adequacy, accessibility, or usefulness 

d. Unsanitary or unsafe conditions 

e. Deterioration of site or other improvements 

f. Unusual topography or inadequate public improvements or utilities 

g. Environmental contamination of buildings or property 

2 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1WDOHXyJXoEbh5WJ_uYYvx8f_z0EaBGTc/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1bj6-ttisBd7OsZTqVO479T4Fc5RyA_Na/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Zxf3W4b0Z21ez_e5PgQXpAZHtAa8cj3u/view?usp=sharing


 

h. The existence of health, safety, or welfare factors requiring high levels of municipal services or 

substantial physical underutilization of vacancy of sites, buildings, or other improvements. 

On March 31, 2021, Matrix updated the 2019 Blight Study at the City’s request and confirmed the eight (8) 

blight factors remained unchanged within the study area. Additionally, city staff has recently evaluated the 

study area and has confirmed that all eight (8) of the blight factors remain as of March 15, 2025. A letter 

supporting this determination is linked here. 

 

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan 

The proposed Town Square URA plan’s goal is to implement the Comprehensive Plan by the elimination of 

development barriers to the Plan Area and to extend infrastructure and services to facilitate redevelopment 

of the area by private enterprise. Implementation of the Town Square URA plan will help eliminate and 

prevent conditions of blight in the Plan Area.  

 

The Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed the Town Square URA plan at a public hearing on March 22, 

2021 finding and declaring the Town Square URA plan to be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and 

recommending approval by the City Council.   

 

Proposed Resolution Nos. 2025-69 and 2025-70 

Proposed Resolution No. 2025-69, if approved, will approve the Town Square URA plan and find (i) that blight 

exists within the plan area; and (ii) that the plan is in conformity with the Comprehensive Plan. 

 

Proposed Resolution No. 2025-70, if approved, will approve a substantial modification of the Broomfield 

Plaza URA by amending the boundaries of the plan area and find that the modified plan is in conformity with 

the Comprehensive Plan. 

 

Tax Increment Revenue Agreements 

 

Pursuant to urban renewal laws, staff has negotiated tax increment revenue sharing agreements with the 

Boulder Valley School District and other special tax districts that impose a mill levy within the Town Square 

URA and Broomfield Plaza URA plan areas. The other impacted special districts include North Metro Fire 

Rescue District, Northern Colorado Water Conservancy District, and Mile High Flood District. Boulder Valley 

Schools have agreed to the inclusion of 27 mills of TIF from its mill levy to support the project. Mile High 

Flood District has agreed to the inclusion of its mill levy into the TIF and will issue a Letter Agreement 

reflecting this subsequent to the City Council’s approval of the Town Square URA. The North Metro Fire, and 

Northern Water will all receive 100% of the TIF from their respective mill levies. No tax increment revenue 

sharing agreement is required for either the Broomfield Town Square Metropolitan District or the Business 

Improvement District as the mill levies from each district were previously pledged back to the Districts to 

support the project in the 2019 Redevelopment Agreement.     

 

Proposed Resolution No. 2025-71-UR 

Proposed Resolution 2025-71-UR, if approved by BURA, will approve tax increment revenue agreements 

between BURA and North Metro Fire Rescue District, Northern Colorado Water Conservancy District, and 

Boulder Valley School District. Additionally, it would authorize the Mayor to sign a Letter Agreement to be 

issued by Mile High Flood District following City Council’s approval of the Town Square URA concerning the 

use of District’s mills for the project. 

 

 

3 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1NE1gusOHzwLSRcSVt6L0K8L9dniKWJ5_/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/10BLPXUb2lHyE82d9lOovd0A_KI5gKZ-b/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/19Iuq66ph043BMavSVLOwV-Pqzey0R0-t/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/19Iuq66ph043BMavSVLOwV-Pqzey0R0-t/view?usp=sharing


 

Financial Considerations 

 

Neither the formation of the proposed Broomfield Town Square Urban Renewal Area, nor the amendment of 

the existing Broomfield Plaza URA will result in an additional financial obligation of the City/County beyond 

the existing financial obligations agreed and committed to in the Redevelopment and Reimbursement 

Agreement (approved on November 12, 2019).  The commitments from the other affected entities are 

included in the attachments. 

 

The City and County financial commitments, as identified in the 2019 agreements, are calculated in the 

following manner.   

 

First, tax and fee revenues generated by the Broomfield Town Square development in the designated area, 

through a share of the sales and use tax revenue (fifty percent of the General Fund portion (3.5%), a share 

of any lodgers tax (fifty) percent), the generated property (ad valorem) tax, and a share of the Service 

Expansion fee (fifty percent of the fee, which is the whole of the city-retained portion) resulting from the 

increased property value and activities on generated . The agreement states the maximum “Net 

Reimbursement Amount” is equal to $20.0M. 

 

Second, it is anticipated that the Developer or the associated Districts will issue debt to finance the 

development infrastructure costs, and incur additional issuance, interest, reserves, and other costs, over 

time related to the debt.  The agreement identifies that the “Maximum Gross Reimbursement Amount” may 

not exceed 2.7 times the Net Maximum Amount, or $54.0M.  This is the total direct financial obligation of 

the City and County. 

 

Third, the agreement calls for the City-owned property (land for the BTD development and the former 

grocery store building) will be conveyed through the bargain and sale deed to the Developer.   

   

 

Prior Council or Other Entity Actions 

February  25, 2025 - City Council approved the formation of the Broomfield Town Square Business 

Improvement District on first reading. 

 

September 12, 2023 - Approved the Broomfield Town Square Filing No. 1 Site Development Plan and Urban 

Renewal Site Plan, Improvement Agreement, and Ownership and Maintenance Agreement. 

 

September 13, 2022 - Approved the Broomfield Town Square PUD Plan, Final Plat, and the Ninth Amendment 

to the 2016 Comprehensive Plan for a Land Use Map Amendment related the BTS property.  

 

November 12, 2020 - City Council and BURA approved a Supplemental Cost Sharing Agreement with 

Broomfield Town Square Alliance, LLC. 

 

August 25, 2020 - Approved Service Plans for Broomfield Town Square Metropolitan District Nos. 1 and 2. 

 

November 12, 2019 - City Council and BURA approved a Redevelopment and Reimbursement Agreement with 

Broomfield Town Square Alliance, LLC. 

 

May 21, 2019 - City Council and BURA approved a Predevelopment Agreement with Broomfield Town Square 

Alliance, LLC. 

  

4 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1_vbnSU1ZGclF21I_Au8rjV4XZQwjELCK/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1n3C2q-1CfiSWSS3Z2fK64D1Pm6kB3Xrm/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1WH3VUwM1vpIIdZ7iY9jcJNJpoOxJApWP/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/15eJc4IIOwZzz0cdxWMuRJ1t6Hg9M7NaC/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1NiHK8LgeUuEJ30D_s50606te4b3wdXkN/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1WeSfSsoT6aKMXAHS6eyR6PCYNbIekONL/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1gmIkckTyUqFFpH1ruOsmBzm2QcAI4ROd/view


 

Boards and Commissions Prior Actions and Recommendations 

 

March 22, 2021 - Land Use Review Commission found and declared the Broomfield Town Square URA Plan to 

be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and recommended approval of the plan.  

 

Proposed Actions / Recommendations 

 

If Council desires to approve the Broomfield Town Square URA, the appropriate motion is… 

 

That Resolution No. 2025-69 be adopted. 

 

If Council desires to amend the boundary of the existing Broomfield Plaza-Civic Center URA, the appropriate 

motion is… 

 

That Resolution No. 2025-70 be adopted. 

 

If BURA desires to approve certain tax increment revenue sharing agreements related to the Town Square 

URA and amended Broomfield Plaza-Civic Center URA and authorize the Mayor, as BURA chair, to approve at 

a future date the Letter Agreement with Mile High Flood District, the appropriate motion is… 

 

That Resolution No. 2025-71-UR be adopted. 

 

  

Alternatives 

Council - Do not approve the Broomfield Town Square URA or amend Broomfield Plaza-Civic Center URA at 

this time.   

BURA - do not approve the tax increment revenue sharing agreements. 

 

This would delay the developer’s ability to proceed with its bond issuance on the currently proposed 

schedule and delay the start of construction for the project.  

 

5 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/10BfO-eBqI7XCNlyYFw8uG48Dvx4OvJi1/view?usp=sharing


 

Broomfield Town Square Development Background 

 

Approved Development Plans  

On September 12, 2023, the City Council approved a site development plan, improvement agreement and 

other related agreements for the Broomfield Town Square development which comprises approximately 39 

acres and is generally located northeast of Main Street and West 120th Avenue. Broomfield currently owns 

the properties and Broomfield’s master planning documents have long envisioned a town square in this 

location. 

 

The approved site development plan allows up to 491 residential units including 12 townhomes and 479 

rental apartments and anticipates up to 63,590 square feet of commercial development including a 

redevelopment of the former grocery store in the initial phase. Significant public improvements, including a 

4 acre lake, plaza and walk areas, and publicly accessible parking garage are also included in Phase 1. 

Future phases could include up to 152 additional residential units for a total of 643 residential units and up 

to 187,000 square feet of total commercial uses across the property. 

 

Redevelopment and Reimbursement Agreement  

On November 12, 2019, City Council approved a Redevelopment and Reimbursement Agreement concerning 

the Broomfield Town Square development. This Redevelopment Agreement addresses the sharing of 

revenues generated from within the property by Broomfield and the Broomfield Urban Renewal Authority 

(BURA) with the developer to assist with financing the public improvements included within the 

development.  

 

Specifically, the Redevelopment Agreement commits Broomfield to sharing with the Developer the maximum 

net reimbursement amount of $20M in tax increment revenue generated by the City and County from the 

project. If the developer issues bonds for development project financing, the reimbursement amount will 

include eligible financing costs for a gross maximum reimbursement total of up to $54.0M.  If the 

development financing does not include bond financing maximum gross reimbursement shall not exceed 

$48M.  In addition to the revenue sharing provisions, the Redevelopment calls for the transfer of the land 

owned by Broomfield, including the former grocery store and parking areas, to the developer for the 

purposes of redevelopment and development. This commitment extends until December 31, 2044.  

In addition to the sharing of tax increment revenue and property transfer, the City agreed in the 

Redevelopment Agreement to cooperate with the developer to form and/or adopt an Urban Renewal Plan, 

Business Improvement District, and Metropolitan District for the project. Such action will aid the developer 

in financing the public improvements required for the project. 

 

Metropolitan District 

On August 25, 2020, City Council approved Service Plans for Broomfield Town Square Metropolitan District 

Nos. 1 and 2. The Service Plans include interest rate caps and a provision that an analysis of interest rates 

will be performed prior to the issuance of debt to assess reasonableness of the proposed interest rates. A 

maximum of $104M of debt is authorized by the Service Plans.  Any issuance of debt by the Metropolitan 

Districts will require the approval of the City and County Manager and City and County Attorney. 

 

Business Improvement District 

The Broomfield Town Square Business Improvement District (BID) has been proposed to help finance the 

construction of public improvements within the development and to provide related operational and 

maintenance services. The BID, if approved, will construct, install or cause to be constructed or installed, 

certain public improvements including, without limitation, water services, safety protection devices and 

services, sanitation services, marketing, streetscape improvements, street improvements, gutters, culverts, 

6 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1n3C2q-1CfiSWSS3Z2fK64D1Pm6kB3Xrm/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1WeSfSsoT6aKMXAHS6eyR6PCYNbIekONL/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1NiHK8LgeUuEJ30D_s50606te4b3wdXkN/view


 

drainage facilities, sidewalks, parking facilities, paving, lighting, grading, landscaping, storm and 

wastewater management facilities, and associated land acquisition and remediation. 

 

A BID operates pursuant to an Operating Plan approved by the City Council and is governed by a board of 

directors of no less than five (5) individuals appointed by the City Council and who serve at the pleasure of 

the Council.  Board members must be eligible electors who live within the district’s boundaries or own 

taxable real or personal property within the district. Each year the BID must submit to the City its Operating 

Plan and proposed budget no later than September 30th. 

 

The BID is anticipated to hold an election on May 6, 2025 for the purposes of authorizing debt, taxes, 

revenue limits, spending limits, and special assessments. The initial maximum debt authorization for the BID 

shall be $104M.  This debt limit is an aggregate limit with the Metropolitan Districts so that, collectively, the 

BID and the Metropolitan Districts may not issue bonds in excess of $104M. Similarly, the BID’s taxing ability 

shall be constrained to debt service mill levy limitations of 50 mills in the aggregate when combined with 

the debt service mill levies of the Metropolitan Districts. An additional 15 mills is permitted for operations 

and administrative expenses. The maximum voted interest rate permitted for any debt issued by the BID 

shall be eight percent (8%) which may be increased to ten percent 10% with administrative approval of the 

City and County Manager and the City and County Attorney. The maximum underwriting discount shall be 

three percent (3%). 

 

The BID may consider issuing debt beginning in 2026 if the issuance of debt is approved by the electors of 

the BID at the May 6, 2025 election.  

 

 

 

7 



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-69 

 

A resolution making certain legislative findings and approving 

 the Broomfield Town Square Urban Renewal Plan  

Recitals. 

Whereas, there was presented to the City Council of the City and County of Broomfield 

(the “City”) for its review and consideration a document entitled “Property Conditions 

Assessment (Blight Study)” prepared by Matrix Design Group, Inc. (the “Conditions Survey”), 

which shows that the area (the “Urban Renewal Area”) described in the “Broomfield Town 

Square Urban Renewal Plan” (the “Plan”), is a “blighted area” as such term is defined in the 

Colorado Urban Renewal Law, Part 1 of Article 25 of Title 31 of the Colorado Revised Statutes 

(the “Act”). 

Whereas, the Conditions Survey identified eight (8) blight factors within boundaries of 

the Urban Renewal Area described in the Plan and the eight (8) blight factors remain on-going 

as of March 15, 2025.  

Whereas, it is desirable and in the public interest that the Broomfield Urban Renewal 

Authority (the “Authority”) undertake redevelopment activities described in the Plan. 

Whereas, approval of the Plan will facilitate the elimination and prevention of 

blighted areas and promote the redevelopment, conservation, and rehabilitation of the Urban 

Renewal Area. 

Whereas, the Plan is a matter of public record in the custody of the City and County 

Clerk, and is available for public inspection during business hours of the City. 

Whereas, on March 25, 2025, the City Council conducted a public hearing and reviewed 

the Plan pursuant to the procedural requirements of the Act. 

Whereas, notice of the public hearing on the Plan was published as required by Section 

31-25-107(3), C.R.S., at least thirty (30) days prior to the public hearing. 

Whereas, written notice of the public hearing was mailed to each property owner, 

business owner, and resident of the area included in the Urban Renewal Area informing them 

of the public hearing at least thirty (30) days prior to the public hearing. 

Whereas, on March 22, 2021, the Broomfield Land Use Review Commission found that 

the Plan is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan 2016 Update adopted by the City 

Council on November 1, 2016, by Resolution No. 2016-194 (the “Comprehensive Plan”), which 

is the general plan for the development of the City as a whole. 

Whereas, notice has been provided and agreements are in place with each affected 

public entity that levies property taxes in the proposed Urban Renewal Area related to the 

Page 1 

 



impacts and benefits of the proposed Plan on the services and revenues of such public 

entities, including sharing of incremental property tax revenues to offset such impacts where 

required, and the City and Authority are otherwise in compliance with the requirements of 

the Act, which agreements will be made part of the legislative record and are filed with the 

City and County Clerk. 

Whereas, the City Council has considered at the public hearing the evidence presented 

related to the Plan together with the Conditions Survey, the Comprehensive Plan and staff 

recommendations, and has given appropriate weight to the evidence in making its findings. 

Now, therefore, be it resolved by the City Council of the City and County of Broomfield, 

Colorado: 

Section 1.   

The City Council finds based on the Conditions Survey and other evidence presented that 

there are eight (8) factors of blight that exist within the Urban Renewal Area described in the 

Plan and that the presence of the eight (8) factors constitute a “blighted area” as defined in 

the Act.  

Section 2. 

It is determined that the Urban Renewal Area, in its present condition and use, substantially 

impairs or arrests the sound growth of the municipality, retards the provision of housing 

accommodations, or constitutes an economic or social liability, and is a menace to public 

health, safety, morals, or welfare.  

Section 3. 

The boundaries of the Urban Renewal Area have been drawn as narrowly as the City Council 

determines feasible to accomplish the planning and development objectives of the Plan. 

Section 4. 

The City Council finds that the Plan is in conformity with the Comprehensive Plan, which is 

the general plan of the City as a whole. 

Section 5. 

The principal purpose of the Plan is to arrest or eliminate the conditions of blight that exist in 

the Area, and the Plan will, as an incidence of its adoption, provide economic benefits to the 

region as a whole. 

Page 2 

 



Section 6. 

It is not intended or expected that the Plan will cause the relocation of individuals or 

families, but, if any such relocation becomes necessary, a feasible method exists for the 

relocation of individuals and families in decent, safe, sanitary dwelling accommodations 

within their means and without undue hardship to such individuals and families. 

Section 7. 

It is not intended or expected that the Plan will cause the relocation of any business 

concerns, but it any relocation becomes necessary, the Authority shall provide for a feasible 

method for the relocation of business concerns in the Urban Renewal Area or in other areas 

that are not generally less desirable with respect to public utilities and public and commercial 

facilities. 

Section 8. 

Boulder Valley School District has been permitted to participate in an advisory capacity with 

respect to the inclusion of the provisions of Section 31-29-107(9) of the Act in the Plan. 

Section 9. 

The City Council has made reasonable efforts to provide both published notice and written 

notice of the public hearing prescribed by Section 31-25-107(3) of the Act to all property 

owners, residents and owners of business concerns in the area included in the Urban Renewal 

Area described in the Plan at their last known address at least thirty (30) days prior to the 

public hearing on the Plan. 

Section 10. 

Section 31-25-107(4)(d) of the Act does not apply because no more than 120 days have passed 

since the commencement of the current public hearing on the plan. 

Section 11. 

Section 31-25-107(4)(e) of the Act does not apply because the City Council has not previously 

failed to approve the Plan. 

Section 12. 

No land acquisition is contemplated by the Authority pursuant to the Plan. However, if for any 

reason, the Authority acquires property in the Urban Renewal Area, the City  and the 

Authority shall first comply with the applicable provisions of the Act, including Sections 

31-25-107(5) and (6) of the Act. 

Page 3 

 



Section 13. 

The entire Urban Renewal Area is within the corporate limits of the City. Construction of 

public improvements and provision of services in the Urban Renewal Area will be the primary 

responsibility of the City, the Authority, special districts, or private enterprise. It is intended 

that such parties, directly or through agreements, will finance most or all of the 

infrastructure and services required to serve the development within the Urban Renewal Area 

described in the Plan. 

Section 14. 

The Broomfield Town Square Urban Renewal Plan is hereby approved. The Authority is hereby 

authorized to take any and all actions pursuant to the Act to carry out the Plan, including, 

without limitation, completing all agreements with taxing entities as required by applicable 

law. After receipt of all such executed agreements, the Authority shall take steps necessary 

to file the Plan and related documents with the City and County Assessor. 

Section 15. 

This resolution is effective upon its approval by the City Council. 

 

 Approved on March 25, 2025. 

 

The City and County of Broomfield, Colorado 

 

 

 

        

Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

       

Office of the City and County Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

NCR 
        

City and County Attorney 

Page 4 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-70 

 

A resolution making certain legislative findings and approving a substantial modification of 

the Broomfield Plaza-Civic Center Urban Renewal Plan by reducing the boundaries of the 

urban renewal area  

Recitals. 

Whereas, pursuant to the Colorado Urban Renewal Law, Part 1 of Article 25 of Title 31 

of the Colorado Revised Statutes (the “Act”), the City Council of the City and County of 

Broomfield (the “City”) approved the Broomfield Plaza-Civic Center Urban Renewal Plan on 

August 13, 2013, by Ordinance No. 1978 (the “Plan”). 

Whereas, pursuant to the Act, the City Council approved the Broomfield Town Square 

Urban Renewal Plan (the “Town Square URA”) on March 25, 2025, by Resolution No. 2025-69. 

Whereas, the Plan overlaps with certain portions of the newly created Broomfield 

Town Square URA, including all property within the Plan lying both west of the east boundary 

line of Lamar Street and north of the south boundary line of E. 1st Avenue. 

Whereas, it is necessary and in the public interest to amend the boundaries and land 

area of the Plan (when modified the “Modified Plan”) by removal of the overlapping property 

described above. 

Whereas, Section 31-25-107(7) of the Act states that a modification that substantially 

changes the land area of the Plan is a substantial modification of the Plan that requires 

compliance with certain provisions of the Act, including House Bill 15-1348 enacted in 2015, 

as amended in 2016, by Senate Bill 16-177, and in 2017 by Senate Bill 17-279 (collectively, the 

“Amended 1348 Requirements”). 

Whereas, Section 31-25-107(9.7) of the Act states that notwithstanding any other 

provisions of law, nothing in the Amended 1348 Requirements is intended to impair, 

jeopardize, or put at risk any existing bonds, investments, loans, contracts, or financial 

obligations of the Broomfield Urban Renewal Authority (the “Authority”), which Authority is 

carrying out the Plan and upon approval by the City Council will be charged with carrying out 

the Modified Plan.  

Whereas, pursuant to Section 31-25-107(9)(a)(II) of the Act, the Authority has 

established a Special Fund into which all property tax increment revenues (the “TIF 

Revenues”) allocated to the Authority are and will continue to be deposited to finance 

activities and undertakings under the Modified Plan, including, without limitation, the design 

and construction of public improvements and related activities necessary to carry out the 

Modified Plan. 

Page 1 

 



Whereas,the Authority has entered into contracts and financial obligations 

(collectively, the “Financial Obligations”) pursuant to the Plan that pledges all TIF Revenues 

deposited in the Special Fund for the 25-year duration of the time authorized in the Act, 

which Financial Obligations will be impaired if such existing pledges of TIF Revenues are 

jeopardized by approval of this modification. 

Whereas, notwithstanding that the modification of the Plan approved by this 

resolution is a substantial modification of the Plan, the City Council does not intend the 

modification of the Plan shall impair, jeopardize, or otherwise put at risk any Financial 

Obligations of the Authority. 

Whereas, the provisions of the Plan, as modified, shall remain in full force and effect, 

including existing pledges of all TIF Revenues. 

Whereas, the Modified Plan is a matter of public record in the custody of the City and 

County Clerk, and is available for public inspection during business hours of the City. 

Whereas, notice of the public hearing on the Modified Plan was published as required 

by Section 31-25-107(3) of the Act, at least thirty (30) days prior to the public hearing. 

Whereas, written notice of the public hearing was mailed to each property owner, 

business, and resident of the area included in the area of the Plan informing them of the 

public hearing at least thirty (30) days prior to the public hearing. 

Whereas, written notice of the public hearing, the Modified Plan and a detailed 

written description of the proposed modification described in this resolution, was mailed to 

each taxing entity that levies property taxes in the area of Plan, informing them of the public 

hearing at least thirty (30) days prior to the public hearing. 

Whereas, on July 8, 2013, the Broomfield Planning and Zoning Commission found that 

the Plan is in conformance with the 2005 Comprehensive Plan adopted by the City Council on 

October 25, 2005, which was the general plan for the development of the City as a whole at 

that time.  

Whereas, no action by the Land Use Review Commission is required for the Modified 

Plan as the Modified Plan only amends the boundary and does not otherwise change the the 

original 2013 Plan.  

Whereas, on November 1, 2016, the City Council adopted the Comprehensive Plan 

2016 Update, which is the current general plan for the development of the City as a whole. 

Whereas, on March 25, 2025, the City Council conducted a public hearing and reviewed 

the Modified Plan pursuant to the procedural and notice requirements of the Act. 

Whereas, the City Council has considered at the public hearing the evidence related to 

the Modified Plan together with staff recommendations, and has given appropriate weight to 

the evidence in making its findings.  

Page 2 

 



Now, therefore, be it resolved by the City Council of the City and County of Broomfield, 

Colorado: 

Section 1.   

The Plan is hereby modified to exclude the overlapping area now included within the 

Broomfield Town Square Urban Renewal Plan from the urban renewal area included in and 

subject to the provisions of the Plan, and the revised boundaries of the Modified Plan shall be 

the area described depicted and described in the Modified Plan.   

Section 2. 

The revised boundaries of the Modified Plan have been drawn as narrowly as the City Council 

determines feasible to accomplish the planning and development objectives of the Modified 

Plan and to protect the outstanding Financial Obligations of the Authority. 

Section 3. 

The City Council finds that the Modified Plan is in conformity with the Comprehensive Plan, 

which is the general plan of the City as a whole.  

Section 4. 

The City Council has made reasonable efforts to provide both published notice and written 

notice of the public hearing prescribed by Section 31-25-107(3) of the Act to all property 

owners, residents and owners of business concerns in the area included in the Plan at their 

last known addresses at least thirty (30) days prior to the public hearing on the Plan. 

Section 5. 

The Modified Plan shall not impair, jeopardize, or otherwise put at risk any Financial 

Obligations of the Authority 

Section 6. 

The Modified Plan for the Broomfield Plaza Civic Center Urban Renewal Area is hereby 

approved.  The revised boundaries in the Modified Plan shall replace the boundaries of the 

original plan area within the Plan. All other provisions of the Plan shall remain unchanged.  

   

Section 7. 

The Modified Plan approved by this Resolution is a matter of public record in the custody of 

the City and County Clerk, and is available for public inspection during business hours of the 

City; 

Page 3 

 



Section 8. 

This resolution is effective upon its approval by the City Council. 

 

  

 

Approved on March 25, 2025. 

 

The City and County of Broomfield, Colorado 

 

 

 

        

Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

       

Office of the City and County Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

NCR 
 

        

City and County Attorney 

Page 4 

 



1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 BROOMFIELD TOWN SQUARE URBAN 
RENEWAL PLAN 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City and County of Broomfield 
 
 
 
 
 
 

March 25, 2025 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

 
Urban Renewal Plan: Broomfield Town Square Urban Renewal 
Project 
 
1.0 PREFACE 
 
 1.1 Background 
 
This urban renewal plan (the “Plan”) is part of an ongoing comprehensive program to redevelop the west 
120th Avenue corridor area in the City and County of Broomfield (the “City”) in accordance with the 
Urban Renewal Law of the State of Colorado, Part 1 of Article 25 of Title 31, C.R.S. (the “Act”).  The 
program began with adoption by the City Council of the City of the Urban Renewal Plan for the 120th 
Avenue Gateway Corridor Urban Renewal Project (the “1995 Plan”) on November 28, 1995 by 
Resolution No. 153-95.  Implementation of the 1995 Plan was delayed by litigation during which the City 
Council adopted the West 120th Avenue Urban Renewal Plan on September 8, 1998 by Ordinance No. 
1362 (the “1998 Plan”).  After successful resolution of the litigation, the City Council adopted Ordinance 
No. 1784 on November 9, 2004 to consolidate the 1995 Plan and the 1998 Plan into the Urban Renewal 
Plan for the 120th Avenue Gateway Corridor Urban Renewal Project (the “2004 Plan”). 
 
Delays in such redevelopment efforts led to amendment of the 2004 Plan on August 13, 2013, by 
Ordinance 1978, to include the westerly portion of the 2004 Plan area into the Broomfield Plaza-Civic 
Center Urban Renewal Plan (the “2013 Plan”) and again to further reduce and concentrate efforts to 
eliminate existing conditions of blight into a more compact redevelopment area (the “Area”) included in 
this Plan.   
 
 1.2 Purpose 
 
The purpose of this Plan is to remedy and prevent conditions of blight and implement the provisions of 
the Comprehensive Plan 2016 Update (the “Comprehensive Plan”), the 2004 West 120th Avenue Corridor 
Sub-Area Plan (the “Sub-Area Plan”), and the 2008 Broomfield Civic Center Master Plan (the “Master 
Plan”) that apply in the Area.  The provisions of the Plan are intended to help provide important services 
to the Area, attract private investment, provide for the orderly development of the Area, and leverage 
public investment and funding mechanisms to provide necessary public infrastructure to serve the Area. 
 
The administration of the urban renewal project described in this Plan (the “Project”) and the 
implementation of the Plan shall be the responsibility of the Broomfield Urban Renewal Authority (the 
“Authority”).  The provisions of this Plan will enable the Authority to afford maximum opportunity for 
redevelopment of the Area by private enterprise as required by Section 107(4)(e) of the Act. 
 
2.0 URBAN RENEWAL AREA BOUNDARIES 
 
The Area in this Plan contains approximately 52.351 acres and is described and depicted in Exhibit A.  
The boundaries of the Area are drawn as narrowly as feasible to accomplish the planning and 
development objectives of the Plan. 
 
 
 



3 
 

3.0 SUMMARY OF ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA 
 
 3.1 2019-2020 Conditions Survey 
 
In June of 2019, the Authority contracted with Matrix Design Group, consultants experienced in 
conducting conditions surveys (the “Consultants”), to prepare a survey covering approximately 70 acres, 
including the Area included in this Plan.  The purpose of the survey was to establish whether conditions 
of blight, as defined in the Act, existed in the survey area.  The Consultants submitted a report entitled 
“Property Conditions Assessment (Blight Study)” completed in June 2019 and updated as of March 31, 
2021 (the “Conditions Survey”). Additionally, City staff confirmed the on-going presence of blight as of 
March 15, 2025. The Conditions Survey confirms that the Area contains conditions summarized in 
Section 3.2, below, that meet the definition of “Blighted Area” as defined in Section 103 of the Act. The 
Conditions Survey is incorporated herein by reference. 
 
 3.2 Summary of Conditions of Blight [Subject to confirmation] 
 
The following is a summary of the eight conditions of blight that exist in the Area, as more particularly 
set forth in the Conditions Survey: 
 
  3.2.1  Slum, Deteriorated, or Deteriorating Structures  
 
Buildings and structures south of 1st Avenue show signs of deterioration and disrepair including 
deteriorating concrete, peeling paint, damaged siding, rust, and general neglect.  
 
  3.2.2 Predominance of Defective or Inadequate Street Layout  
 
The layout and shape of the parcels within the Area, and the lack of public-access corridors, defective or 
inadequate vehicular traffic circulation throughout the Study Area is an issue.   
 
  3.2.3 Faulty Lot Layout in Relation to Size, Adequacy, Accessibility, or Usefulness  
 
Three large parcels of land included in the northern portion of the Area are odd-sized and shaped, 
requiring reconfiguration to provide adequate-sized properties for redevelopment. In addition, the 
identified parcel boundaries block access to developed parcels, divide man-made features, and include 
public rights of way within their boundaries. 
 
  3.2.4 Unsanitary or Unsafe Conditions  
 
The northern portion of the Area along the City Park Channel are within the 100- and 500-year 
floodplains, and several other conditions were documented in the Area. 
 
  3.2.5 Deterioration of Site or Other Improvements  
 
A majority of the parcels within the Area have conditions of deterioration that qualify as blight including 
deteriorating pavement, dead trees, unkempt landscaping, noxious weeds, and a general lack of 
maintenance.  
 
  3.2.6 Unusual Topography or Inadequate Public Improvements or Utilities  
 



4 
 

Incomplete public improvements necessary for development can include a lack of pavement, curbs/gutter, 
lighting, sidewalks, utilities, and parking. Many of the parcels in the northern portion of the Area lack 
adequate public improvements including the infrastructure necessary for development of the large, 
irregular-shaped parcels. 
 
  3.2.7 Environmental Contamination of Buildings or Property  
 
Environmental conditions include the presence or likely presence of contamination in the soils, water 
sources, or other locations within the Area. Matrix reviewed governmental records provided by 
Environmental Risk Information Systems (ERIS) to identify any potential sites with Recognized 
Environmental Conditions (REC)s or other areas of environmental concern. Matrix identified sites with a 
higher-than-average potential to be a source of contamination to soil and/or groundwater in the area.  
 
  3.2.8 The existence of health, safety, or welfare factors requiring high levels of 
municipal services or substantial physical underutilization or vacancy of sites, buildings, or other 
improvements  
 
Underutilization of parcels north of 1st Avenue is present within the Area. In addition, the major anchor 
tenant (formerly Safeway) is currently vacant and underutilized. 
 
 3.3 The presence of at least four conditions of blight conforms with the statutory requirement 
that the Area is a “Blighted Area” as defined in Section 103 of the Act, and upon designation as such by 
the City Council is appropriate for an urban renewal project as set forth in this Plan. 
 
4.0. GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF URBAN RENEWAL PROJECT 
 
The Plan implements the applicable goals and objectives of the following plans adopted and approved by 
the City Council that apply to and guide redevelopment of the Area included in this Plan: (a) the 
Comprehensive Plan, (b) the Sub-Area Plan, and (c) the Master Plan. 
 
The Conditions Survey identifies conditions that constitute “blight” as defined in the Act that remain in 
the Area.  The Plan is part of a comprehensive program to eliminate and prevent blight in the Area and in 
the larger area included in the Sub-Area Plan. The Authority and the City, with the cooperation of private 
enterprise and other public bodies, will undertake a program to eliminate the conditions of blight 
identified in the Conditions Survey while implementing the Comprehensive Plan, the Sub-Area Plan, and 
the Master Plan.   
 
5.0 URBAN RENEWAL PLAN GOALS AND THE PLAN’S RELATIONSHIP TO LOCAL AND 
REGIONAL OBJECTIVES 
 
 5.1 Goals 
 
The Plan has been adopted to achieve the following goals in the Area: 
 
  5.1.1 The Plan will implement applicable provisions of the Comprehensive Plan, Sub-
Area Plan, and Master Plan (if applicable) to insure the orderly growth and development of the 120th 
Avenue gateway corridor. 
 



5 
 

  5.1.2 Implementation of the Plan will eliminate and prevent conditions of blight in the 
Area.  
 
  5.1.3 Through the maximum possible participation of private enterprise and the 
cooperative efforts of the public sector, implementation of the Plan will eliminate and prevent economic 
deterioration in the Area and the community at large. 
 
  5.1.4 The Plan will assist in the mitigation and control of the danger from flooding in 
the Area as well as adjoining property and redevelopment areas. 
 
  5.1.5 The Plan will upgrade access, traffic, pedestrian and bicycle circulation, public 
utilities, public amenities, recreation and drainage in the Area in concert with similar improvements and 
amenities in adjoining redevelopment areas and the region as a whole, while ensuring that existing and 
proposed development is sensitive to the surrounding residential neighborhoods.  
 
  5.1.6 The Plan will help attract capital investment and small non-franchised businesses 
to provide unique services that encourage community connection science, engineering, the arts, and food 
and beverage offerings.  
 
  5.1.7 The Plan will promote infill development and redevelopment that contribute to 
the desired mix of land uses, including residential uses that provide opportunities for affordable housing.  
 
  5.1.8 The Plan will encourage an enlarged Community Park Pond, public plaza and 
pedestrian areas that include outdoor dining, public art, and entertainment areas.  
 
  5.1.9 Implementation of the Plan will provide for the redevelopment of commercial 
land, including repurposing of the vacant Safeway building into a mix of uses that may include retail 
spaces, restaurants, community, and public areas.  
 
  5.1.10 The Plan will create a civic and town center district that serves as a key focal 
point for entertainment, business, cultural, community and civic activities. 
 
 5.2 Relationship to Local and Regional Objectives 
 
The Plan conforms to and is designed to implement the Comprehensive Plan, including the Sub-Area Plan 
and Master Plan as well as regional objectives. 
 
  5.2.1 The Plan will promote and encourage commercial, mixed use and employment-
related retail developments in the Area, an objective of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
  5.2.2 The Plan will implement the provisions of the City’s master drainage and flood 
improvement program, which is part of regional efforts to control flooding and promote a comprehensive 
drainage program to serve the entire region. 
 
  5.2.3 Transportation improvements promoted by the Plan are consistent with 
intergovernmental efforts to fund, plan, design, and improve the 120th Avenue corridor through the City 
and the northern metropolitan area. 
 



6 
 

  5.2.4 Implementation of the Plan is consistent with regional efforts to create 
public/private partnerships to provide employment and generate revenues for both sectors. 
 
  5.2.5 The improvement of internal street patterns in the Area will improve and ease 
traffic and circulation problems in the City and the region. 
 
  5.2.6 The Plan will provide the means for the orderly redevelopment of the Area by 
resolving existing land use conflicts. 
 
  5.2.7 The Plan will provide a means of mitigating land use conflicts with adjoining 
residential areas through implementation of planning and design standards for public and private 
improvements. 
 
  5.2.8 The Plan promotes the development and expansion of safe and adequate 
pedestrian access and public transportation. 
 
  5.2.9 The Plan implements and enhances recreational and community facilities by 
providing additions to the City trails system. 
 
  5.2.10 The Plan enhances and upgrades visual corridors designated in the 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
6.0 LAND USE REGULATIONS AND BUILDING REQUIREMENTS 
 
The Plan will provide a comprehensive and unified plan to promote and encourage high quality 
redevelopment of the Area by private enterprise. The land use and building requirements contained in 
City codes and ordinances and the provisions of this Plan will control in the Area.  In implementing the 
Plan and considering all proposals for development and redevelopment, the City and the Authority will 
also implement and apply policies and standards contained in the Sub-Area Plan, and the Master Plan (if 
applicable).  
 
The Plan will implement the provisions of Section 31-25-107(8) of the Act, which provides that, upon 
approval of the Plan by the City Council, the provisions of the Plan shall be controlling with respect to 
land area, land use, design, building requirements, timing or procedure applicable to the property covered 
by the Plan.   
 
All proposals for development and redevelopment within the Plan Area are to be approved through the 
City’s development review process. No action shall be required by the Authority, except in instances that 
are inconsistent with this Plan. 
 
 6.1 Uses – For Properties Included Within the Sub-Area Plan 
 
  6.1.1 Permitted Uses.  Except where approved Site Development or PUD plans are in 
effect, permitted uses for properties included in the Sub-Area Plan shall be those uses permitted under the 
Sub-Area Plan “Permitted Uses by Land Use Designation” table and the associated Land Use Map. 
 
 6.2 Uses – For Properties Not Included Within the Sub-Area Plan 
 



7 
 

  6.2.1 Permitted Uses. Permitted uses for properties in the Area and not in the Sub-Area 
Plan shall be those uses allowed in the underlying zoning district of the Broomfield Municipal Code; 
provided, however, except where an approved Site Development or PUD plan is in effect and as may be 
permitted in Section 6.2.3, the following uses in Section 6.2.2 are not permitted in the Area. 
 
  6.2.2 Prohibited Uses.  
 
   (1) Dairy processing and distribution; 
 
   (2) Plumbing, electrical and carpenter shops; 
 
   (3) Tractor, trailer, recreational vehicle, heavy machinery or farm   
    equipment storage sales or service; 
 
   (4) Manufacture or bulk storage of oil, gasoline, or petroleum; 
 
   (5) Mini-storage or outdoor storage; 

 
   (6) Animal kennels; 
 
   (7) Chemical manufacturing plants; 
 
   (8) Cement, concrete, lime or gypsum manufacturing; 
 
   (9) Fertilizer manufacturing; 
 
   (10) Aggregate plants; 
 
   (11) Commercial manufacturing or storage of hazardous materials such as  
    gasoline, flammable liquids and gases and industrial waste products; 
 
   (12) Outdoor storage of rubbish, refuse, wastes, junk or salvage yards,  
    automobiles, shipping containers, or vegetable or animal by-products; 
 
   (13) Outdoor storage of equipment and vehicles; 
 
   (14) Landfills, sewage treatment or transfer stations; 

 
   (15) Recreational vehicle storage or outdoor storage. 

 
  6.2.3 Uses by Special Review. Unless prohibited by an approved PUD Plan, the 
following uses may be permitted upon special review and included in an approved site development plan: 
 
   (1) Uses with drive through window service, including restaurants and  
    banks; 
 
   (2) Automotive uses, including gas stations, car washes, service and repair. 

  
 



8 
 

7.0 PROJECT ACTIVITIES 
 
 7.1 Land Acquisition 
 
In order to carry out this Plan, the Authority may exercise any and all of its rights and powers under the 
Act and any other applicable law, ordinance or regulation.  The Authority may acquire any interest in 
property by any manner available, except the Authority is not authorized to acquire property by exercise 
of the power of eminent domain.  The Authority may acquire property for the following reasons:  To 
eliminate or prevent conditions of blight; to carry out one or more objectives of the Plan; to assemble 
property for redevelopment by private enterprise; for needed public improvements and for any other 
lawful purpose authorized by the Plan, the Act or other applicable law. 
 
 7.2 Relocation 
 
If acquisition of property displaces any individual, family or business, the Authority may assist such party 
in finding another location, and may, but is not obligated to, make relocation payments to eligible 
residents and businesses in such amounts and under such terms and conditions as it may determine; 
provided, however, the Authority shall make relocation payments if and to the extent that such payments 
may be required by the Act or any other applicable law. 
 
 7.3 Demolition, Clearance and Site Preparation 
 
If the Authority acquires property, it may demolish and clear, or contract to demolish and clear, those 
buildings, structures and other improvements from property it acquires if such buildings, structures and 
other improvements are not to be rehabilitated in accordance with this Plan.  In addition, the Authority 
may contract with and reimburse owners or developers of property for demolition, clearance, or other site 
preparation activities, including rough and finished site grading and other site preparation services as part 
of a comprehensive redevelopment program. 
 
 7.4 Property Management  
 
During such time as any property is owned by the Authority, such property shall be under the 
management and control of the Authority and may be rented or leased by it pending disposition for 
redevelopment or rehabilitation. 
 
 7.5 Public Improvements 
 
All public improvements shall comply with the applicable provisions of this Plan, the Sub-Area Plan and 
the Master Plan (if applicable), with respect to the design and construction of all public improvements and 
infrastructure, including criteria and standards to address street, streetscape, utility, drainage and flood 
problems in the Area as well as other elements deemed necessary by the Authority to eliminate and 
prevent conditions of blight and to carry out the provisions of the Act and the Plan. 
 
 7.6 Land Disposition, Redevelopment and Rehabilitation 
 
Purchasers or owners of property within the Area will be obligated to develop, redevelop or rehabilitate 
such property in accordance with the applicable provisions of this Plan, the Sub-Area Plan, and the 
Master Plan (if applicable).  
 



9 
 

The Authority may dispose of property it acquires by means of a reasonable competitive bidding 
procedure it establishes in accordance with the Act and pursuant to redevelopment agreements between 
the Authority and such purchasers. 
 
The Authority may also enter into owner participation agreements with property owners in the Area for 
the development, redevelopment or rehabilitation of their property.  Such agreements will provide for 
such participation and assistance as the Authority may elect to provide to such owners. 
 
All such redevelopment, owner participation and other agreements shall contain, at a minimum, 
provisions requiring: 
 
  7.6.1 Compliance with the Plan, Sub-Area Plan, and the Master Plan (if applicable), 
and City codes and ordinances. 
 
  7.6.2 Covenants to begin and complete development, construction or rehabilitation of 
both public and private improvements within a period of time deemed to be reasonable by the Authority; 
 
  7.6.3 The financial commitments of each party (but nothing herein shall obligate the 
Authority to make any such financial commitment to any party or transaction). 
 
 7.7 Cooperation and Other Agreements 
 
For the purposes of planning and carrying out this Plan, the City and the Authority are required to comply 
with the requirements of HB 15-1348, which includes entering into one or more agreements with the 
entities that levy ad valorem property taxes in the Area for the purpose of addressing impacts, if any, on 
the services or revenues of any taxing entity associated solely with this Plan. The Authority is authorized 
to cooperate with and provide financial assistance (if approved by the Authority) to any special districts 
that are engaged in activities and undertakings that promote the redevelopment of the Area in accordance 
with this Plan. 
 
Without limitation, such agreements may include project financing and implementation; design, location 
and construction of public improvements; provision of necessary services to the Area; and any other 
matters required to carry out this Project.  It is recognized that cooperation with the City, other 
municipalities and other public and private bodies may be required to coordinate such issues as the 
design, construction and timing of public and private improvements within and outside of the Area, and to 
provide services to properly and efficiently carry out the goals and objectives of this Plan.  Cooperation 
agreements addressing such issues are deemed necessary and incidental to the planning and execution of 
the Project. 
 
 7.8 Other Project Undertakings and Activities 
 
Other Project undertakings and activities deemed necessary by the Authority to carry the Plan may be 
undertaken and performed by the Authority or pursuant to agreements with other parties or public bodies 
in accordance with the authorization of the Act and any and all applicable laws. 
 
8.0 PROJECT FINANCING 
 
The Authority is authorized to finance this Project by any method authorized by the Act or any other 
applicable law, including without limitation, appropriations, loans or advances from the City; federal 



10 
 

loans and grants; state loans and grants; interest income; pay as you go arrangements; annual 
appropriation agreements; agreements with public and private parties or entities; sale of securities; 
property and sales tax increments; loans, advances and grants from any other available source. 
 
Any and all financing methods legally available to the City, the Authority, any private developer, 
redeveloper or owner may be used to finance in whole or in part any and all costs, including without 
limitation, the cost of public improvements, described or anticipated in the Plan or in any manner related 
or incidental to the development of the Area.  Such methods may be combined to finance all or any part 
of the Project.  Any financing method authorized by the Plan or by any applicable law, including without 
limitation, the Act, may be used to pay the principal of and interest on and to establish reserves for 
indebtedness (whether funded, refunded, assumed or otherwise) incurred by the Authority or the City to 
finance the Project in whole or in part. 
 
The Authority is authorized to issue notes, bonds or any other financing instruments or documents in 
amounts sufficient to finance all or part of the Project.  The Authority is authorized to borrow funds and 
to create indebtedness in carrying out this Plan.  The principal, interest and any premiums due on or in 
connection with such indebtedness may be paid from tax increments or any other funds available to the 
Authority. 
 
The Project may be financed by the Authority under the tax allocation financing provisions of the Act.  
Under the tax allocation method of financing the Project, property taxes levied by each and every public 
body after the effective date of the approval of this Plan upon taxable property in the Area for the benefit 
of each such public body or all or a portion of municipal sales taxes collected within the Area, or both 
such taxes, shall be divided for a period not to exceed twenty-five (25) years after the effective date of the 
adoption of this tax allocation provision, as follows: 
 
 8.1 Base Amount 
 
That portion of the taxes which are produced by the levy at the rate fixed each year by or for each such 
public body upon the valuation for assessment of taxable property in the Area last certified prior to the 
effective date of approval of the Plan or, as to an area later added to the Area, the effective date of the 
modification of the Plan, and that portion of municipal sales taxes collected within the boundaries of the 
Area in the twelve-month period ending on the last day of the month prior to the effective date of the 
approval of the Plan, or both such portions, shall be paid into the funds of each such public body as are all 
other taxes collected by or for said public body. 
 
 8.2 Increment Amount 
 
That portion of said property taxes in excess of such base amount and, subject to City Council approval,  
all or any portion of said municipal sales taxes in excess of such base amount, or both, shall be allocated 
to and, when collected, paid into a special fund of the Authority to pay the principal of, the interest on, 
and any premiums due in connection with the bonds of, loans or advances to, or indebtedness incurred by 
(whether funded, refunded, assumed or otherwise) the Authority for financing or refinancing, in whole or 
in part, the Project. 
 
Unless and until the total valuation for assessment of the taxable property in the Area exceeds the base 
valuation for assessment of the taxable property in the Area, all of the taxes levied upon taxable property 
in the Area shall be paid into the funds of the respective public bodies.  Unless and until all or the relevant 



11 
 

part of the municipal sales tax collections in the Area exceed the base year municipal sales tax collections 
in the Area, all such sales tax collections shall be paid into the funds of the City. 
 
When such bonds, loans, advances and indebtedness, including interest thereon and any premiums due in 
connection therewith, have been paid, all taxes upon the taxable property in the Area shall be paid into the 
funds of the respective public bodies and all such municipal sales tax collections in the Area shall be paid 
into the funds of the City. 
 
The increment portion of the taxes, as described in this Section 8.2, may be irrevocably pledged by the 
Authority for the payment of the principal of, the interest on, and any premiums due in connection with 
such bonds, loans, advances and indebtedness incurred by the Authority to finance the Project. 
 
9.0 CHANGES IN APPROVED PLAN 
 
This Plan may be modified pursuant to the provisions of the Act governing such modifications, including 
Section 31-25-107, C.R.S. 
 
10.0 MINOR EXCEPTIONS OR VARIATIONS 
 
In specific cases the City Manager may allow minor exceptions or variations from the provisions of the 
Plan if the City Manager determines that literal compliance or enforcement of the provisions of the Plan 
would constitute an unreasonable restriction, limitation, or hardship beyond the intent and purpose of the 
Plan. 
  



12 
 

EXHIBIT A 
(Legal Description) 

 
 
A PARCEL OF LAND SITUATE IN THE SOUTHWEST ONE-QUARTER (SW1/4) OF SECTION 36, 
TOWNSHIP 1 SOUTH, RANGE 69 WEST OF THE 6TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN; AND BEING, AND ALL 
OF LOT 1 AND LOT 2, BROOMFIELD CITY CENTER SUBDIVISION FILING NO. 3, REPLAT A, AND ALL 
OF LOT 1 AND LOT 2, BLOCK 1, BROOMFIELD CITY CENTER SUBDIVISION FILING NO 3, REPLAT 
B, AND ALL OF LOT 1, LOT 2, LOT 3, LOT 4 AND LOT 5, ALL OF BLOCK 1, THE SAFEWAY 
MARKETPLACE SUBDIVISION FILING NO. 2, AND THE REMAINDER OF THE METES AND BOUNDS 
PROPERTY DESCRIBED UNDER RECEPTION NO. 19491-1972,  AND A PORTION OF SPADER WAY, 
A PORTION OF EAST 1ST AVENUE AND A PORTION OF MAIN STREET, AND BEING MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWESTERLY CORNER OF SAID LOT 1, BLOCK 1, THE SAFEWAY 
MARKETPLACE SUBDIVISION FILING NO. 2; THENCE S89°34'39"W, 100.00 FEET TO A POINT ON 
THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF MAIN STREET; THENCE ALONG THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY 
LINE OF MAIN STREET, N00°25'21"W, 1,651.43 FEET; THENCE N89°34'39"E, 100.00 FEET TO THE 
NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE REMAINDER OF THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED UNDER RECEPTION 
NO. 19491-1972; THENCE S60°56'52"E, 287.14 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EXTERIOR OF LOT 1, 
BROOMFIELD CITY CENTER SUBDIVISION FILING NO. 2; THENCE ALONG THE EXTERIOR OF SAID 
LOT 1, BROOMFIELD CITY CENTER SUBDIVISION FILING NO. 2 FOR THE NEXT SEVEN (7) 
COURSES;  
1)    S00°25'17"E, 62.98 FEET; 
2)    S48°25'40"E, 192.03 FEET; 
3)    S60°07'42"E, 270.00 FEET; 
4)    S75°17'54"E, 165.00 FEET; 
5)    N89°57'07"E, 525.00 FEET; 
6)    S33°01'31"E, 124.96 FEET; 
7)  N89°56'39"E, 69.94 FEET TO A NON-TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 
250.00 FEET, AND A LONG CHORD OF S21°48'43"W, 125.00 FEET BEING A POINT ON THE 
EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SPADER WAY; 
THENCE ALONG THE EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID SPADER WAY FOR THE NEXT 
EIGHT (8) COURSES; 
1) SOUTHERLY, A DISTANCE OF 126.34 FEET ALONG SAID NON-TANGENT CURVE TO THE 
RIGHT THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 28°57'21"; 
2)    S36°17'23"W, 90.39 FEET TO A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 150.00 FEET AND A 
LONG CHORD OF S18°05'13"W, 93.71 FEET; 
3)    SOUTHERLY, A DISTANCE OF 95.31 FEET ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT THROUGH A 
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 36°24'20"; 
4)    S00°06'57"E, 103.47 FEET TO A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 270.00 FEET AND 
A LONG CHORD OF S04°50'50"E, 44.54 FEET; 
5)    SOUTHERLY, A DISTANCE OF 44.59 FEET ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE LEFT THROUGH A 
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 09°27'47"; 
6)    S09°34'44"E, 98.00 FEET TO A CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 369.97 FEET AND 
A LONG CHORD OF S04°50'35"E, 61.09 FEET; 
7)    SOUTHERLY, A DISTANCE OF 61.16 FEET ALONG SAID CURVE TO THE RIGHT THROUGH A 
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 09°28'19"; 
8)    S00°06'25"E, 455.10 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF EAST 1ST 
AVENUE; 
THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF EAST 1ST AVENUE, S89°53'39"W, 598.47 FEET 
TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 3, BLOCK 1, THE SAFEWAY MARKETPLACE SUBDIVISION 
FILING NO. 2; THENCE S00°04'41"E, 274.99 FEET TO A SOUTHEASTERLY CORNER OF LOT 3, 
BLOCK 1, THE SAFEWAY MARKETPLACE SUBDIVISION FILING NO. 2; THENCE N89°53'39"E, 40.00 



13 
 

FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 4, BLOCK 1, THE SAFEWAY MARKETPLACE 
SUBDIVISION FILING NO. 2; THENCE S00°04'41"E, 259.77 FEET TO THE SOUTHEASTERLY CORNER 
OF LOT 4, BLOCK 1, THE SAFEWAY MARKETPLACE SUBDIVISION FILING NO. 2; THENCE 
S89°53'39"W, 564.38 FEET TO A SOUTHERLY CORNER OF LOT 2, BLOCK 1, THE SAFEWAY 
MARKETPLACE SUBDIVISION FILING NO. 2; THENCE N88°59'52"W, 190.99 FEET TO A SOUTHERLY 
CORNER OF LOT 5, BLOCK 1, THE SAFEWAY MARKETPLACE SUBDIVISION FILING NO. 2;  
THENCE N00°25'21"W, 10.00 FEET TO A CORNER OF LOT 5, BLOCK 1, THE SAFEWAY 
MARKETPLACE SUBDIVISION FILING NO. 2; THENCE N88°59'52"W, 19.99 FEET TO A CORNER OF 
LOT 5, BLOCK 1, THE SAFEWAY MARKETPLACE SUBDIVISION FILING NO. 2; THENCE N00°25'21"W, 
520.69 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  
CONTAINING 2,280,403 SQUARE FEET OR 52.351 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.  
 
BASIS OF BEARINGS:  BEARINGS USED HEREIN ARE BASED ON THE LINE BETWEEN 
BROOMFIELD GPS NO. 1 AND NGS B413, BOTH CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD CONTROL 
MONUMENTS, BEING S28°52'36"W USING STATE PLANE COLORADO COORDINATES - NORTH 
ZONE (US SURVEY FEET), AS MONUMENTED ON THE SOUTH BY A 5" NGS LOGO CAP NORTHEAST 
OF THE INTERSECTION OF W. 120TH AVE AND MAIN STREET, AND ON THE NORTH BY A 
BROOMFIELD GPS CAP IN THE SIDEWALK WEST OF THE INTERSECTION OF DESCOMBES DRIVE 
AND LAMAR STREET. 
  



14 
 

 

 



 
BROOMFIELD PLAZA-CIVIC CENTER URBAN RENEWAL AREA 

(Amended Plan Area - Legal Description and Depiction) 

 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN SECTIONS 35 AND 36, TOWNSHIP 1 
SOUTH, RANGE 69 WEST, AND SECTION 31, TOWNSHIP 1 SOUTH RANGE 68 WEST, OF THE 6TH 
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD, STATE OF COLORADO, DESCRIBED 
AS FOLLOWS: 
NOTE: ALL PARCEL NUMBERS CITED IN THIS DESCRIPTION ARE BROOMFIELD COUNTY 
ASSESSOR PARCEL NUMBERS (JUNE 2021), HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AS PN. ALL 
REFERENCES TO THE BOUNDARY LINE OF THE CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD ARE AS IT 
EXISTS IN JUNE 2021 ACCORDING TO THE BROOMFIELD COUNTY ASSESSOR. 
BEGINNING AT THE INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF EAST 1ST AVENUE 
AND THE EXTENDED EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SPADER WAY; 
THENCE NORTHERLY, ALONG THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SPADER WAY, TO THE NORTH 
LINE OF PN 157536300004; 
THENCE EASTERLY, ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF PN 157536300004, TO THE WEST LINE OF PN 
157536300001; 
THENCE NORTHERLY, ALONG THE WEST LINE OF PN 157536300001, TO THE NORTHWEST 
CORNER THEREOF; 
THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG A LINE THAT LIES SOUTHEAST OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE 
NORTHWEST LINE OF PN 157536205001, TO THE EAST LINE THEREOF; 
THENCE SOUTHERLY, ALONG THE EAST LINES OF PN 157536205001 AND PN 157536300001, TO 
THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF PN 157536429005; 
THENCE EASTERLY, ALONG THE NORTH LINES OF PN 157536429005, PN 157536429004 AND PN 
157536400004, TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF PN 157536400004; 
THENCE EASTERLY, TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF PN 157331300010; 
THENCE EASTERLY, ALONG THE NORTH LINES OF PN 157331300010 AND PN 157331310007, TO 
THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF PN 157331310007; 
THENCE SOUTHERLY, ALONG THE EAST LINES OF PN 157331310007, PN 157331310008 (2013 
ASSESSORS PARCEL), PN 157331310003 157331310008 (2013 ASSESSORS PARCEL), AND PN 
157331310004157331310008 (2013 ASSESSORS PARCEL), TO THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 
OF WEST 120TH AVENUE; 
THENCE WESTERLY, ALONG THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF WEST 120TH AVENUE, TO THE 
EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SHERIDAN BOULEVARD; 
THENCE NORTHERLY, ALONG THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SHERIDAN BOULEVARD, TO 
THE EASTERLY EXTENSION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF PN 157536429004; 
THENCE WESTERLY, ALONG THE SOUTH LINES OF PN 157536429004 AND PN 157536429005, TO 
THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF PN 157536410013; 
THENCE SOUTHERLY, ALONG THE WEST LINES OF PN 157536410013 AND PN 157536410014, TO 
THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF PN 157536429001; 
THENCE EASTERLY, ALONG THE NORTH LINES OF PN 157536429001 AND PN 157536429002, TO 
THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF PN 157536429002; 
THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY, TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF PN 157536410004; 
THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY, ALONG THE SOUTHWEST LINE OF PN 157536410004, TO THE 
SOUTHWEST CORNER THEREOF; 
THENCE WESTERLY, ALONG THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF WEST 120TH AVENUE, TO THE 
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF PN 157536410003; 
THENCE NORTHWESTERLY, ALONG THE NORTHEAST LINE OF PN 157536410003, TO THE 
NORTHEAST CORNER THEREOF; 
THENCE WESTERLY, ALONG THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF EAST IST AVENUE, TO THE 
NORTHWEST CORNER OF PN 157536413001; 
THENCE WESTERLY, TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF PN 157536304001 ; 



THENCE WESTERLY, ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF PN 157536304001, TO THE NORTHWEST 
CORNER THEREOF; 
THENCE WESTERLY, ALONG THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF EAST 1ST AVENUE, TO THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING, CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD, STATE OF COLORADO. 



W
120th

Ave

Sheridan Blvd
PrintD

ate:12/28/2021
Path:G

:\M
y
D
rive\C

om
m
unity

D
evelopm

entD
epartm

ent\G
IS
\M
ap_P

roduction\Standard_M
aps\U

rban_R
enew

al_A
rea\Proposed_A

m
endm

ents\Broom
field

P
laza

-
C
ivic

C
enter\Proposed_Broom

field
Plaza-C

ivic
C
enterAm

endm
ent.m

xd

TH
E
C
ITY

A
N
D
C
O
U
N
TY

O
F
B
R
O
O
M
FIELD

Proposed
B
room

field
Plaza/CivicCenterU

RA
-A

m
endm

ent

.
0

0.075
0.15

0.0375
M
iles

BR
O
O
M
FIE

LD
C
ITY

A
N
D
C
O
U
N
TY

LIM
ITS

Proposed
B
room

field
P
laza

C
ivic

C
enterU

R
A

Broom
field

P
arcels



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
  
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                         

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

  

 

 

Property Conditions Assessment 
 (Blight Study)  

Broomfield Civic Center 
Broomfield, Colorado 

June 2019 

Prepared by: 

Prepared for: 

DRAFT REPORT 



Broomfield Civic Center Property Conditions Assessment 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

No document content on this page 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Broomfield Civic Center Property Conditions Assessment 
 

  

 

 

Table of Contents 

Section 1: Project Overview ..................................................................................... 1 

Section 2: Colorado Urban Renewal Statutes .......................................................... 5 

Section 3: Conditions Indicative of the Presence of Blight ...................................... 9 

Section 4: Study Area Location, Definition, and Description ................................. 13 

Section 5: Survey Findings ...................................................................................... 15 

Section 6: Property Conditions Assessment Summary and Conclusion ................. 29 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Broomfield Civic Center Property Conditions Assessment 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

No document content on this page 



Broomfield Civic Center Property Conditions Assessment 
 

Matrix    |   1 
 

 

 

Section 1: Project Overview  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The City of Broomfield has requested that Matrix Design Group, Inc. (Matrix) 
complete a Property Conditions Assessment (also known as a “Conditions Survey” 
or “Blight Study”) for the area surrounding and south of the Broomfield Civic Center 
located in Broomfield, Colorado. This Assessment is an examination and analysis of 
physical conditions identified within a defined geographic area to determine if the 
area qualifies as “blighted” within the meaning of Colorado Urban Renewal Law 
under the 2016 Colorado Revised Statute (CRS Title 31, Article 25, Part 1 (CRS § 31-
25-101 et seq). 

The area assessed as part of this Blight Study is composed of more than 70 acres of 
land north and south of 1st Avenue between Spader Way/Lamar Street and Main 
Street and includes twelve complete parcels of land and one partial parcel of land 
identified by the Broomfield County Assessor’s Office. The boundary area (Study 
Area) for the current Blight Study is included on Figure 1.1. 

For the Study Area to qualify as a blighted area, the presence of at least four factors 
of blight (out of a possible eleven) must be identified. These factors are indicators 
of substantially impaired or arrested growth of the municipality, retardation of the 
provision of housing accommodations, economic or social liability, and can be 
considered a menace to the public health, safety, morals, or welfare of the area.   
CRS § 31-25-103 (2) 

This assessment identified conditions within the Study Area to qualify a total of 
eight blight factors including the following: 

• Slum, deteriorated, or deteriorating structures 
• Predominance of defective or inadequate street layout 
• Faulty lot layout in relation to size, adequacy, accessibility, or usefulness 
• Unsanitary or unsafe conditions 
• Deterioration of site or other improvements 
• Unusual topography or inadequate public improvements or utilities 
• Environmental contamination of buildings or property 
• The existence of health, safety, or welfare factors requiring high levels of 

municipal services or substantial physical underutilization or vacancy of 
sites, buildings, or other improvements.   

Based on this Conditions Assessment prepared in accordance with the Colorado 
Urban Renewal statute, the Broomfield Civic Center qualifies as a blighted area. 



Broomfield Civic Center Property Conditions Assessment 
 

Matrix    |    2 

 

 

Figure 1.1 – Study Area Boundary

 

Methodology 
The Conditions Assessment includes data collection for conditions of blight (see 
Sections 2 and 3 for what constitutes conditions of blight) which is accomplished 
through several means. For those blight conditions that could be identified by 
visual observation and by the use of maps and aerial photography, Matrix 
conducted a field survey in June 2019. For those blight conditions that are not 



Broomfield Civic Center Property Conditions Assessment 
 

Matrix    |   3 
 

 

 

observable in the field (such as traffic data, crime statistics, etc.), blight condition 
data was obtained through research of numerous sources.  

The defined geographic area (identified for purposes of this Blight Study as the 
“Study Area” or the “Broomfield Civic Center” area) examined in this Conditions 
Assessment lies entirely within the City and County of Broomfield’s municipal 
boundaries. In addition to the parceled land, unparceled properties including the 
1st Avenue and Lamar Street Right of Ways (ROW)s is present within the Study Area.  

Previous Blight Studies 
In June 2013, Ricker Cunningham completed the Broomfield Plaza Civic Center 
Conditions Survey (2013 Civic Center Blight Study) that included the northern 
portion of the current Study Area boundary (north of 1st Avenue) as well as 
additional land east of the current Study Area boundary. The 2013 Blight Study 
identified 8 factors of blight and concluded that identified blight was “present to a 
degree that appeared likely to have a significant negative impact on the public’s 
safety and welfare and impede the ability for sound growth and development.” 

Because of the age of this historic Blight Survey and incompatible size of the 2013 
survey area versus the current Study Area, this current Blight Study will not attempt 
to corroborate or validate the historical findings of the 2013 Civic Center Blight 
Study.  

A second Blight Study in the area was completed by Ricker Cunningham, also in 
June 2013. The Amended West 120th Avenue Conditions Survey (2013 Amended 
120th Avenue Blight Study) surveyed parcels of land along 120th Avenue that 
included the southeast portion of the current Study Area. Ricker Cunningham 
identified 7 factors of blight and concluded that the blight factors were “present to 
a degree that appeared likely to have a significant negative impact on the public’s 
safety and welfare and impede the ability for sound growth and development.” 

Again, because the 2013 Conditions Survey area boundary is incompatible with the 
current size of the Study Area, this Blight Study will not attempt to corroborate or 
validate the historical findings of the 2013 Amended 120th Avenue Blight Study. 

Figure 1.2 outlines the previous Blight Study Boundaries in relation to the current 
Study Area boundary. 

 

 

 

 



Broomfield Civic Center Property Conditions Assessment 
 

Matrix    |    4 

 

 

Figure 1.2:  Previous Blight Study Areas 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Broomfield Civic Center Property Conditions Assessment 
 

Matrix    |   5 
 

 

 

Section 2: Colorado Urban Renewal Statutes  
 

In CRS 31-25 (§ 31-25-101 et seq.), the legislature has declared that an area of blight 
“constitutes a serious and growing menace, injurious to the public health, safety, 
morals, and welfare of the residents of the state in general and municipalities 
thereof; that the existence of such areas contributes substantially to the spread of 
disease and crime, constitutes an economic and social liability, substantially 
impairs or arrests the sound growth of municipalities, retards the provision of 
housing accommodations, aggravates traffic problems and impairs or arrests the 
elimination of traffic hazards and the improvement of traffic facilities; and that the 
prevention and elimination of slums and blight is a matter of public policy and 
statewide concern….” CRS § 31-25-102. 

Under the Urban Renewal Law, the term “blighted area” describes an area with an 
array of issues, including health and social deficiencies, and physical deterioration 
Colo. Rev. Stat. § 31-25-103(2). Before remedial action can be taken, however, the 
Urban Renewal Law requires a finding by the appropriate governing body that an 
area such as the Study Area constitutes a blighted area. CRS § 31-25-107(1). 

For purposes of this assessment, the definition of a blighted area is articulated in 
the Colorado Urban Renewal statute as follows: 

 “Blighted area” means an area that, in its present condition and use and, by reason 
of the presence of at least four of the following factors, substantially impairs or 
arrests the sound growth of the municipality, retards the provision of housing 
accommodations, or constitutes an economic or social liability, and is a menace to 
the public health, safety, morals, or welfare: 

a. Slum, deteriorated, or deteriorating structures; 

b. Predominance of defective or inadequate street layout; 

c. Faulty lot layout in relation to size, adequacy, accessibility, or usefulness; 

d. Unsanitary or unsafe conditions; 

e. Deterioration of site or other improvements; 

f. Unusual topography or inadequate public improvements or utilities; 

g. Defective or unusual conditions of title rendering the title non-marketable; 

h. The existence of conditions that endanger life or property by fire or other 
causes; 

i. Buildings that are unsafe or unhealthy for persons to live or work in 
because of building code violations, dilapidation, deterioration, defective 
design, physical construction, or faulty or inadequate facilities; 



Broomfield Civic Center Property Conditions Assessment 
 

Matrix    |    6 

 

j. Environmental contamination of buildings or property; or 

k. (identified as k.5 in the statute) The existence of health, safety, or welfare 
factors requiring high levels of municipal services or substantial physical 
underutilization or vacancy of sites, buildings, or other improvements; or 

l. if there is no objection by the property owner or owners and the tenant or 
tenants of such owner or owners, if any, to the inclusion of such property 
in an urban renewal area, ‘blighted area’ also means an area that, in its 
present condition and use and, by reason of the presence of any one of the 
factors specified in paragraphs (a) to (k) of this subsection (2), substantially 
impairs or arrests the sound growth of the municipality, retards the 
provision of housing accommodations, or constitutes an economic or social 
liability, and is a menace to the public health, safety, morals, or welfare. 
For purposes of this paragraph (l), the fact that an owner of an interest in 
such property does not object to the inclusion of such property in the urban 
renewal area does not mean that the owner has waived any rights of such 
owner in connection with laws governing condemnation. 

The statute also states a separate requirement for the number of blight factors that 
must be present if private property is to be acquired by eminent domain. CRS § 31-
25-105 .5(5), paragraph (a.) states, “‘Blighted area’ shall have the same meaning as 
set forth in section 31-25-103 (2); except that, for purposes of this section only, 
‘blighted area’ means an area that, in its present condition and use and, by reason 
of the presence of at least five of the factors specified in section 31-25-103 (2)(a) 
to (2)(l)…” 

In any case where the acquisition of property by eminent domain by an authority 
displaces individuals, families, or business concerns, the authority shall make 
reasonable efforts to relocate such individuals, families, or business concerns 
within the urban renewal area, where such relocation is consistent with the uses 
provided in the urban renewal plan, or in areas within reasonable proximity of, or 
comparable to, the original location of such individuals, families, or business 
concerns. 

Thus, the state statutes require, depending on the circumstances, that a minimum 
of one (if no objections by owner or tenant), four (standard number of blight 
factors required), or five (acquisition by eminent domain) blight factors be present 
for an area to be considered a “blighted area.” 

Several principles have been developed by Colorado courts to guide the 
determination of whether an area constitutes a blighted area under the Urban 
Renewal Law. First, the absence of widespread violation of building and health 
codes does not, by itself, preclude a finding of blight. According to the courts, “the 
definition of ‘blighted area’ contained in [the Urban Renewal Law] is broad and 



Broomfield Civic Center Property Conditions Assessment 
 

Matrix    |   7 
 

 

 

encompasses not only those areas containing properties so dilapidated as to justify 
condemnation as nuisances, but also envisions the prevention of deterioration.” 
CRS § 31-25-103. 

Second, the presence of one well-maintained building does not defeat a 
determination that an area constitutes a blighted area. Normally, a determination 
of blight is based upon an area “taken as a whole,” and not on a building-by-
building, parcel-by-parcel, or block-by-block basis. CRS § 31-25-103. 

This report makes a recommendation as to whether the Study Area qualifies as a 
blighted area based on the number of blight factors identified during the 
Assessment.  As discussed in the following sections, eight of the eleven factors of 
blight have been identified within the Study Area indicating that the Broomfield 
Civic Center qualifies as a blighted area in all scenarios. 

 



Broomfield Civic Center Property Conditions Assessment 
 

Matrix    |    8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

No document content on this page 



Broomfield Civic Center Property Conditions Assessment 
 

Matrix    |    9 
 

 

 

Section 3: Conditions Indicative of the Presence of Blight 
 

As discussed in Section 3, the Colorado Urban Renewal statute provides a list of 11 
factors that, through their presence, may allow an area to be declared as blighted. 
This section elaborates on those 11 factors by describing some of the conditions 
that might be found within a Study Area that would indicate the presence of those 
factors. 

a. Slum, Deteriorated, or Deteriorating Structures: 
During the field reconnaissance of the Study Area, the general condition and level 
of deterioration of buildings within the Study Area are evaluated. This examination 
is limited to a visual inspection of the building’s exterior condition and is not a 
detailed engineering or architectural analysis, nor does it include the building’s 
interior. The intent is to document obvious indications of disrepair and 
deterioration to the exterior of a structure found within the Study Area.  Some of 
the exterior elements observed for signs of deterioration include: 

• Primary elements (exterior walls, visible foundation, roof) 
• Secondary elements (fascia/soffits, gutters/downspouts, windows/doors, 

façade finishes, loading docks, etc.)  
• Ancillary structures (detached garages, storage buildings, etc.) 

b. Predominance of Defective or Inadequate Street Layout: 
The presence of this factor is determined through a combination of both field 
observation as well as an analysis of the existing transportation network and 
vehicular and pedestrian circulation patterns in the Study Area by persons with 
expertise in transportation planning and/or traffic engineering.  These conditions 
include: 

• Inadequate street or alley widths, cross-sections, or geometries 
• Poor provisions or unsafe conditions for the flow of vehicular traffic 
• Poor provisions or unsafe conditions for the flow of pedestrians 
• Insufficient roadway capacity leading to unusual congestion of traffic 
• Inadequate emergency vehicle access 
• Poor vehicular/pedestrian access to buildings or sites 
• Poor internal vehicular/pedestrian circulation 
• Excessive curb cuts/driveways in commercial area 

These conditions can affect the adequacy or performance of the transportation 
system within the Study Area, creating a street layout that is defective or 
inadequate. 



Broomfield Civic Center Property Conditions Assessment 
 

Matrix    |   10 

 

c. Faulty Lot Layout in Relation to Size, Adequacy, Accessibility, or Usefulness: 
This factor requires an analysis of the parcels within the Study Area as to their 
potential and usefulness as developable sites. Conditions indicative of the presence 
of this factor include: 

• Lots that are long, narrow, or irregularly shaped 
• Lots with limited or no access 
• Lots that are inadequate in size 
• Lots with configurations that result in stagnant, misused, or unused land 
• Lots with billboards that have active leases, making redevelopment more 

difficult 

This analysis considers the shape, orientation, and size of undeveloped parcels 
within the Study Area and if these attributes would negatively impact the potential 
for development of the parcel.  This evaluation is performed both through 
observation in the field and through an analysis of parcel boundary maps of the 
Study Area. 

d. Unsanitary or Unsafe Conditions: 
Conditions observed within the Study Area that qualify under this blight factor 
include: 

• Floodplains or flood prone areas 
• Inadequate storm drainage systems/evidence of standing water 
• Poor fire protection facilities 
• Fire-prone areas or structures 
• Above average incidences of public safety responses 
• Inadequate sanitation or water systems 
• Existence of contaminants or hazardous conditions or materials 
• High or unusual crime statistics 
• Open trash dumpsters 
• Severely cracked, sloped, or uneven surfaces for pedestrians 
• Illegal dumping 
• Vagrants/vandalism/graffiti/gang activity 
• Open ditches, holes, or trenches in pedestrian areas 

These represent situations in which the safety of individuals, especially pedestrians 
and children, may be compromised due to environmental and physical conditions 
considered to be unsanitary or unsafe. 

e. Deterioration of Site or Other Improvements: 
The conditions that apply to this blight factor reflect the deterioration of various 
improvements made on a site other than building structures.  These conditions may 
represent a lack of general maintenance at a site, the physical degradation of 



Broomfield Civic Center Property Conditions Assessment 
 

Matrix    |    11 
 

 

 

specific improvements, or an improvement that was poorly planned or 
constructed.   Overall, the presence of these conditions can reduce a site’s 
usefulness and desirability and negatively affect nearby properties. 

• Neglected properties or evidence of general site maintenance problems 
• Deteriorated signage or lighting 
• Deteriorated fences, walls, or gates 
• Deterioration of on-site parking surfaces, curb & gutter, or sidewalks 
• Poorly maintained landscaping or overgrown vegetation 
• Poor parking lot/driveway layout 
• Unpaved parking lot on commercial properties 

f. Unusual Topography or Inadequate Public Improvements or Utilities: 
The focus of this factor is on the presence of unusual topographical conditions that 
could make development prohibitive, such as steep slopes or poor load- bearing 
soils, as well as deficiencies in the public infrastructure system within the Study 
Area that could include: 

• Steep slopes / rock outcroppings / poor load-bearing soils 
• Deteriorated public infrastructure (street/alley pavement, curb, gutter, 

sidewalks, street lighting, storm drainage systems) 
• Lack of public infrastructure (same as above) 
• Presence of overhead utilities or billboards 
• Inadequate fire protection facilities/hydrants 
• Inadequate sanitation or water systems 

g. Defective or Unusual Conditions of Title Rendering the Title Non-Marketable: 
Certain properties can be considered non-marketable making redevelopment 
overly difficult if they have overly restrictive or prohibitive clauses in their deeds or 
titles, or if they involve an unusually complex or highly divided ownership 
arrangement. Examples of conditions considered non-marketable include: 

• Properties with covenants or other limiting clauses that significantly impair 
their ability to redevelop 

• Properties with disputed or defective title 
• Multiplicity of ownership making assemblages of land difficult or 

impossible 

h. Existence of Conditions that Endanger Life or Property by Fire or Other 
Causes: 
A finding of blight within this factor can result from the presence of the following 
conditions, which include both the deterioration of physical improvements that can 
lead to dangerous situations as well as the inability for emergency personnel or 



Broomfield Civic Center Property Conditions Assessment 
 

Matrix    |   12 

 

equipment to provide services to a site: 

• Sites inaccessible to fire and emergency vehicles 
• Fire-prone areas or structures 
• Blocked/poorly maintained fire and emergency access routes/frontages 
• Insufficient fire and emergency vehicle turning radii 
• Properties not in compliance with fire codes or environmental regulations 

i.  Buildings that are Unsafe or Unhealthy for Persons to Live or Work In because 
of Building Code Violations, Dilapidation, Deterioration, Defective Design, 
Physical Construction, or Faulty or Inadequate Facilities: 
Some of the conditions that can contribute to this blight factor include: 

• Buildings or properties not in compliance with fire codes, building codes, 
or environmental regulations 

• Buildings with deteriorated elements that create unsafe conditions 
• Buildings with inadequate or improperly installed utility components 

j. Environmental Contamination of Buildings or Property: 
This factor represents the presence of contamination in the soils, water sources, or 
other locations within the Study Area and may include: 

• Presence of hazardous substances, liquids, or gases 
• Presence of Environmental Land Use Controls 
• Regulatory Oversight or Corrective Actions 
• Presence of Recognized Environmental Conditions 

k. Existence of Health, Safety, or Welfare Factors Requiring High Levels of 
Municipal Services or Substantial Physical Underutilization or Vacancy of Sites, 
Buildings, or Other Improvements: 
The physical conditions that may contribute to this blight factor include: 

• Sites with a high incidence of fire, police, or emergency responses 
• Sites adjacent to streets/alleys with a high incidence of traffic accidents 
• Sites with a high incidence of code enforcement responses 
• An undeveloped parcel in a generally urbanized area 
• Vacant, empty, or unused buildings 
• A parcel with a disproportionately small percentage of its total land area 

developed



Broomfield Civic Center Property Conditions Assessment 
 

Matrix    |    13 
 

 

 

Section 4: Study Area Location, Definition, and Description 
 

This Property Conditions Assessment focuses on the areas surrounding and south 
of the Broomfield Civic Center, north and south of 1st Avenue between Spader 
Way/Lamar Street and Main Street. The Study Area includes both parceled land 
and the 1st Avenue and Lamar Street ROWs (unparceled land). The following 
parceled properties are located within the Study Area boundary, with parcel 
numbers, addresses, acreage, and legal summary for each parcel recorded by the 
Broomfield County Assessor Geographic Information System (GIS) database: 

Parcel No. Address Acreage Legal Summary 

157536300004 
 

1 Community 
Park Road 

37.02 Note: Only the western portion of this 
Parcel is included in the Study Area 
boundary: Subd: BROOMFIELD CITY 
CENTER SUBDIVISION FILING NO 3 
REPLAT B Lot: 1 Block: 1  

157536364001 9 Community 
Park Road 

3.13 Subd: BROOMFIELD HEIGHTS FILING NO 
1 & AMENDED Lot: 22 Block: 21 10 E 10 
FT 

157536361001 200 East 1st 
Avenue 

15.34 Subd: BROOMFIELD HEIGHTS FILING NO 
1 & AMENDED Lot: 9 Block: 15 WLY 13.72 
FT LOT 10 

157536308001 6785 West 
120th Avenue 

1.09 Subd: SAFEWAY MARKETPLACE FILING 2 
REPLAT Lot: 1 

157536308002 6775 West 
120th Avenue 

5.44 Subd: SAFEWAY MARKETPLACE FILING 2 
REPLAT Lot: 2 

157536308005 6795 West 
120th Avenue 

0.96 Subd: SAFEWAY MARKETPLACE FILING 2 
REPLAT Lot: 5 

157536308003 6765 West 
120th Avenue 

1.04 Subd: SAFEWAY MARKETPLACE FILING 2 
REPLAT Lot: 3 

157536302002 280 East 1st 
Avenue 

2.19 Subd: PARK BUSINESS PLAZA Lot: 3 

157536309004 290 East 1st 
Avenue 

0.64 Subd: MAIN COMPANY SUBDIVISION 
REPLAT NO 1 Lot: 4 

157536309003 6405 West 
120th Avenue 

1.28 Subd: MAIN COMPANY SUBDIVISION 
REPLAT NO 1 Lot: 3 

157536309002 6445 West 
120th Avenue 

0.89 Subd: MAIN COMPANY SUBDIVISION 
REPLAT NO 1 Lot: 2 

157536309001 6485 West 
120th Avenue 

0.82 Subd: MAIN COMPANY SUBDIVISION 
REPLAT NO 1 Lot: 1 

157536308004 6755 West 
120th Avenue 

0.70 Subd: SAFEWAY MARKETPLACE FILING 2 
REPLAT Lot: 4 

Figure 4.1 shows the boundaries of the Study Area including the Broomfield County 
Assessor Parcels. 



Broomfield Civic Center Property Conditions Assessment 
 

Matrix    |   14 

 

Figure 4.1: Broomfield County Parcels included in the Study Area 

 

Parcel information was collected from the Broomfield County Assessor online GIS. Parcel boundaries are estimated and should not be 
considered legal boundaries. For more information visit the Broomfield County Assessor’s offices website. 



Broomfield Civic Center Property Conditions Assessment 
 

Matrix    |    15 
 

 

 

Section 5: Survey Findings 

The overall findings of the Broomfield Civic Center Property Conditions Assessment 
are presented below in a format that mirrors the list of factors and conditions of 
blight discussed in Section 3. 

a. Slum, Deteriorated, or Deteriorating Structures 

Many of the buildings and structures located in the southern portion of the Study 
Area (south of 1st Avenue) showed signs of deterioration and disrepair including 
deteriorating concrete, peeling paint, damaged siding, rust, and general neglect. 
The northern portion of the Study Area (north of 1st Avenue) only had a few 
structure including a picnic pavilion, playground, bathrooms, and tennis courts. The 
structures in the northern portion of the Study Area were in good condition. 

 

 

 

 

Peeling paint observed on the old Safeway building in Parcel 157536308002 

Deteriorating concrete steps observed at the shopping center in Parcel 157536308003 



Broomfield Civic Center Property Conditions Assessment 
 

Matrix    |   Experience 16 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Missing paint identified at the Pizza Hut in Parcel 15736309002 

Rusting metal doors and storage container observed at the USPS (Parcel 157536302002) 

Deteriorating wood fascia identified at the former Safeway, Parcel 157536308002  



Broomfield Civic Center Property Conditions Assessment 
 

Matrix    |    17 
 

 

 

Blight Factor: Slum, Deteriorated, or Deteriorating Structures is present within 
the Study Area. 

b. Predominance of Defective or Inadequate Street Layout 

Based on the size of the Study Area, the layout and shape of the parcels within the 
Study Area, and the lack of public-access corridors, defective or inadequate 
vehicular traffic circulation throughout the Study Area is an issue. A breakdown of 
defective or inadequate street layout is outlined below: 

• Access. In the northern portion of the Study Area (north of 1st Avenue), 
access to several properties including the Mamie Doud Eisenhower Public 
Library/Broomfield Auditorium is through adjacent parcels. In other 
words, the street layouts within the northern portion of the Study Area 
(Spader Way and Community Park Road) are city-owned parcels. If 
development were to occur, access to private property owners would be, 
not through un-owned right of ways, but through city-owned parcels.  

• Inadequate Vehicular Circulation. The parcels in the northern portion of 
the Study Area are very large and, if developed, would likely require re-
parcelization. Vehicular circulation would be then be inadequate for 
development as a lack of streets and access to lots would not allow for 
development of parcels without the addition of significant infrastructure. 

Blight Factor: Predominance of Defective or Inadequate Street Layout is 
present. 

 

c. Faulty Lot Layout in Relation to Size, Adequacy, Accessibility, or Usefulness 

Faulty street layout often produces faulty lots, particularly when vehicular access 
is impacted. Other causes of faulty lot layout can include the presence of natural 
features such as creeks, or manmade features such as the presence of highways, 
rail roads, etc. Commercial properties that lack access or visibility are at a 
significant disadvantage compared to those with adequate access and visibility and 
are, in many cases, undervalued. 

In addition to visibility and access constraints, the size and shape of a property can 
impact a parcel’s utilization. Irregularly shaped parcels, inadequately shaped 
parcels, or parcels with natural or man-made obstacles can lead to undeveloped or 
inaccessible areas within the parcel itself, while small parcels may have little 
development value.  

The three large parcels of land included in the northern portion of the Study Area 
(Parcels 157536300004, 157536364001, and 57536361001) are laid out in parcels 
that are odd-sized and shaped, potentially requiring additional parcelization to 



Broomfield Civic Center Property Conditions Assessment 
 

Matrix    |   Experience 18 

 

provide adequate sized properties for future development. In addition, the 
identified parcel boundaries block access to developed parcels (particularly the 
Mamie Doud Eisenhower Public Library/Broomfield Auditorium), divide man-made 
features, and include public ROWs within their boundaries.  

Blight Factor: Faulty Lot Layout is present. 

 

d. Unsanitary or Unsafe Conditions 

Many factors can contribute to unsanitary or unsafe conditions including 
insufficient infrastructure improvements (e.g. inadequate lighting or a lack of 
sidewalks or other pedestrian protections), high crime, homelessness, a lack of 
public safety protection (e.g. undermanned or overworked police forces or a lack 
of readily available fire protection equipment) and unsafe physical conditions 
(natural or man-made).  

During the field survey, Matrix observed conditions at and near the Study Area that 
could be considered unsanitary and/or unsafe. The following sections discuss 
unsanitary/unsafe conditions observed within or near the Study Area boundary. 

Homelessness: Although the condition may be temporary and/or seasonal, Matrix 
identified two campers in the Safeway and Auto Zone parking lots that appeared 
to be occupied. Traditional homelessness was not observed.  

     

Floodplains: The presence of the City Park Channel and associated floodplain can 
be unsafe for many reasons. Flash flooding can be an imminent source of danger 
for pedestrians or children playing along the creek and structures located within 
the 100- or 500-year flood area may also be at risk. Matrix reviewed the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) floodplain database and applicable 
Letters of Map Revisions (LOMR)s for Broomfield at the Study Area and identified 
the northern portion of the Study Area along the City Park Channel as being within 
the 100- and 500-year floodplains. Figure 5.1 identifies the Study Area in relation 
to the FEMA Floodplain map. 



Broomfield Civic Center Property Conditions Assessment 
 

Matrix    |    19 
 

 

 

Figure 5.1: FEMA Floodplain Map 

 

Crime: Matrix reviewed 2018 crime data for the City of Broomfield along 120th 
Avenue at the Study Area. As indicated in the 2018 Crime Density Map prepared 
for this Blight Study, areas with higher crime during 2018 include the properties 
adjacent to (north of) the Study Area along Spader Way and Descombes Drive. 
Figure 5.2 includes a Crime Density map for 2018. 

 

 

 

 



Broomfield Civic Center Property Conditions Assessment 
 

Matrix    |   Experience 20 

 

 

Figure 5.2: 2018 Crime Density Map 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Other:  Additional conditions observed within the Study Area that qualify as 
unsanitary or unsafe include:  

• Open (unsecured) trash dumpsters  
• Small amounts of graffiti 
• Inadequate drainage (standing water) in Parcel 157536309004 
• An uncovered, unsecured 6-inch hole in Parcel 157536308002  
• Unsecured used cooking oil dumpster in Parcel 157536309002 (Pizza Hut)  



Broomfield Civic Center Property Conditions Assessment 
 

Matrix    |    21 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Open, unsecured dumpsters in the southern portion of the Study Area 

Open, unsecured 6-inch diameter hole (hazard) at Parcel 157536308002  

Unsecured waste oil container at Parcel 157536309002 (Pizza Hut)  



Broomfield Civic Center Property Conditions Assessment 
 

Matrix    |   Experience 22 

 

 

 

Blight Factor: Unsanitary or Unsafe Conditions is present. 

 

e. Deterioration of Site or Other Improvements 

Deterioration of Site or other improvements refers to current land conditions, site 
improvements (infrastructure), or support structures (fencing, landscaping, 
parking, etc.) that have been damaged or neglected. A majority of the Parcels 
within the Study Area have conditions of deterioration that qualify as blight 
including deteriorating pavement, dead trees, unkempt landscaping, noxious 
weeds, and a general lack of maintenance. 

 

 

Inadequate drainage, standing water at Parcel 157536309004 

Many of the city-owned parcels in the northern portion of the Study Area are weed-filled 



Broomfield Civic Center Property Conditions Assessment 
 

Matrix    |    23 
 

 

 

 

 

      

 

This retaining wall south of the USPS is in disrepair 

Many dead trees were identified in the southern portion of the Study Area 



Broomfield Civic Center Property Conditions Assessment 
 

Matrix    |   Experience 24 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Deteriorating pavement identified in the southern portion of the Study Area 

This damaged sign was located in the southern portion of the Study Area 

Dead vegetation was identified in landscaped areas in the southern portion of the Study Area 



Broomfield Civic Center Property Conditions Assessment 
 

Matrix    |    25 
 

 

 

Blight Factor: Deterioration of Site or Other Improvements is present.  

 

f. Unusual Topography or Inadequate Public Improvements or Utilities 

Incomplete public improvements necessary for development can include a lack of 
pavement, curbs/gutter, lighting, sidewalks, utilities, and parking. Many of the 
parcels in the northern portion of the Study Area lack adequate public 
improvements including the infrastructure (streets, sidewalks, utilities, etc.) 
necessary for development of the large, irregular-shaped parcels (Parcels 
157536300004, 157536361001, and 157536364001) 

Blight Factor: Unusual Topography or Inadequate Public Improvements or 
Utilities is present 

 

g. Defective or Unusual Conditions of Title Rendering the Title Non-Marketable 

Conditions within the Study Area are not expected to render the Title Non-
marketable, and no title review has been completed at the time of this Conditions 
Assessment.  

 

h. Existence of Conditions that Endanger Life or Property by Fire or Other Causes 

This blight factor may be present when site and/or building maintenance or use 
contributes to conditions that may physically expose site users to potentially 
dangerous conditions. The factor may also include increased threats from fire or 
other causes due to site conditions. Matrix did not identify any conditions that may 
endanger life or property by fire or other causes as part of this assessment. 

This blight factor is not considered to be present in the Study Area. 

 

i. Buildings that are Unsafe or Unhealthy for Persons to Live or Work in Because 
of Building Code Violations, Dilapidation, Deterioration, Defective Design, 
Physical Construction, or Faulty or Inadequate Facilities 

This blight factor is typically related to deterioration of buildings and site or other 
improvements (blight factors a. and e.) and is said to be present when conditions 
exist that could be considered dangerous to the extent that habitation and/or daily 
use is unsafe or unhealthy. No buildings, facilities, or other primary improvements 
were identified during the onsite assessment that would potentially pose a danger 
to the extent required for this factor of blight.  



Broomfield Civic Center Property Conditions Assessment 
 

Matrix    |   Experience 26 

 

This blight factor is not considered to present in the Study Area. 

 

j. Environmental Contamination of Buildings or Property 

Environmental conditions include the presence or likely presence of contamination 
in the soils, water sources, or other locations within the Study Area. Matrix 
reviewed governmental records provided by Environmental Risk Information 
Systems (ERIS) to identify any potential sites with Recognized Environmental 
Conditions (REC)s or other areas of environmental concern. In addition, Matrix 
identified sites with a higher than average potential to be a source of 
contamination to soil and/or groundwater in the area. The following sites were 
identified as part of the study:  

• Lionheart Cleaners. The dry cleaning 
process uses highly mobile chemicals 
including tetrachloroethene (PCE) that 
can impact soil and groundwater. 
According to the Colorado Department 
of Public Health and Environment 
(CDPHE), historically, some drycleaners 
may have discarded wastes by pouring 
wastewater into sewers, throwing used 
filers and sludge into the trash, or dumping wastewater on the ground 
outside their facility. These practices were common in the past due to less 
strict laws regulating the facilities. Lionheart Cleaners, located in the 
southwest portion of the Study Area, was under a CDPHE Compliance 
Advisory enforcement action and numerous compliance inspections have 
been conducted. Unknown violations were noted in the database search. 
No evidence of dumping or other signs of release were observed during 
the site reconnaissance, however this dry cleaning facility is considered a 
REC for the Study Area. 

• Excalibur Cleaners. Excalibur Cleaners is a dry cleaning facility located 
upgradient/adjacent to the Study Area. No violations were noted in the 
database search. 

• Aqua Bright Cleaners. Aqua Bright Cleaners is a dry cleaning facility located 
cross-gradient/adjacent to the Study Area. No violations were noted in the 
database search. 

• Autozone. Located in the southwest portion of the Study Area, Autozone 
is listed in the RCRA database as a conditionally exempt small quantity 
generator (RCRA CESQG) with waste streams including cadmium, 
chromium, lead, PCE, and trichloroethene (TCE). No violations were 
reported and no evidence of environmental release was detected during 



Broomfield Civic Center Property Conditions Assessment 
 

Matrix    |    27 
 

 

 

the site reconnaissance. 
• R&J Conoco. Located adjacent/upgradient to the Study Area, the Conoco 

is listed in the Colorado Department of Labor and Environment, Division 
of Oil and Public Safety (OPS) Colorado Storage Tank Information System 
(COSTIS) as a leaking underground storage tank (LUST) site. In March 1994, 
a release was confirmed and cleanup of the petroleum was initiated in 
February 1995. Groundwater monitoring continued for the next 15 years 
and site closure was requested in August 2011. In October 2011, the OPS 
granted a Tier II Closure for the site. 

• Empire 3596 (Valero fueling station). This fueling facility located at 6910 
West 120th Avenue (upgradient to the Study Area) is listed in the OPS 
COSTIS database as a LUST site. Numerous releases have been confirmed 
at this site and cleanup/monitoring is ongoing. This site is considered a REC 
for the Study Area.  

• Automotive Repair Facilities. Numerous automotive repair facilities were 
identified during area reconnaissance and in the database research. 
Automotive repair facilities use hazardous chemicals that can impact soil 
and groundwater. These facilities are typically regulated by the OPS and/or 
the CDPHE. 

Because of the high concentration of light industrial use sites in the area (dry 
cleaners, fueling stations, automotive repair facilities), there is an elevated risk of 
environmental contamination. Additional investigation is recommended prior to 
site development, and, if identified, clean-up or management of hazardous 
materials may significantly increase development costs. 

Blight Factor: Environmental Contamination of Buildings or Property exists. 

 

k. The existence of health, safety, or welfare factors requiring high levels of 
municipal services or substantial physical underutilization or vacancy of sites, 
buildings, or other improvements 

Underutilization of parcels north of 1st Avenue is present within the Study Area 
boundary. Parcel 15753631001 consists of 15.34 acres of mostly undeveloped land 
except for a large parking lot that mainly services the Mamie Doud Eisenhower 
Public Library/Broomfield Auditorium and the North Metro Fire Rescue District 
administration building (both of which are excluded from the blight survey area). 
Parcel 15753634001, a 3.13 acre parcel of land, is also underutilized and will 
require significant infrastructure and re-parcelization for development. 

In addition, the major anchor tenant (formerly Safeway) that accounts for more 
than 35% (by acreage) of the properties south of 1st Avenue  is currently vacant, 



Broomfield Civic Center Property Conditions Assessment 
 

Matrix    |   Experience 28 

 

with deteriorating conditions as described previously in this report. Two additional 
vacancies were identified in the attached shopping areas (Parcels 157536308001 
and 157536308003). Altogether, approximately 24 acres of the Study Area are 
underutilized.     

Blight Factor: … Substantial Underutilization or vacancy of sites, buildings, or 
other improvements is present. 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Broomfield Civic Center Property Conditions Assessment 
 

Matrix    |    29 
 

 

 

Section 6: Property Conditions Assessment Summary and 
Conclusion 
 

Within the entire Study Area, eight of the eleven blight factors were identified as 
being present.  The blight factors identified within the Study Area include: 

• a. Slum, deteriorated, or deteriorating structures 
• b. Predominance of defective or inadequate street layout 
• c. Faulty lot layout in relation to size, adequacy, accessibility, or 

usefulness 
• d. Unsanitary or unsafe conditions 
• e. Deterioration of site or other improvements 
• f. Unusual topography or inadequate public improvements or utilities 
• j. Environmental contamination of buildings or property 
• k. The existence of health, safety, or welfare factors requiring high levels 

of municipal services or substantial physical underutilization or vacancy of 
sites, buildings, or other improvements.  

As discussed in Section 2, in order for an area to meet the definition of blight, a 
certain number of the eleven blight factors identified in the Colorado Urban 
Renewal Law must be found within the Study Area. Four of the eleven factors is 
the required minimum, unless none of the property owners or tenants object to 
being included within an urban renewal area; then, the required minimum is only 
one of the eleven factors.   

For this Conditions Assessment, eight blight factors were identified within the 
Study Area, therefore a sufficient number of blight factors exist under Colorado 
Urban Renewal Law. 

It is the conclusion of this Conditions Assessment Report that the Study Area, in 
its present condition, exhibits a sufficient level of blight to be considered a 
“blighted area.” 

 



City and County of Broomfield

City Council Regular Meeting

C. BURA Proposed Resolution for Urban Renewal Area Plan and Related Tax Sharing Agreements for Broomfield
Town Square

Meeting

Tuesday, March 25, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Action Items Item: 7C.

Voted By Board

Broomfield Urban Renewal Authority - BURA

Presented By

Jeff Romine, Economist - CMO

Community Goals

☑ Financial Sustainability and Resilience

Overview

View Correspondence 

View Presentation

This action, Resolution 2025-71-UR, BURA would approve tax increment revenue agreements between BURA and
Broomfield Town Square Metropolitan District, North Metro Fire Rescue District, Northern Colorado Water
Conservancy District, and Boulder Valley School District. Additionally, it would authorize the Mayor to sign at a
future date a Letter Agreement to be issued by Mile High Flood District following City Council’s approval of the
Town Square URA concerning the use of District’s mills for the project.
 
The City Council action, Agenda Item 7B, would approve a new Broomfield Town Square Urban Renewal Area Plan
(Town Square URA) and amend the existing Broomfield Plaza-Civic Center Urban Renewal Area Plan (Broomfield
Plaza URA) to accommodate the Broomfield Town Square development project.
 
The formation and funding of the Town Square URA will complete the public financing components outlined in the
2019 Redevelopment and Reimbursement Agreement (Redevelopment Agreement) for the Broomfield Town
Square project. 

 

 

 

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82


Attachments

Memo - Urban Renewal Area Plan and Related Tax Sharing Agreements for Broomfield Town Square 3-25-2025.pdf
Resolution No. 2025-71-UR Certain Tax Increment Revenue Agreements Related to Broomfield Town Square 3-25-2025.pdf
BTS - Boulder Valley School District TIF Agreement FINAL 3-25-2025.pdf
BTS - North Metro Fire District TIF Agreement FINAL 3-25-2025.pdf
BTS - Northern Water TIF Agreement FINAL 3-25-2025.pdf
BTS - SAMPLE Mile High Flood District TIF Letter Agreement 3-25-2025.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7c16ff146006c3d8556%2FMemo%20-%20Urban%20Renewal%20Area%20Plan%20and%20Related%20Tax%20Sharing%20Agreements%20for%20Broomfield%20Town%20Square%203-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=8dd5c09c-7506-4e38-900b-773ca67abdb3
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7c16ff146006c3d8556%2FMemo%20-%20Urban%20Renewal%20Area%20Plan%20and%20Related%20Tax%20Sharing%20Agreements%20for%20Broomfield%20Town%20Square%203-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=8dd5c09c-7506-4e38-900b-773ca67abdb3
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7c16ff146006c3d8556%2FMemo%20-%20Urban%20Renewal%20Area%20Plan%20and%20Related%20Tax%20Sharing%20Agreements%20for%20Broomfield%20Town%20Square%203-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=8dd5c09c-7506-4e38-900b-773ca67abdb3
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7c16ff146006c3d8556%2FResolution%20No.%202025-71-UR%20Certain%20Tax%20Increment%20Revenue%20Agreements%20Related%20to%20Broomfield%20Town%20Square%203-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=2be61ea6-3748-470a-a179-d6a8a9bc17aa
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7c16ff146006c3d8556%2FResolution%20No.%202025-71-UR%20Certain%20Tax%20Increment%20Revenue%20Agreements%20Related%20to%20Broomfield%20Town%20Square%203-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=2be61ea6-3748-470a-a179-d6a8a9bc17aa
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7c16ff146006c3d8556%2FResolution%20No.%202025-71-UR%20Certain%20Tax%20Increment%20Revenue%20Agreements%20Related%20to%20Broomfield%20Town%20Square%203-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=2be61ea6-3748-470a-a179-d6a8a9bc17aa
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7c16ff146006c3d8556%2FResolution%20No.%202025-71-UR%20Certain%20Tax%20Increment%20Revenue%20Agreements%20Related%20to%20Broomfield%20Town%20Square%203-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=2be61ea6-3748-470a-a179-d6a8a9bc17aa
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7c16ff146006c3d8556%2FBTS%20-%20Boulder%20Valley%20School%20District%20TIF%20Agreement%20FINAL%203-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=e794ffb2-535c-47d9-ac14-ef79033ea241
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7c16ff146006c3d8556%2FBTS%20-%20Boulder%20Valley%20School%20District%20TIF%20Agreement%20FINAL%203-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=e794ffb2-535c-47d9-ac14-ef79033ea241
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7c16ff146006c3d8556%2FBTS%20-%20Boulder%20Valley%20School%20District%20TIF%20Agreement%20FINAL%203-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=e794ffb2-535c-47d9-ac14-ef79033ea241
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7c16ff146006c3d8556%2FBTS%20-%20North%20Metro%20Fire%20District%20TIF%20Agreement%20FINAL%203-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=4255a67e-d4d2-4880-9dfa-f741ab26b9da
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7c16ff146006c3d8556%2FBTS%20-%20North%20Metro%20Fire%20District%20TIF%20Agreement%20FINAL%203-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=4255a67e-d4d2-4880-9dfa-f741ab26b9da
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7c16ff146006c3d8556%2FBTS%20-%20North%20Metro%20Fire%20District%20TIF%20Agreement%20FINAL%203-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=4255a67e-d4d2-4880-9dfa-f741ab26b9da
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7c16ff146006c3d8556%2FBTS%20-%20Northern%20Water%20TIF%20Agreement%20FINAL%203-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=1cf84910-174d-420f-88a1-0d1d9268f8dd
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7c16ff146006c3d8556%2FBTS%20-%20Northern%20Water%20TIF%20Agreement%20FINAL%203-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=1cf84910-174d-420f-88a1-0d1d9268f8dd
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7c16ff146006c3d8556%2FBTS%20-%20Northern%20Water%20TIF%20Agreement%20FINAL%203-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=1cf84910-174d-420f-88a1-0d1d9268f8dd
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7c16ff146006c3d8556%2FBTS%20-%20SAMPLE%20Mile%20High%20Flood%20District%20TIF%20Letter%20Agreement%203-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=c4cc08a3-8497-4ab7-a071-2c5117380e98
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7c16ff146006c3d8556%2FBTS%20-%20SAMPLE%20Mile%20High%20Flood%20District%20TIF%20Letter%20Agreement%203-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=c4cc08a3-8497-4ab7-a071-2c5117380e98
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F67d1c7c16ff146006c3d8556%2FBTS%20-%20SAMPLE%20Mile%20High%20Flood%20District%20TIF%20Letter%20Agreement%203-25-2025.pdf?alt=media&token=c4cc08a3-8497-4ab7-a071-2c5117380e98


Memo - Approving the Broomfield Town Square Urban Renewal Area Plan, Amending an Existing URA Plan, and 

Approving Certain Related Tax Sharing Agreements for Broomfield Town Square  
Prepared By: Jeff Romine, Economist; Karl Frundt, Senior Attorney 

Summary 

 

View Correspondence 

View Presentation 

 

Proposed Resolutions 2025-69 and 2025-70, if approved by the City Council will approve a new Broomfield 

Town Square Urban Renewal Area Plan (Town Square URA) and amend the existing Broomfield Plaza-Civic 

Center Urban Renewal Area Plan (Broomfield Plaza URA) to accommodate the Broomfield Town Square 

development project.  

 

Proposed Resolution 2025-71-UR, if approved by the Broomfield Urban Renewal Authority (BURA), will 

approve tax increment revenue agreements between BURA and Broomfield Town Square Metropolitan 

District, North Metro Fire Rescue District, Northern Colorado Water Conservancy District, and Boulder Valley 

School District. Additionally, it would authorize the Mayor to sign at a future date a Letter Agreement to be 

issued by Mile High Flood District following City Council’s approval of the Town Square URA concerning the 

use of District’s mills for the project. 

 

The formation of the Town Square URA will complete the public financing components outlined in the 2019 

Redevelopment and Reimbursement Agreement (Redevelopment Agreement) for the Broomfield Town Square 

project. Other components of public or district financing to support the development include the 

establishment of the Metropolitan District (formed in 2020) and the formation of the Broomfield Town 

Square Business Improvement District (which will be considered by the City Council by separate action on 

2nd Reading on March 25, 2025).  

 

Note: The Redevelopment Agreement, approved on November 12, 2019, established the financial 

commitments of the City and County of Broomfield, such as committed shares of annual tax revenue 

resulting from the development, net and gross maximum reimbursement limits, other contributions, and 

commitments to support the proposed Broomfield Town Square development project.   

          

Urban Renewal Plan Areas 

 

Background and Requirement for Formation: 

Broomfield currently has twelve designated urban renewal areas, which can be seen in the Urban Renewal 

Area Map from the 2016 Broomfield Comprehensive Plan.  The Colorado Urban Renewal Law, C.R.S. § 

31-25-101 et seq. (“Urban Renewal Law”) permits cities, including cities and counties, to create urban 

renewal authorities and adopt urban renewal plans for the purpose of preventing and eliminating blight.  

The Broomfield Urban Renewal Authority was established in 1986.  

 

Urban renewal is an important tool for Broomfield to assist in the redevelopment of “blighted” property, as 

defined by urban renewal law, and to help foster growth and development in an efficient and orderly 

manner. An urban renewal designation provides the opportunity for a portion of the taxes generated in the 

area to be retained for use in the area to support the construction of certain eligible public improvements 

such as roads, sanitary sewer, water, drainage, and open lands and other public places. The financing tool is 

referred to as tax increment financing (TIF). TIF is not a new tax. Rather, it allows for growth in incremental 

revenue generated in the designated area to fund development projects in the urban renewal area, through 

a variety of mechanisms, including bond financing, project loans, or development reimbursements for 

improvements that might typically be constructed by the city and county. Designation of an urban renewal 

                 

1 

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://broomfield.org/DocumentCenter/View/4593/Overall-Map---Existing-URAs?bidId=
https://broomfield.org/DocumentCenter/View/4593/Overall-Map---Existing-URAs?bidId=


 

area allows for the city pledged TIF revenues to fund eligible improvements within the plan area for up to 25 

years.  

 

State statute defines an urban renewal plan generally as a plan that conforms to a general or master plan 

for the physical development of the municipality as a whole. The plan must indicate such elements as land 

acquisition, demolition and removal of structures, redevelopment, improvements, and rehabilitation as may 

be proposed to be carried out in the urban renewal area. The plan must also show zoning, land uses, 

maximum densities, building requirements, and the plan’s relationship to local objectives, respecting 

appropriate land uses, improved traffic, public transportation, public utilities, recreational and community 

facilities, and other public improvements. C.R.S. § 31-25-103(10). 

 

An authority is not authorized by law to undertake an urban renewal project for an urban renewal area 

unless the area has been determined to be blighted and is appropriate for an urban renewal project. The 

plan must go to the Land Use Revision Commission for review and recommendation as to its conformity with 

the Comprehensive Plan. Council then determines, by resolution, if the urban renewal plan should be 

approved. 

 

Summary of Proposed Plan Areas - Approval of the Town Square URA and Amendment to the Broomfield 

Plaza URA 

The proposal is to consider the Town Square Urban Renewal Area, which is a new urban renewal plan, 

consisting of approximately 53 acres comprising the site of the former Safeway store (located southeast of 

Main Street and E. 1st Avenue) and the site of the future Broomfield Town Square plaza and lake (located 

northeast of Main Street and E. 1st Avenue). A map of the plan area is linked above. The area includes 

primarily undeveloped city owned land north of E. 1st Avenue, the Library/Auditorium building, and the 

North Metro Fire Rescue District Administration Building. The new URA boundary also includes a portion of 

the commercial property south of E. 1st Avenue  including the former Safeway store (now vacant) and 

adjacent properties.  

 

Additionally, an amendment to the Broomfield Plaza URA plan area is required as the boundary of the 

existing Broomfield Plaza URA plan area overlaps with the portions of newly proposed Town Square URA 

north of E. 1st Avenue. The overlapping area was originally included in the Broomfield Plaza URA plan area 

in 2013 in anticipation of the development of a civic center/town center on the vacant city owned land.  

Subsequent to the plan’s approval, the city acquired the Safeway property for inclusion within the future 

civic center/town center which was not located within an urban renewal plan area. It is proposed that the 

overlapping area north of E. 1st Avenue be removed from the Broomfield Plaza URA and incorporated into 

the Town Square URA. 

 

Blight Study  

The City and County of Broomfield retained Matrix Design Group, Inc. (Matrix) in 2019 to conduct a property 

conditions assessment (Blight Study) of the Broomfield Town Square development property to verify whether 

blight factors were present in the study area. The 2019 Blight Study completed by Matrix identified the 

presence of eight (8) blight factors within the study area. Such factors include:  

a. Slum, deteriorated, or deteriorating structures 

b. Predominance of defective or inadequate street layout 

c. Faulty lot layout in relation to size, adequacy, accessibility, or usefulness 

d. Unsanitary or unsafe conditions 

e. Deterioration of site or other improvements 

f. Unusual topography or inadequate public improvements or utilities 

g. Environmental contamination of buildings or property 

2 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1WDOHXyJXoEbh5WJ_uYYvx8f_z0EaBGTc/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1bj6-ttisBd7OsZTqVO479T4Fc5RyA_Na/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Zxf3W4b0Z21ez_e5PgQXpAZHtAa8cj3u/view?usp=sharing


 

h. The existence of health, safety, or welfare factors requiring high levels of municipal services or 

substantial physical underutilization of vacancy of sites, buildings, or other improvements. 

On March 31, 2021, Matrix updated the 2019 Blight Study at the City’s request and confirmed the eight (8) 

blight factors remained unchanged within the study area. Additionally, city staff has recently evaluated the 

study area and has confirmed that all eight (8) of the blight factors remain as of March 15, 2025. A letter 

supporting this determination is linked here. 

 

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan 

The proposed Town Square URA plan’s goal is to implement the Comprehensive Plan by the elimination of 

development barriers to the Plan Area and to extend infrastructure and services to facilitate redevelopment 

of the area by private enterprise. Implementation of the Town Square URA plan will help eliminate and 

prevent conditions of blight in the Plan Area.  

 

The Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed the Town Square URA plan at a public hearing on March 22, 

2021 finding and declaring the Town Square URA plan to be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and 

recommending approval by the City Council.   

 

Proposed Resolution Nos. 2025-69 and 2025-70 

Proposed Resolution No. 2025-69, if approved, will approve the Town Square URA plan and find (i) that blight 

exists within the plan area; and (ii) that the plan is in conformity with the Comprehensive Plan. 

 

Proposed Resolution No. 2025-70, if approved, will approve a substantial modification of the Broomfield 

Plaza URA by amending the boundaries of the plan area and find that the modified plan is in conformity with 

the Comprehensive Plan. 

 

Tax Increment Revenue Agreements 

 

Pursuant to urban renewal laws, staff has negotiated tax increment revenue sharing agreements with the 

Boulder Valley School District and other special tax districts that impose a mill levy within the Town Square 

URA and Broomfield Plaza URA plan areas. The other impacted special districts include North Metro Fire 

Rescue District, Northern Colorado Water Conservancy District, and Mile High Flood District. Boulder Valley 

Schools have agreed to the inclusion of 27 mills of TIF from its mill levy to support the project. Mile High 

Flood District has agreed to the inclusion of its mill levy into the TIF and will issue a Letter Agreement 

reflecting this subsequent to the City Council’s approval of the Town Square URA. The North Metro Fire, and 

Northern Water will all receive 100% of the TIF from their respective mill levies. No tax increment revenue 

sharing agreement is required for either the Broomfield Town Square Metropolitan District or the Business 

Improvement District as the mill levies from each district were previously pledged back to the Districts to 

support the project in the 2019 Redevelopment Agreement.     

 

Proposed Resolution No. 2025-71-UR 

Proposed Resolution 2025-71-UR, if approved by BURA, will approve tax increment revenue agreements 

between BURA and North Metro Fire Rescue District, Northern Colorado Water Conservancy District, and 

Boulder Valley School District. Additionally, it would authorize the Mayor to sign a Letter Agreement to be 

issued by Mile High Flood District following City Council’s approval of the Town Square URA concerning the 

use of District’s mills for the project. 

 

 

3 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1NE1gusOHzwLSRcSVt6L0K8L9dniKWJ5_/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/10BLPXUb2lHyE82d9lOovd0A_KI5gKZ-b/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/19Iuq66ph043BMavSVLOwV-Pqzey0R0-t/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/19Iuq66ph043BMavSVLOwV-Pqzey0R0-t/view?usp=sharing


 

Financial Considerations 

 

Neither the formation of the proposed Broomfield Town Square Urban Renewal Area, nor the amendment of 

the existing Broomfield Plaza URA will result in an additional financial obligation of the City/County beyond 

the existing financial obligations agreed and committed to in the Redevelopment and Reimbursement 

Agreement (approved on November 12, 2019).  The commitments from the other affected entities are 

included in the attachments. 

 

The City and County financial commitments, as identified in the 2019 agreements, are calculated in the 

following manner.   

 

First, tax and fee revenues generated by the Broomfield Town Square development in the designated area, 

through a share of the sales and use tax revenue (fifty percent of the General Fund portion (3.5%), a share 

of any lodgers tax (fifty) percent), the generated property (ad valorem) tax, and a share of the Service 

Expansion fee (fifty percent of the fee, which is the whole of the city-retained portion) resulting from the 

increased property value and activities on generated . The agreement states the maximum “Net 

Reimbursement Amount” is equal to $20.0M. 

 

Second, it is anticipated that the Developer or the associated Districts will issue debt to finance the 

development infrastructure costs, and incur additional issuance, interest, reserves, and other costs, over 

time related to the debt.  The agreement identifies that the “Maximum Gross Reimbursement Amount” may 

not exceed 2.7 times the Net Maximum Amount, or $54.0M.  This is the total direct financial obligation of 

the City and County. 

 

Third, the agreement calls for the City-owned property (land for the BTD development and the former 

grocery store building) will be conveyed through the bargain and sale deed to the Developer.   

   

 

Prior Council or Other Entity Actions 

February  25, 2025 - City Council approved the formation of the Broomfield Town Square Business 

Improvement District on first reading. 

 

September 12, 2023 - Approved the Broomfield Town Square Filing No. 1 Site Development Plan and Urban 

Renewal Site Plan, Improvement Agreement, and Ownership and Maintenance Agreement. 

 

September 13, 2022 - Approved the Broomfield Town Square PUD Plan, Final Plat, and the Ninth Amendment 

to the 2016 Comprehensive Plan for a Land Use Map Amendment related the BTS property.  

 

November 12, 2020 - City Council and BURA approved a Supplemental Cost Sharing Agreement with 

Broomfield Town Square Alliance, LLC. 

 

August 25, 2020 - Approved Service Plans for Broomfield Town Square Metropolitan District Nos. 1 and 2. 

 

November 12, 2019 - City Council and BURA approved a Redevelopment and Reimbursement Agreement with 

Broomfield Town Square Alliance, LLC. 

 

May 21, 2019 - City Council and BURA approved a Predevelopment Agreement with Broomfield Town Square 

Alliance, LLC. 

  

4 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1_vbnSU1ZGclF21I_Au8rjV4XZQwjELCK/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1n3C2q-1CfiSWSS3Z2fK64D1Pm6kB3Xrm/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1WH3VUwM1vpIIdZ7iY9jcJNJpoOxJApWP/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/15eJc4IIOwZzz0cdxWMuRJ1t6Hg9M7NaC/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1NiHK8LgeUuEJ30D_s50606te4b3wdXkN/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1WeSfSsoT6aKMXAHS6eyR6PCYNbIekONL/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1gmIkckTyUqFFpH1ruOsmBzm2QcAI4ROd/view


 

Boards and Commissions Prior Actions and Recommendations 

 

March 22, 2021 - Land Use Review Commission found and declared the Broomfield Town Square URA Plan to 

be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and recommended approval of the plan.  

 

Proposed Actions / Recommendations 

 

If Council desires to approve the Broomfield Town Square URA, the appropriate motion is… 

 

That Resolution No. 2025-69 be adopted. 

 

If Council desires to amend the boundary of the existing Broomfield Plaza-Civic Center URA, the appropriate 

motion is… 

 

That Resolution No. 2025-70 be adopted. 

 

If BURA desires to approve certain tax increment revenue sharing agreements related to the Town Square 

URA and amended Broomfield Plaza-Civic Center URA and authorize the Mayor, as BURA chair, to approve at 

a future date the Letter Agreement with Mile High Flood District, the appropriate motion is… 

 

That Resolution No. 2025-71-UR be adopted. 

 

  

Alternatives 

Council - Do not approve the Broomfield Town Square URA or amend Broomfield Plaza-Civic Center URA at 

this time.   

BURA - do not approve the tax increment revenue sharing agreements. 

 

This would delay the developer’s ability to proceed with its bond issuance on the currently proposed 

schedule and delay the start of construction for the project.  

 

5 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/10BfO-eBqI7XCNlyYFw8uG48Dvx4OvJi1/view?usp=sharing


 

Broomfield Town Square Development Background 

 

Approved Development Plans  

On September 12, 2023, the City Council approved a site development plan, improvement agreement and 

other related agreements for the Broomfield Town Square development which comprises approximately 39 

acres and is generally located northeast of Main Street and West 120th Avenue. Broomfield currently owns 

the properties and Broomfield’s master planning documents have long envisioned a town square in this 

location. 

 

The approved site development plan allows up to 491 residential units including 12 townhomes and 479 

rental apartments and anticipates up to 63,590 square feet of commercial development including a 

redevelopment of the former grocery store in the initial phase. Significant public improvements, including a 

4 acre lake, plaza and walk areas, and publicly accessible parking garage are also included in Phase 1. 

Future phases could include up to 152 additional residential units for a total of 643 residential units and up 

to 187,000 square feet of total commercial uses across the property. 

 

Redevelopment and Reimbursement Agreement  

On November 12, 2019, City Council approved a Redevelopment and Reimbursement Agreement concerning 

the Broomfield Town Square development. This Redevelopment Agreement addresses the sharing of 

revenues generated from within the property by Broomfield and the Broomfield Urban Renewal Authority 

(BURA) with the developer to assist with financing the public improvements included within the 

development.  

 

Specifically, the Redevelopment Agreement commits Broomfield to sharing with the Developer the maximum 

net reimbursement amount of $20M in tax increment revenue generated by the City and County from the 

project. If the developer issues bonds for development project financing, the reimbursement amount will 

include eligible financing costs for a gross maximum reimbursement total of up to $54.0M.  If the 

development financing does not include bond financing maximum gross reimbursement shall not exceed 

$48M.  In addition to the revenue sharing provisions, the Redevelopment calls for the transfer of the land 

owned by Broomfield, including the former grocery store and parking areas, to the developer for the 

purposes of redevelopment and development. This commitment extends until December 31, 2044.  

In addition to the sharing of tax increment revenue and property transfer, the City agreed in the 

Redevelopment Agreement to cooperate with the developer to form and/or adopt an Urban Renewal Plan, 

Business Improvement District, and Metropolitan District for the project. Such action will aid the developer 

in financing the public improvements required for the project. 

 

Metropolitan District 

On August 25, 2020, City Council approved Service Plans for Broomfield Town Square Metropolitan District 

Nos. 1 and 2. The Service Plans include interest rate caps and a provision that an analysis of interest rates 

will be performed prior to the issuance of debt to assess reasonableness of the proposed interest rates. A 

maximum of $104M of debt is authorized by the Service Plans.  Any issuance of debt by the Metropolitan 

Districts will require the approval of the City and County Manager and City and County Attorney. 

 

Business Improvement District 

The Broomfield Town Square Business Improvement District (BID) has been proposed to help finance the 

construction of public improvements within the development and to provide related operational and 

maintenance services. The BID, if approved, will construct, install or cause to be constructed or installed, 

certain public improvements including, without limitation, water services, safety protection devices and 

services, sanitation services, marketing, streetscape improvements, street improvements, gutters, culverts, 

6 

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1n3C2q-1CfiSWSS3Z2fK64D1Pm6kB3Xrm/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1WeSfSsoT6aKMXAHS6eyR6PCYNbIekONL/view
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1NiHK8LgeUuEJ30D_s50606te4b3wdXkN/view


 

drainage facilities, sidewalks, parking facilities, paving, lighting, grading, landscaping, storm and 

wastewater management facilities, and associated land acquisition and remediation. 

 

A BID operates pursuant to an Operating Plan approved by the City Council and is governed by a board of 

directors of no less than five (5) individuals appointed by the City Council and who serve at the pleasure of 

the Council.  Board members must be eligible electors who live within the district’s boundaries or own 

taxable real or personal property within the district. Each year the BID must submit to the City its Operating 

Plan and proposed budget no later than September 30th. 

 

The BID is anticipated to hold an election on May 6, 2025 for the purposes of authorizing debt, taxes, 

revenue limits, spending limits, and special assessments. The initial maximum debt authorization for the BID 

shall be $104M.  This debt limit is an aggregate limit with the Metropolitan Districts so that, collectively, the 

BID and the Metropolitan Districts may not issue bonds in excess of $104M. Similarly, the BID’s taxing ability 

shall be constrained to debt service mill levy limitations of 50 mills in the aggregate when combined with 

the debt service mill levies of the Metropolitan Districts. An additional 15 mills is permitted for operations 

and administrative expenses. The maximum voted interest rate permitted for any debt issued by the BID 

shall be eight percent (8%) which may be increased to ten percent 10% with administrative approval of the 

City and County Manager and the City and County Attorney. The maximum underwriting discount shall be 

three percent (3%). 

 

The BID may consider issuing debt beginning in 2026 if the issuance of debt is approved by the electors of 

the BID at the May 6, 2025 election.  

 

 

 

7 



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-71-UR 

 

A resolution authorizing and approving certain Tax Increment Revenue Agreements related to 

the Broomfield Town Square Urban Renewal Area Plan 

 

Recitals. 

 

Whereas, the Broomfield Urban Renewal Authority (the “Authority”) is a public body 

corporate and politic duly established by the City of Broomfield, now the City and County of 

Broomfield (the “City”) on December 9, 1986, under and pursuant to the Colorado 

Constitution and the laws of the State of Colorado. 

Whereas, Section 31-25-107(9.5)(a) of the Colorado Revised Statutes, requires the 

Authority to negotiate tax increment revenue agreements with any taxing entity whose 

incremental property tax revenues would be allocated under an Urban Renewal Area Plan 

prior to the plan being adopted by the City. 

Whereas, the Authority has negotiated tax increment revenue agreements with each 

taxing entity that imposes a property tax levy within the plan area boundary of the 

Broomfield Town Square Urban Renewal Area Plan.  

Whereas, said tax increment revenue agreements have been approved by the 

governing boards from Boulder Valley School District, North Metro Fire Rescue District, and 

Northern Colorado Water Conservancy District. 

Whereas, staff with Mile High Flood District has informed the Authority that a Letter 

Agreement addressing the sharing of tax increment revenue will be approved by the district 

following approval of the Broomfield Town Square Urban Renewal Area Plan by the City. 

Now, therefore, be it resolved by the Broomfield Urban Renewal Authority: 

 

Section 1.   

The Property Tax Increment Revenue Agreements by and between the Broomfield Urban 

Renewal Authority and (1) Boulder Valley School District; and (2) North Metro Fire Rescue 

District are hereby approved.   

 

Section 2. 

The Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement for Tax Increment Revenue Sharing by and 

between the Broomfield Urban Renewal Authority and Northern Colorado Water Conservancy 

District is hereby approved. 

 

Page 1 

 



Section 3. 

The Chair is authorized to sign and the secretary to attest the agreements, in form approved 

by the City and County Attorney.  

 

Section 4. 

The Chair is hereby authorized to acknowledge and approve a Letter Agreement to be issued 

and approved by Mile High Flood District that addresses the use of tax increment revenues 

within the Broomfield Town Square Urban Renewal Plan, in form approved by the City and 

County Attorney. 

 

Section 8. 

This resolution is effective upon its approval by the Authority. 

 

  

 

Approved on March 25, 2025. 

 

Broomfield Urban Renewal Authority 

 

 

 

        

Chair 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

       

Secretary 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

NCR 
 

        

City and County Attorney 

Page 2 

 





















Exhibit A 

  

  

Pes 

THE CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD 

‘~~ Proposed Broomfield Town Square URA (New) & 
Proposed Broomfield Plaza Civic Center URA (Amended) 

    

   



Exhibit B 
Existing Authority Financial Obligations 

1. Redevelopment and Reimbursement Agreement by and between the Broomfield Urban Renewal 
Authority, the City and County of Broomfield, and Broomfield Town Square Alliance, LLC dated 
October 22, 2019. 





















Exhibit A 

  

  

Pes 

THE CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD 

‘~~ Proposed Broomfield Town Square URA (New) & 
Proposed Broomfield Plaza Civic Center URA (Amended) 

    

   



INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT FOR 

TAX INCREMENT REVENUE SHARING (PASS THROUGH) 
BY AND BETWEEN 

BROOMFIELD URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY AND NORTHERN COLORADO 
WATER CONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

  

  

  

  

  

This Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement for Tax Increment Revenue Sharing (Pass 
Through) (the “Agreement”) is entered into as of _)AMUCIU |lo , 2025 (the “Effective 
Date”) by and between the BROOMFIELD URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY, a body 

corporate and politic of the State of Colorado (the “Authority”), whose address is One DesCombes 
Drive, Broomfield, Colorado 80020, and the NORTHERN COLORADO WATER 

CONSERVANCY DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal entity and political subdivision of the State of 
Colorado formed pursuant to C.R.S. 37-45-101 et seq (“Water Conservancy District”), whose 
address is 220 Water Avenue, Berthoud, CO 80513. The Authority and the Water Conservancy 

District are referred to herein individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.” 

  

  

RECITALS 

The following recitals are incorporated in and made a part of this Agreement, as noted in 
Section 1 below. Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined are defined in Section 2 
below. 

A. Redevelopment. Pursuant to the Colorado Urban Renewal Law, Part 1 of Article 

25 of Title 31 of the Colorado Revised Statutes (the “Act”), the City Council (the “City Council’) 
of the City and County of Broomfield (the “City and County”) approved the Urban Renewal Plan 

for the Broomfield Plaza-Civic Center Urban Renewal Area on August 13, 2013, by Ordinance 
No. 1978 (the “BP-CC Plan”) to be redeveloped as a mixed-use development(s) that will eliminate 
existing blighted conditions which constitute threats to the health, safety and welfare of the 
community and barriers to development. 

  

BE. Proposed Substantial Modification of BP-CC Plan and Approval of new Town 

Square Urban Renewal Plan. The City and County is considering a substantial modification of the 
BP-CC Plan by reducing its size from approximately 150 acres to approximately 52 acres (the 
“Modified BP-CC Area”) and incorporating the area excluded from the BP-CC Plan into a new 
urban renewal plan known as the Town Square Urban Renewal Plan (the “Town Square Plan”). 
The proposed Town Square Plan area (the “Town Square Area”) is composed entirely of land in 
the BP-CC Plan prior to its proposed substantial modification as illustrated on the map attached to 

and made a part of this Agreement as Exhibit A. The proposed substantial modification of the BP- 
CC Plan, the Town Square Plan, and the Impact Report required by the Act have been submitted 
to the District. The final substantial modification of the BP-CC Plan and the final Town Square 
Plan as approved by the City Council shall constitute the BP-CC Plan and Town Square Plan, 
respectively, for the purposes of this Agreement. 

  

 



C. Effect of Modification of BP-CC Plan and Approval of Town Square Plan. Section 
31-25-107(7) of the Act states that (a) the proposed modification of the BP-CC Plan and (b) 
approval of the Town Square Plan require compliance with certain provisions of the Act, including 

House Bill 15-1348 enacted in 2015, as amended in 2016, by Senate Bill 16-177, and in 2017 by 
Senate Bill 17-279 (collectively, the “Amended 1348 Requirements”). 

  

D. Urban Renewal and Tax Increment Financing. To accomplish the redevelopment 

and to provide certain required improvements, the Authority has recommended that the Project be 
entitled the “Town Square Plan,” which Plan will authorize the utilization of tax increment 
financing in accordance with the Colorado Urban Renewal Law, Part 1 of Article 25 of Title 31, 

C.R.S. (the “Act’’), to pay Eligible Costs of the Improvements. The Plan has been provided to the 
Water Conservancy District under separate cover. The final version of the Plan as approved by 
the City Council shall be the “Plan” for purposes of this Agreement. The Parties hereto hereby 

approve the Plan in all respects, including any and all amendments thereto, so long as they have 
no effect on the agreement herein. 

  

E. Taxing Entity. The Water Conservancy District’s boundaries overlap the 

Authority’s jurisdictional boundaries and the Water Conservancy District has the authority to 
impose a mill levy pursuant to C.R.S. §37-45-121 on the Property included within the proposed 
Urban Renewal Area. 

F. Equitable Deal Structure. The District and the Authority, along with other taxing 
districts, have undertaken to prepare an equitable deal structure. 
  

G. Colorado Urban Renewal Law. In accordance with the Act as amended to the date 
of this Agreement (including the Amended 1348 Requirements), the Parties desire to enter into 
this Agreement to facilitate adoption of the Plan and redevelopment of the proposed Urban 

Renewal Area described therein. The Agreement addresses, among other things, the estimated 
impacts of the Plan on the Water Conservancy District services associated solely with the Plan. 

  

AGREEMENT 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants, promises and agreements of each 

of the Parties hereto, to be kept and performed by each of them, it is agreed by and between the 
Parties hereto as set forth herein. 

I, INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. The foregoing recitals are incorporated into 
and made a part of this Agreement. 
  

2. DEFINITIONS. As used in this Agreement: 
  

Dal “Act” means the Colorado Urban Renewal Law, Part 1 of Article 25 of Title 31, 
G.R.S. 

2.2 “Agreement” means this Agreement, as it may be amended or supplemented in 
writing. References to sections or exhibits are to this Agreement unless otherwise qualified.



23 “Agricultural Land” has the meaning set forth in Section 6 hereof. 
  

2.4 “Authority” means the Broomfield Urban Renewal Authority, a body corporate 
and politic of the State of Colorado. 

Dag) “Base_Value” means for the BP-CC Plan (as substantially modified) the 
recalculated Base Value for the Modified BP-CC Area as adjusted from time to time in accordance 

with the Act, and for the Town Square Area means the total assessed value of the Town Square 
Area as of the date last certified and adjusted periodically in accordance with Section 31-25- 
107(9)(e) of the Act. 

2.6 “BP-CC Plan” means the urban renewal plan as substantially modified and 
approved by the City Council as described in Recitals. 

2.7. “Bonds” shall have the same meaning as defined in §31-25-103 of the Act. 

2.8 “City and County” means the City and County of Broomfield, Colorado. 
  

2.9 “Duration” means the 25-year period that the tax increment or tax allocation 
provisions will be in effect in the Modified BP-CC Area (which time period will remain as 

originally approved on August 13, 2013) and the Town Square Area, respectively, as specified in 
Section 31-25-109(a) of the Act. For the Modified BP-CC Area, the Duration extends through 
2038, the last year the Authority is authorized to receive Property Tax Increment Revenues. For 
the Town Square Area the Duration extends through 2050. 

2.10 “Eligible Costs” means those costs eligible to be paid or reimbursed from the 
Property Tax Increment Revenues pursuant to the Act. 

  

2.11 “Impact Report” means the impact report previously submitted to the District 
setting forth the burdens and benefits of the Urban Renewal Projects on the District and other 
taxing entities. 

  

2.12 “Improvements” means the public improvements and private improvements to be 
constructed on the Property pursuant to the Plan. 

  

2.13. “Increment Value” for the BP-CC Area means the adjusted value of the increment 
portion of the assessment roll for the Modified BP-CC Area as further adjusted from time to time 
in accordance with the Act, and for the Town Square Area means the increase in assessed value, 
if any, above the Base Value (as described in Section 4.6) of the Town Square Area as adjusted 
from time to time in accordance with the Act. 

  

2.14 “Modified BP-CC Area” means the area included in the BP-CC Plan after its 
modification to exclude the proposed Town Square Urban Renewal Area. 
  

2.15 “Party” or “Parties” means the Authority and the Water Conservancy District, or 
each and their lawful successors and assigns. 
 



2.16 “Plan” means the urban renewal plan defined in Recitals above. 

2.17 “Project” shall have the same meaning as Urban Renewal Project. 

2.18 “Property Tax Increment Revenues” means the incremental property tax 

revenues derived from ad valorem property tax levies described in §31-25-107(9)(a)(ID of the Act 
allocated to the Special Fund for the Urban Renewal Project. 

  

2.19 “Remitted Water Conservancy District Increment” means 100% of the Water 

Conservancy District Increment which must be remitted to the Water Conservancy District by the 
Authority in accordance with Section 4 hereof. 

  

2.20 “Special Fund” means that certain special fund of the Authority into which 
Property Tax Increment Revenues shall be allocated to and paid into, as more particularly 

described in the Act. 

2.21 “TIF” means the property tax increment portion of the property tax assessment roll 
described in §31-25-107(9)(a)(II) of the Act. 

2.22 “Urban Renewal Area” means the area included in the boundaries of the Plan. 
  

2.23 “Urban Renewal Project” means all undertakings and activities, or any 

combination thereof, required to carry out the Plan pursuant to the Act. 
  

2.24 “Water Conservancy District Increment” means the portion of Property Tax 
Increment Revenues generated by the Water Conservancy District mill levy, received by the 
Authority from the City and County Treasurer. 

  

3. IMPACT REPORT. The Parties acknowledge receipt of, and the opportunity to 

review, the Impact Report, submitted in accordance with CRS. §31-25-107(3.5)(a). The Impact 
Report describes the benefits and burdens associated solely with the Plan and is hereby 
incorporated by reference. Having received the Impact Report prior to the commencement of 
negotiations for the purposes of entering into this Agreement, the District hereby waives any other 

statutory requirements related to receipt of the Impact Report. 

  

4. PROPERTY TAX INCREMENT REVENUES. In compliance with the 
requirements of §31-25-107(9.5)(a) of the Act, including the Amended 1348 Requirements, the 
Parties have negotiated and agreed to the sharing of Property Tax Increment Revenues remittance 
as set forth herein. 

  

4.1 Remitted Water Conservancy District Increment. The Water Conservancy District 

and the Authority agree that the Authority shall remit 100% of the Water Conservancy District 
Increment (as previously defined, the “Remitted Water Conservancy District Increment’) to the 
Water Conservancy District on or before the 20" day of each month, commencing on the date of 
approval by the City and County of the Plan and ending upon the earlier of: 1) the occurrence 
of the Duration; or 2) the payment in full of all bonds, loans, advances and indebtedness, if any, 

 



incurred by the Authority to pay for the Improvements, including interest thereon and any 
premiums due in connection therewith in accordance with §31-25-107(9)(a)(II) of the Act. 

4.2 | When the remittance ends upon the earlier of: 1) the occurrence of the Duration; 
or 2) the payment in full of all bonds, loans, advances and indebtedness, if any, incurred by the 

Authority to pay for the Improvements, including interest thereon and any premiums due in 
connection therewith in accordance with §31-25-107(9)(a)(II) of the Act, the entire Water 
Conservancy District Increment shall be paid by the County Treasurer to the Water Conservancy 

District and not to the Authority. The Authority shall annually provide a written report to the Water 
Conservancy District on progress towards completion of the Improvements. The report shall 
include information related to any significant changes in project scope or cost. 

4.3 All Water Conservancy District Increment upon receipt by the Authority will be 

deposited into the Special Fund to be utilized in accordance with this Section 4 hereof. No Water 
Conservancy District Increment will be deposited or transferred into any other Authority fund or 
into the general fund or any other fund. 

5. PLEDGE OF PROPERTY TAX INCREMENT REVENUES. The Water 
Conservancy District and the Authority recognize and agree that this Agreement is an indebtedness 
of the Authority under §31-25-107(9)(a)(II) of the Act and the Authority has elected to apply the 
provisions of §11-57-208, C.R.S., to this Agreement with respect to the Remitted Water 
Conservancy District Increment. The Remitted Water Conservancy District Increment, when and 

as received by the Authority is and shall be subject to the lien of such pledge without any physical 
delivery, filing, or further act. The lien of such pledge on the Remitted Water Conservancy District 
Increment shall have priority over any or all other obligations and liabilities of the Authority with 

respect to the Remitted Water Conservancy District Increment. The lien of such pledge shall be 
valid, binding and enforceable as against all persons having claims of any kind in tort, contract, or 
otherwise against the Authority irrespective of whether such persons have notice of such lien. 

  

Oo. WAIVER. The Water Conservancy District acknowledges and agrees that the 
execution of this Agreement satisfies the requirements of the Act regarding all applicable 

Amended 1348 Requirements for the adoption of the Plan, TIF financing in accordance with the 
Plan, and notices related thereto, except those that may apply to future modifications of the Plan 
as required by Sections 31-25-107(3.5) and (7) of the Act. Subject to such right to receive notice 

of any proposed future modification of the Plan, the Water Conservancy District hereby waives 
any provision of the Act that provides for notice to, requires any filing with or by, requires or 
permits consent from, or provides any enforcement right to the Water Conservancy District. The 
Water Conservancy District agrees that it has received information on the estimated impacts of the 
Plan on the Water Conservancy District services associated with the Plan in the form of the Impact 
Report which is incorporated herein by reference, and therefore hereby deems that requirement 

satisfied; provided however, the Impact Report does not reflect the Parties agreement herein for 
the Remitted Water Conservancy District Increment as described in paragraph 5.1. 

7. LIMITATION OF AGREEMENT. This Agreement applies only to the Water 
Conservancy District Increment, as calculated, produced, collected and paid to the Authority from 
the Urban Renewal Area by the County Treasurer in accordance with §31-25-107(9)(a)(II) of the 

  

5



Act and the rules and regulations of the Property Tax Administrator of the State of Colorado, and 
does not include any other revenues of the County, Town or the Authority. 

8. MISCELLANEOUS. 
  

8.1 Delays. Any delays in or failure of performance by any Party of its obligations 
under this Agreement shall be excused if such delays or failure are a result of acts of God; fires; 
floods; earthquake; abnormal weather; strikes; labor disputes; accidents; regulation or order of 

civil or military authorities; shortages of labor or materials; or other causes, similar or dissimilar, 

including economic downturns, which are beyond the control of such Party. Notwithstanding the 

foregoing, where any of the above events shall occur which temporarily interrupt the ability of a 
Party to abide by its obligations as provided in this Agreement, as soon as the event causing such 
interruption shall no longer prevail, the applicable Party shall fulfill all of its obligations as soon 
as reasonably practicable. 

8.2 Termination and Subsequent Legislation or Litigation. In the event of termination 
of the Plan, including its TIF financing component, the Authority may terminate this Agreement 
by delivering written notice to the Water Conservancy District. The Parties further agree that in 
the event legislation is adopted or a decision by a court of competent jurisdiction is rendered after 
the effective date of this Agreement that invalidates or materially effects any provisions hereof, 

the Parties will in good faith negotiate for an amendment to this Agreement that most fully 
implements the original intent, purpose and provisions of this Agreement, but does not impair any 
otherwise valid contracts in effect at such time. 

  

8.3 Entire Agreement. This instrument embodies the entire agreement of the Parties 

with respect to the subject matter hereof. There are no promises, terms, conditions, or obligations 

other than those contained herein; and this Agreement shall supersede all previous 
communications, representations, or agreements, either verbal or written, between the Parties 

hereto. No modification to this Agreement shall be valid unless agreed to in writing by the Parties. 

  

8.4 Binding Effect. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon 
the Parties and their successors in interest. 

8.5 No Third-Party Enforcement. It is expressly understood and agreed that the 
enforcement of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and all rights of action relating to such 
enforcement, shall be strictly reserved to the undersigned Parties and nothing in this Agreement 
shall give or allow any claim or right of action whatsoever by any other person not included in this 

Agreement. It is the express intention of the undersigned Parties that any person or entity other 
than the undersigned Parties receiving services or benefits under this Agreement shall be an 
incidental beneficiary only. 

  

8.6 No Waiver of Immunities. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as a 
waiver of the rights and privileges of the Parties pursuant to the Colorado Governmental Immunity 
Act, §24-10-101, et seq., C.R.S., as the same may be amended from time to time. No portion of 

this Agreement shall be deemed to have created a duty of care which did not previously exist with 
respect to any person not a party to this agreement. 

6



8.7. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended only by an instrument in writing 
signed by the Parties. 

8.8 Parties not Partners. Notwithstanding any language in this Agreement or any other 
agreement, representation, or warranty to the contrary, the Parties shall not be deemed to be 
partners or joint venturers, and no Party shall be responsible for any debt or liability of any other 
Party. 

  

8.9 Interpretation. All references herein to Bonds shall be interpreted to include the 
incurrence of debt by the Authority in any form consistent with the definition of “Bonds” in the 
Act, including payment of Eligible Costs or any other lawful financing obligation. 

8.10 Incorporation of Recitals and Exhibits. The provisions of the Recitals and the 
Exhibits attached to this Agreement are incorporated in and made a part of this Agreement. 
  

8.11 No Assignment. No Party may assign any of its rights or obligations under this 
Agreement. Any attempted assignment in violation of this provision shall be null and void and of 
no force and effect. 

  

8.12 Section Captions. The captions of the sections are set forth only for the 
convenience and reference of the Parties and are not intended in any way to define, limit, or 
describe the scope or intent of this Agreement. 

  

8.13 Execution in Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall constitute but one 
and the same instrument. 

  

8.14 Electronic Transactions. The Parties agree that any individual or individuals who 
are authorized to execute this Agreement on behalf of the Authority or the Water Conservancy 

District are hereby authorized to execute this Agreement electronically via electronic signature. 
This agreement by the Parties to use electronic signatures is made pursuant to Article 71.3 of Title 
24, C.R.S., also known as the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act. Any electronic signature so 

affixed to this Agreement shall carry the full legal force and effect of any original, handwritten 
signature. The Parties hereto agree that the transactions described herein may be conducted and 
related documents may be stored by electronic means. Copies, telecopies, facsimiles, electronic 
files, and other reproductions of original executed documents shall be deemed to be authentic and 

valid counterparts of such original documents for all purposes, including the filing of any claim, 
action, or suit in the appropriate court of law. 

  

8.15 Governing Law. This Agreement and the provisions hereof shall be governed by 
and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Colorado. 
  

8.16 NoPresumption. The Parties to this Agreement and their attorneys have had a full 
opportunity to review and participate in the drafting of the final form of this Agreement. 
Accordingly, this Agreement shall be construed without regard to any presumption or other rule 
of construction against the Party causing the Agreement to be drafted. 

 



8.17 Notices. Any notice required by this Agreement shall be in writing. All notices, 

demands, requests and other communications required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing, 
and shall be (a) personally delivered with a written receipt of delivery; (b) sent by a nationally- 
recognized overnight delivery service requiring a written acknowledgement of receipt or providing 

a certification of delivery or attempted delivery; (c) sent by certified or registered mail, return 
receipt requested; or (d) sent by electronic delivery with an original copy thereof transmitted to the 
recipient by one of the means described in subsections (a) through (c) no later than five business 

days thereafter. All notices shall be deemed effective when actually delivered as documented in a 
delivery receipt; provided, however, that if the notice was sent by overnight courier or mail as 
aforesaid and is affirmatively refused or cannot be delivered during customary business hours by 

reason of the absence of a signatory to acknowledge receipt, or by reason of a change of address 
with respect to which the addressor did not have either knowledge or written notice delivered in 
accordance with this paragraph, then the first attempted delivery shall be deemed to constitute 

delivery. Each Party shall be entitled to change its address for notices from time to time by 
delivering to the other Party notice thereof in the manner herein provided for the delivery of 
notices. All notices shall be sent to the addressee at its address set forth in the Preamble to this 
Agreement. 

8.18 Days. If the day for any performance or event provided for herein is a Saturday, a 
Sunday, a day on which national banks are not open for the regular transactions of business, or a 
legal holiday pursuant to C.R.S. §24-11-101(1), such day shall be extended until the next day on 
which such banks and state offices are open for the transaction of business. 

8.19 Precedent. The Parties agree that this Agreement is entered into for the specific 
Plan described herein. All other future urban renewal projects will be evaluated on their specific 
attributes and merits and agreements for those projects may include additional or different terms 
from this Agreement. This Agreement is not deemed to set precedent for such future agreements. 

8.20 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is found to be invalid, illegal or 
unenforceable, the validity and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in any way be 
affected or impaired thereby. 

8.21 Authority. The persons executing this Agreement on behalf of the Parties covenant 
and warrant that each is fully authorized to execute this Agreement on behalf of such Party. The 

Parties further covenant and warrant that they are authorized to enter into this Agreement pursuant 
to law, including, without limitation, C.R.S. §31-25-107(9.5). 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Authority and the Water Conservancy District have caused 
their duly authorized officials to execute this Agreement effective as of the Effective Date. 

NORTHERN COLORADO WATER 
CONSERVANCY DISTRICT 

; BI ae WE fats 
7 SSS Title: <oZ ne ref “V2 aye 

ATTEST® ssc SS 

By: —e Sel. Adoorn 

  

  

  

 



BROOMFIELD URBAN RENEWAL 

AUTHORITY 

By: 
  

Title: 
  

ATTEST: 
  

By: 
 



Exhibit A 

  

  

Pes 

THE CITY AND COUNTY OF BROOMFIELD 

‘~~ Proposed Broomfield Town Square URA (New) & 
Proposed Broomfield Plaza Civic Center URA (Amended) 

    

   



April 16, 2021 

Patrick Quinn, Chair 
Broomfield Urban Renewal Authority 
One DesCombes Drive 
Broomfield, CO 80020 

RE: Broomfield Town Square Urban Renewal Plan 

Dear Mr. Quinn: 

 This letter agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into pursuant to Section 31-25-107(9.5), C.R.S.  The 
Urban Drainage and Flood Control District d/b/a Mile High Flood District (“District”) understands that the 
Broomfield Urban Renewal Authority (“Authority”) and the City and County of Broomfield (“Broomfield”) 
intend to adopt the Broomfield Town Center Urban Renewal Plan (the “ Plan”) and to create the 
Broomfield Town Square Urban Renewal Area. 

 The District is in receipt of the proposed Plan creating the Broomfield Town Square Urban Renewal Area 
as proposed to the City Council of Broomfield and, the proposed Ordinance establishing the Tax Increment 
Area and authorizing the use of property tax increment and sales tax increment for redevelopment of the 
Urban Redevelopment Area. 

 The District agrees that in accordance with C.R.S. § 31-25-107(9.5), that the District has received proper 
notice of the proposed Plan and that the Authority and the District are entering into this agreement to 
address the estimated impacts of the Plan on District services associated solely with the Plan.  The District 
has determined that there are no material impacts to District services caused by the proposed Plan and 
the creation of the Tax Increment Area and therefore the tax increment derived from the District’s mill 
levy shall be allocated to the Authority.  The parties agree that this Agreement satisfies the requirements 
of C.R.S. § 31-25-107(9.5)(a). 

 The District further agrees that, as permitted under C.R.S. § 31-25-107(9.5)(b)(i), the District waives the 
requirements of (i) any future notice, except for substantial modifications or amendments to the Plan, 
including the addition of a project or regarding the modification of the Tax Increment Area under the Plan, 
(ii) any future filings with or by the District, (iii) any requirement for future consent by the District, except
consent to any substantial modifications or amendments to the Plan, including the addition of a project or
regarding the modification of the Tax Increment Area under the Plan and (iv) any enforcement right
regarding the Plan, or matters contemplated under the Plan, except that the District shall have the right to
take any actions necessary to enforce this Agreement.

 If Broomfield and the Authority desire that the drainage and flood control facilities constructed as part 
of the Plan be eligible for future District maintenance assistance, they shall comply with all terms and 
conditions of Amended Resolution No. 38, Series of 2011 as amended by Resolution 21, Series of 2016, 
including but not limited to Resolution No. 26, Series of 1983 of the District. 

SAMPLE



The consent of the District to the Plan will expire and be of no force and effect unless the Town Square 
Urban Renewal Project is commenced by December 31, 2026.  

If this letter correctly reflects our agreement, please sign below and return a fully-executed original to 
me. 

Respectfully, 

ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED: 

BROOMFIELD URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY 

By: __________________________ 
     Patrick Quinn, Chair 

Date: ________________________ 

SAMPLE



City and County of Broomfield

City Council Regular Meeting

D. Public Hearing - 11961 Quay Street Use by Special Review and Rezoning First Reading

Meeting

Tuesday, March 25, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Action Items Item: 7D.

Presented By

Lynn Merwin

Community Goals

☑ Thriving, Diverse, Safe and Welcoming Community

Overview

View Correspondence and visit BroomfieldVoice.com

View Presentation

The applicant has submitted an application for consideration of a Rezoning and a Use by Special Review for the
property located at 11961 Quay Street. The purpose of this proposal is to formalize the location of an outdoor
storage area, which the owner uses to store eight equipment trailers for the neighboring Broomfield Rentals
Incorporated. 

 

 

 

Attachments

11961 Quay Street (TLC Car Wash) Rezoning and USR - 1st Reading City Council Memo.pdf
Resolution No. 2025-60 11961 Quay Street USR.pdf
Ordinance No. 2264 - Rezoning 1st Reading.pdf

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://www.broomfieldvoice.com/tlc-carwash-outdoor-storage
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F66b0fc85976260004a9ab39f%2F11961%20Quay%20Street%20(TLC%20Car%20Wash)%20Rezoning%20and%20USR%20-%201st%20Reading%20City%20Council%20Memo.pdf?alt=media&token=51249820-0b77-446f-b4bd-44aef83a0f1e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F66b0fc85976260004a9ab39f%2F11961%20Quay%20Street%20(TLC%20Car%20Wash)%20Rezoning%20and%20USR%20-%201st%20Reading%20City%20Council%20Memo.pdf?alt=media&token=51249820-0b77-446f-b4bd-44aef83a0f1e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F66b0fc85976260004a9ab39f%2F11961%20Quay%20Street%20(TLC%20Car%20Wash)%20Rezoning%20and%20USR%20-%201st%20Reading%20City%20Council%20Memo.pdf?alt=media&token=51249820-0b77-446f-b4bd-44aef83a0f1e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F66b0fc85976260004a9ab39f%2F11961%20Quay%20Street%20CC%20Resolution%20USR.pdf?alt=media&token=9462201a-fba8-4a86-9329-c609b52c734f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F66b0fc85976260004a9ab39f%2F11961%20Quay%20Street%20CC%20Resolution%20USR.pdf?alt=media&token=9462201a-fba8-4a86-9329-c609b52c734f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F66b0fc85976260004a9ab39f%2F11961%20Quay%20Street%20CC%20Resolution%20USR.pdf?alt=media&token=9462201a-fba8-4a86-9329-c609b52c734f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F66b0fc85976260004a9ab39f%2F11961%20Quay%20Street%20Ordinance%20-%20Rezoning%201st%20Reading.pdf?alt=media&token=1aa232aa-dc41-49dc-b7b4-4174e808e2c7
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F66b0fc85976260004a9ab39f%2F11961%20Quay%20Street%20Ordinance%20-%20Rezoning%201st%20Reading.pdf?alt=media&token=1aa232aa-dc41-49dc-b7b4-4174e808e2c7
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F66b0fc85976260004a9ab39f%2F11961%20Quay%20Street%20Ordinance%20-%20Rezoning%201st%20Reading.pdf?alt=media&token=1aa232aa-dc41-49dc-b7b4-4174e808e2c7


11961 Quay St (TLC Car Wash) - Rezoning and Use by Special Review 
Prepared By: Ted Harberg, Senior Planner 

Summary 

View Correspondence and BroomfieldVoice Page 

View Presentation 

 

The applicant, Kyle Williams, has submitted an application for consideration of a Rezoning and a Use by 

Special Review for the property located at 11961 Quay Street. The purpose of this proposal is to formalize 

the location of an outdoor storage area, which the owner uses to store eight equipment trailers for the 

neighboring Broomfield Rentals Incorporated.  The two businesses are both owned by Kyle Williams. 

The subject property includes a car wash, which is permitted by the C-1(J) zone district, and storage of 

trailers. The storage of trailers is not a permitted use. To bring the trailer storage use into compliance, the 

applicant is requesting to rezone from the C-1(J) Jefferson County legacy zone district to the Broomfield I-2 

zone district, and has requested a Use by Special Review (USR) to allow the storage of eight equipment 

trailers, enclosed and screened by a fence as required by the Broomfield Municipal Code.  

No physical changes to the property are proposed beyond the installation of the new screening fence and 

gate for access. 

The proposed USR can be approved conditionally upon the final approval of the rezoning of the property on 

second reading. 
 

Financial and Economic Considerations 

The proposed rezoning and Use by Special Review would allow the property owner, and operating businesses, 

to continue their current activities.  While the storage trailers have been a non-comforming use, the 

businesses operating have provided some unique community services as well some entry-level, first-job  

opportunities over a number of years.   

The net fiscal benefit of the current activities is positive, but relatively small; with tax revenues primarily 

coming from property taxes and limited sales tax.  

If this proposed rezoning and use were not to be approved, the applicant would no longer be able to operate 

a portion of the business activity (utilizing the equipment trailers for business or leased storage).  

Prior Council or Other Entity Actions 

● The Olson Subdivision plat was approved in 1952 in Jefferson County. 

● The Olson Addition subdivision plat was approved 1954 in Jefferson County. 

● The Olson Subdivision and the Olson Addition were annexed to Broomfield in 1969. 

Boards and Commissions Prior Actions and Recommendations 

The Land Use Review Commission reviewed the proposal on February 10, 2025, and voted unanimously to 

recommend approval of the proposal with no conditions. 

 

1 

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m?usp=drive_link
https://www.broomfieldvoice.com/tlc-carwash-outdoor-storage
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82


11961 Quay St (TLC Car Wash) - Rezoning and Use by Special Review 
Prepared By: Ted Harberg, Senior Planner 

Proposed Actions / Recommendations 

Following and subject to the results of the public hearing, if Council wishes to approve the application as 

presented, it is recommended… 

That Ordinance No. 2264 be adopted on first reading and ordered published in full, and that a public 

hearing and second reading of the Ordinance be held on April 8, 2025, at 6 pm as allowed by City 

Council Procedures and Rules of Order.  

That Resolution No. 2025-60 be approved subject to the condition that Ordinance  
 No. 2264 is approved. 

Alternatives 

If the proposed plans do not comply with applicable BMC review standards: 

● Postpone action on the resolution and ordinance and continue the hearing to a date certain; or 

● Remand the application to the Land Use Review Commission; or 

● Do not approve Ordinance No. 2264, and recommend denial of the application, directing the City and 

County Attorney to draft findings to support denial of the application and continue the application 

for a decision to a date certain. 

 

Key Details 

Project Website 

https://www.broomfieldvoice.com/tlc-carwash-outdoor-storage  

Links to Application Materials 

Letter of Request 

Use by Special Review Plan 

How to Submit Public Comments on this Proposal 

Email directly to Planning@broomfield.org 

Key Issues Identified By Staff 

Staff has not identified any key issues with the subject proposal. 

Property Owner and Applicant 

Property Owner: The Floy Corporation 

Applicant: Kyle Williams - TLC Car Wash 

Concept Review Plans 

A Concept Plan Review is not required for an application for a rezoning and a use by special review. 

2 

https://www.broomfieldvoice.com/tlc-carwash-outdoor-storage
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1-jdI1q8FO4ed2t_UcIohq99v3EdfH-wx/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/19wHc_-0ybwQCsoAwQIpIDKwKixmLbrUS/view?usp=sharing
mailto:Planning@broomfield.org


11961 Quay St (TLC Car Wash) - Rezoning and Use by Special Review 
Prepared By: Ted Harberg, Senior Planner 

Applicable City and County of Broomfield Plans 

Relationship to Comprehensive Plan 

The 2016 Broomfield Comprehensive Plan land use designation for this property is “Industrial.” The 

Comprehensive Plan describes the primary uses within Industrial areas as including light and heavy 

industrial, office, manufacturing, research and development, warehousing, outside storage, and some 

commercial uses. The proposed application is consistent with this designation. The following map shows the 

project location within a portion of the land use map for the surrounding area.  

 

A Portion of the 2016 Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map 

Goals and Policies of the Comp Plan  

Elements of the proposed project could help meet the following Comprehensive Plan goals: 

Policy LU-I.3: Support the phasing out of legacy zone districts and standards and incorporate them into 

the simplified Broomfield regulations. 

Goal ED-B: Commercial Vitality - Maintain and enhance the vitality of commercial, industrial, and retail 

sectors in order to provide employment and tax base. 

Goal ED-G: Adequate Tax Base - Ensure an adequate property and sales tax base to support quality 

community services, facilities, and amenities as identified within the Long-Range Financial Plan, and 

without placing an undue tax burden on citizens. 

3 



11961 Quay St (TLC Car Wash) - Rezoning and Use by Special Review 
Prepared By: Ted Harberg, Senior Planner 

Zoning, Urban Renewal Area, and Previously 

Approved Plans 

Zoning  

The site of this application is zoned C-1(J). This is a zone district included in the legacy Jefferson County 

zoning code, and has been in place for the site since the time of its annexation into Broomfield in 1969. The 

car wash is permitted by the C-1(J) zone district; however, the storage of trailers is not. To bring the trailer 

storage use into compliance, the applicant is requesting to rezone from the legacy Jefferson County C-1(J) 

district to the Broomfield I-2 zone district. The I-2 zone district allows the outdoor storage of trailers as a 

Use by Special Review (USR), and changing to this Broomfield zone district allows the applicant to also 

request the necessary USR. 

A zoning designation of I-2 is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan land use designation of “Industrial,” 

and with the Original Broomfield Neighborhood Plan designation of Office/Flex Light Industrial, and will 

allow the car wash to continue operating.  

Original Broomfield Urban Renewal Plan and the Original Broomfield 

Neighborhood Plan 

This property is within the boundaries of the Original Broomfield Urban Renewal Plan and the Original 

Broomfield Neighborhood Plan areas. The Original Broomfield Urban Renewal Plan states that “The principal 

goal of this Plan is to help the Area to redevelop in accordance with Broomfield's 2005 Comprehensive Plan 

(the "Comprehensive Plan") and, more specifically, the Original Broomfield Neighborhood Plan (the 

"Neighborhood Plan").” An urban renewal site plan (URSP) is only required for applications that propose new 

development or significant building exterior modifications. This application does not require a URSP. 

The Original Broomfield Neighborhood Plan designates the land use for this property as Office/Flex Light 

Industrial. The proposed application is consistent with this designation. 

Previously Approved Plans 

There are no applicable previously approved development plans for this site. This property is a part of the 

Olson Addition subdivision, which was annexed into the City of Broomfield in 1969 (prior to becoming a city 

and county). 

4 



11961 Quay St (TLC Car Wash) - Rezoning and Use by Special Review 
Prepared By: Ted Harberg, Senior Planner 

Area Context 

The area for this proposed rezoning is generally located south of W 120th Avenue, and west of Main Street. 

The property is located near similar business and commercial properties to the north and east, and office 

and flex/industrial uses to the south and west. A project location map is included below. 

 

Project Location Map 

 

5 



11961 Quay St (TLC Car Wash) - Rezoning and Use by Special Review 
Prepared By: Ted Harberg, Senior Planner 

Current Application - Detailed Description and Staff 

Review 

Description 

This application includes both a request to rezone from C-1(J) to I-2 and a request for a Use by Special 

Review to allow the storage of eight equipment trailers, enclosed and screened by a fence as required by 

the Broomfield Municipal Code. 

In the Use by Special Review (USR) plan, the applicant includes a plan for fencing that will enclose the 

perimeter of the storage area, and a plan for movable fence panels that will be affixed to the pavement 

using panel locks. Panels will be unlocked and removed to access a trailer when necessary. Only TLC Car 

Wash employees or Broomfield Rentals Incorporated Employees will have keys to access the storage area. No 

physical changes to the property are proposed beyond the installation of the new screening fence and gates 

for access. 

In the USR operation plan, the applicant proposes to establish one-way vehicle traffic through the use of 

one-way and do not enter signage. These signs were reviewed and approved by Broomfield’s traffic engineer. 

Site Layout and Circulation 

Vehicles access this lot from Quay Street. Vehicles enter the car wash as they drive into the site from the 

east, and exit the structure to the west through the rear. As a part of the operations plan, the applicant is 

proposing to establish one-way circulation counter-clockwise around the car wash structure with the use of 

traffic signage, as shown in the image below. 

 

 

TLC Car Wash Site Plan - North is to the right, Quay street is at the bottom 

6 



11961 Quay St (TLC Car Wash) - Rezoning and Use by Special Review 
Prepared By: Ted Harberg, Senior Planner 

Site Landscaping and Drainage 

No changes to the site landscaping and drainage are required or proposed as a part of this application.  

Fencing and Screening 

The Broomfield Municipal Code requires that any outdoor storage of equipment, vehicles and materials 

approved by special review be enclosed and screened by a fence or a wall as defined in section 17-32-140.  

The applicant is proposing to use chain-link fencing with green mesh (knitted high density polyethylene, 

HDPE), which meets the screening requirements of the code. The south, west, and north fence lines will be 

permanently mounted in concrete post foundations, while the east fenceline will consist of 12’x6’ panels 

which will interlock to each other as well as to the concrete pad via tabbed footings. The fence screening 

will only enclose the equipment storage shown on the western boundary of the site. The remainder of the 

site, used for the car wash business, will remain open and unfenced. 

The applicant has included a diagram of the proposed movable fence panels as a part of the Use by Special 

Review operations plan, and this is shown below. 

 

Broomfield does not have specific structural standards for fence panel installation, however Broomfield’s 

Chief Building Official has recommended that the panel locks be capable of handling up to a 90 mile per 

hour wind. The applicant has affirmed that the fence panels will be able to withstand winds of these speeds. 

Site Landscaping and Drainage 

No changes to the site landscaping and drainage are required or proposed as a part of this application.    

Neighborhood Outreach and Communication 

The City and County of Broomfield standard public notice requirements have been met for this case. These 

requirements include: 

● Mail notices were sent to all property owners within 1,000 feet of the project boundaries a minimum 

of ten days in advance of the meeting. 

● Sign(s) were posted on the property a minimum of ten days in advance of the meeting to advertise 

the public hearing. 

● Publication in the newspaper (Broomfield Enterprise) more than five days before the hearing. 

A neighborhood meeting for the proposed development was held on June 6, 2024. No members of the public 

attended the meeting. 

Staff created a project website for this development proposal on the BroomfieldVoice platform. Staff 

provided general information and shared submittal documents on this page. 

7 

https://library.municode.com/co/broomfield/codes/municipal_code?nodeId=TIT17ZO_CH17-32ACBUUS_17-32-140FEHEWA
https://www.broomfieldvoice.com/tlc-carwash-outdoor-storage


11961 Quay St (TLC Car Wash) - Rezoning and Use by Special Review 
Prepared By: Ted Harberg, Senior Planner 

 

Land Use Review Commission 

On February 10th, 2025 the Land Use Review Commission held a public hearing concerning the proposal. The 

commission voted unanimously to recommend approval of the subject proposal with no conditions.  

Applicable Municipal Code Provisions 

Rezoning - Review Criteria  

17-48-020 - Procedure for rezoning. 

 . . .  

(F) The recommendation of the land use review commission and decision of the city council for rezoning 

requests shall consider the applicant's proposed rezoning request based upon the following criteria: 

(1) The proposal is in (i) general conformance with applicable land use plans including but not 

limited to the Broomfield Comprehensive Plan and, sub area plans, or (ii) there has been 

substantial change in the character of the area to support the rezoning action, or (iii) the 

official zoning classification is in error. 

(2) The proposal is compatible with existing and allowable land uses in the surrounding area. 

(3) The proposal's effect upon the health, safety, and welfare of the residents and landowners in 

the surrounding areas. 

(4) The proposal is an opportunity or an appropriate site, at an appropriate location, for the 

particular type of land use or development proposed and will help the city achieve a balance 

of land use, tax base, or housing types consistent with the city's overall planning and 

economic development goals. 

Use by Special Review - Review Criteria  

 

17-30-040 - Notice; review standards. 

Any public hearing held pursuant to this chapter 17-30, B.M.C., shall have been properly noticed in 

accordance with the provisions of chapter 17-52, B.M.C. 

A. Except for oil and gas wells or injection wells, factors to be considered are the relation of the 

requested uses to the character of the surrounding neighborhood, the desirability and need for such 

a use in the specific area of the community, adverse environmental influence that might result from 

its location, and, in general, compliance with the intent of this title. 

B. For oil and gas wells or injection wells, the review criteria shall be the factors set forth in section 

17-54-080 B.M.C. 

8 



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-60 

A Resolution approving Olson Addition, Lot 40 and Olson Subdivision, Lot 12  

Use By Special Review for Outdoor Storage at 11961 Quay Street 

 

 

Recitals. 

Whereas the applicant, TLC Carwash, submitted an application for a Use by Special 

Review for Olson Addition, Lot 40 and Olson Subdivision, Lot 12 located at 11961 Quay Street 

to allow for outdoor storage; 

Whereas a public hearing was held by the City and County of Broomfield Land Use 

Review Commission on February 10, 2025, at which time the Commission by formal resolution 

recommended unanimous approval of the subject application; and 

Whereas after proper notice was given in accordance with Chapter 17-52 of the 

Broomfield Municipal Code, a public hearing was heard by Council on March 25, 2025. 

Now therefore, be it resolved by the City Council of the City and County of 

Broomfield, Colorado: 

 

Section 1.  Findings. 

Giving consideration to the study of the Broomfield master plan and the Broomfield Municipal 

Code, recommendations of the Land Use Review Commission, comments of public officials and 

agencies, and testimony and written comments from all interested parties, Council makes the 

following findings: 

 

1.1 That proper posting and public notice was provided as required by law for the 

hearing before the City Council and the case file is hereby incorporated into 

the record. 

 

1.2 That the hearing before City Council was extensive and complete, that all 

pertinent facts, matters, and issues were submitted and that all interested 

parties were heard at this hearing. 

 

1.3 The proposed use is consistent with the intent of the Use Permitted by Special 

Review chapter as set forth in Section 17-30-010 of the Broomfield Municipal 

Code. 

1.4 The proposed use is consistent with the character of the surrounding 

commercial and industrial area. The uses are currently existing on the property 

and have not been impactful to the surrounding neighbors.  

Section 2.  Action.  

On the basis of the above and pursuant to Chapter 17-30 of the Broomfield Municipal Code, 

Council hereby approves a Use By Special Review for outdoor storage at Olson Addition, Lot 40 

and Olson Subdivision, Lot 12, commonly known as 11961 Quay Street subject to the following 

Page 1 



 

condition:  

 

 A.  Ordinance 2264 to rezone the property to I-2 is approved. 
 

Section  4. Effective Date.  

This resolution is effective on the date of approval by the City Council. 

 

Approved on March 25, 2025. 

 

      The City and County of Broomfield,  

      Colorado 

 

 

      _____________________________ 

      Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

__________________________ 

Office of the City and County Clerk 

      Approved As To Form:    

        

           KKH 

      ______________________________ 

      City and County Attorney 

Page 2 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2264 

An Ordinance Rezoning of Olson Addition, Lot 40 and Olson Subdivision, Lot 12 (11961 Quay 

Street) from Commercial C-1(J) to General Industrial I-2 

 

Recitals 

Whereas, the applicant, Kyle Williams, submitted an application to rezone Olson 

Addition, Lot 40 and Olson Subdivision, Lot 12 for the Legacy Jefferson County Commercial 

C-1(J) to Broomfield General Industrial I-2 zone district; and  

 Whereas, a public hearing was heard by the Land Use Review Commission on February 

10, 2025, at which time the Land Use Review Commission by formal resolution recommended 

approval of the rezoning application.   

Be it ordained by the City Council of the City and County of Broomfield, Colorado: 

Section 1.  

 

Giving consideration to Broomfield Master Plan and the Broomfield Municipal Code, 

recommendations from the Land Use Review Commission, comments of public officials and 

agencies, and testimony and written comments of all interested parties, the City Council finds 

as follows: 

A. The proposal is in general conformance with the Broomfield Comprehensive Plan.  

B. The proposal is compatible with existing and allowable land uses in the surrounding 

area.  

C. The proposal will not result in substantial impacts to the health, safety and welfare of 

the residents and landowners in the surrounding area.  

D. The proposal is consistent with the city’s overall planning and economic development 

goals.  

Section 3. 

 

The real property as described in Exhibit A attached hereto is hereby rezoned from Legacy 

Jefferson County Commercial C-1(J) to Broomfield General Industrial I-2. 

 

Section 4. 

 

The City and County Clerk shall amend the zoning district map pursuant to §17-06-020 of the 

Broomfield Municipal Code. 

 

Section 5.  

 

This ordinance shall be effective seven days after public notice following final passage. 

 

1 



 

Introduced and approved after first reading on March 25, 2025, and ordered published in 

full. 

 

Introduced a second time and approved on April 8, 2025, and further ordered published. 

 

      The City And County Of Broomfield, Colorado 

 

 

      _______________________________ 

      Mayor 

Attest: 

 

 

___________________________ 

Office of the City and County Clerk 

      Approved As To Form: 

            

           NCR 
      ________________________________ 

      City and County Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Dec. 2023 

2 



 

EXHIBIT A - LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 

 

OLSON ADDITION, LOT 40 AND OLSON SUBDIVISION, LOT 12, CITY AND COUNTY OF 

BROOMFIELD, STATE OF COLORADO 

 
 

Dec. 2023 

3 



City and County of Broomfield

City Council Regular Meeting

E. Proposed Resolution for Open Space Naming

Meeting

Tuesday, March 25, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Action Items Item: 7E.

Presented By

Kristan Pritz, Director of Open Space and Trails

Community Goals

☑ Thriving, Diverse, Safe and Welcoming Community

Overview

View Correspondence 

View Presentation

The purpose of this memorandum is to request naming the 132-acre open space property located east of County Road 7, north of the

Palisade neighborhood, and west of Huron Street to “Water Runs Back Open Space" based on the Open Space and Trails Advisory
Committee’s unanimous recommendation of approval of the name, development of a Sister Cities relationship with the Cheyenne and
Arapaho tribes who suggested the name and overall community support. If the name is approved, identification signage will be placed on the

site by 2026.

 

Attachments

Memo for Naming Water Runs Back Open Space.pdf
Resolution 2025-49 Approving the Name “Water Runs Back Open Space” for the Property Located at 18100 CountyRoad 7 .pdf

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6733cc03186c4500542d318b%2FMemo%20for%20Naming%20Water%20Runs%20Back%20Open%20Space.pdf?alt=media&token=1eae8439-80d7-49ac-a599-647e325f2d18
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6733cc03186c4500542d318b%2FMemo%20for%20Naming%20Water%20Runs%20Back%20Open%20Space.pdf?alt=media&token=1eae8439-80d7-49ac-a599-647e325f2d18
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6733cc03186c4500542d318b%2FMemo%20for%20Naming%20Water%20Runs%20Back%20Open%20Space.pdf?alt=media&token=1eae8439-80d7-49ac-a599-647e325f2d18
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6733cc03186c4500542d318b%2FResolution%202025-49%20Approving%20the%20Name%20%E2%80%9CWater%20Runs%20Back%20Open%20Space%E2%80%9D%20for%20the%20Property%20Located%20at%2018100%20County%20Road%207%20.pdf?alt=media&token=1b75e976-4e9e-4a9e-9fea-9f5f543d9408
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6733cc03186c4500542d318b%2FResolution%202025-49%20Approving%20the%20Name%20%E2%80%9CWater%20Runs%20Back%20Open%20Space%E2%80%9D%20for%20the%20Property%20Located%20at%2018100%20County%20Road%207%20.pdf?alt=media&token=1b75e976-4e9e-4a9e-9fea-9f5f543d9408
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6733cc03186c4500542d318b%2FResolution%202025-49%20Approving%20the%20Name%20%E2%80%9CWater%20Runs%20Back%20Open%20Space%E2%80%9D%20for%20the%20Property%20Located%20at%2018100%20County%20Road%207%20.pdf?alt=media&token=1b75e976-4e9e-4a9e-9fea-9f5f543d9408
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F6733cc03186c4500542d318b%2FResolution%202025-49%20Approving%20the%20Name%20%E2%80%9CWater%20Runs%20Back%20Open%20Space%E2%80%9D%20for%20the%20Property%20Located%20at%2018100%20County%20Road%207%20.pdf?alt=media&token=1b75e976-4e9e-4a9e-9fea-9f5f543d9408


Memo for Water Runs Back Open Space Naming 
Prepared By: Chloe Chalekian, Open Space and Trails Specialist 

Summary 

View Correspondence 

View Presentation 

 

This memorandum is requesting to name the 132-acre open space property (Property) located east of County 

Road 7, north of the Palisade neighborhood, and west of Huron Street to “Water Runs Back Open Space" 

based on the Open Space and Trails Advisory Committee’s unanimous recommendation of approval. The 

Property was acquired in 2016 with Open Space Funds. 

 

In 2020, the Open Space and Trails Advisory Committee (OSTAC) discussed the idea of naming the Property 

with a name that had indigenous ties. After several discussions with OSTAC about how to best find a name 

that reflected indigenous ties, OSTAC requested that staff reach out to Arapaho and Cheyenne tribal 

leaders.  

 

In October of 2023, Arapaho and Cheyenne leaders visited Broomfield and met with Broomfield’s elected 

officials and community members to focus on relationship building at several public events. During a site 

visit to the Property with staff and an OSTAC member, the name “Water Runs Back” was suggested by Fred 

Mosqueda, Arapaho Language and Culture Outreach Specialist. In the Arapaho language, Mr. Mosqueda 

explained that this proposed name is cihce’ koohuu nec. A unique aspect of Community Ditch, which is 

located adjacent to the Property, is that the water appears to “run back” towards the mountains. Indigenous 

place names often refer to a unique aspect of the landscape. Photos of the Property show the adjacent 

Community Ditch, October 2023 site visit with staff, OSTAC site visit, and agricultural fields.  

 

To gauge public support for the proposed name, a polling process was presented to OSTAC on October 24, 

2024. OSTAC members reviewed the polling process and supported the outreach plan. The process used to 

develop the naming recommendation also complies with the Guidelines for Naming Public Facilities adopted 

by City Council on May 24, 2011. 

 

The poll was open for six weeks from November 5 to December 16 and was shared in:  

 

1) the November and December “Open Space and Trails Newsletters” that have an audience of 

approximately 4,600 subscribers;  

2) four times in the “Broomfield Community Update” between November 18 - December 9 that has 

an audience of approximately 12,000 subscribers;  

3) the “City Managers Office Update” to Council on November 15; and  

4) the Broomfield Employee Newsletter, “Together We Thrive” on November 15.  

 

Through this poll, 158 responses were collected with the majority of respondents (86%) being in favor of the 

proposed name. Three responses or 2% noted no preference for the name. Nineteen responses or 12% made 

comments under “Other.” Approximately 10 responses under “Other” included several potential names such 

as, Hinono’ei which means beautiful place in Cheyenne, Backwards Waters Open Space, Water Spirit Trail, 

Where Water Runs Back, Broomfield North Open Space, Blue Sky, Calmwater Park. Three of the “Other” 

responses preferred a simpler, shorter name. Six responses under “Other” did not support the name. 

 

On January 23, 2025, OSTAC made a motion to recommend the name, “Water Runs Back,” for consideration 

by the City Council. OSTAC cited the natural/historical value of the property as well as the special 

significance of the name itself as the criteria set by the Guidelines for Naming Public Facilities that 

supported its recommendation. The recommendation was unanimously approved. 

                 

1 
Item 7C Page 1

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1MfgTVCtx0psWFFBaeak7CHNBMVPWroGF/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1MfgTVCtx0psWFFBaeak7CHNBMVPWroGF/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1nzOoAZ-UberywVAPihM2YaCiYHWrGo4z/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/131IdCMNVOjRMnVgWzq5bDoXlYMzW61ic/view?usp=sharing


 

 

Through building ties with the Cheyenne and Arapaho tribes, including becoming Sister Cities as of this 

January, the adoption of the name would be another step in further strengthening the budding connection 

with the Cheyenne and Arapaho Tribes. 

 

In the coming years, an open space management plan for the Property that includes community engagement 

will be created to guide future open space and trail improvements. The Property has water rights which 

could allow for the establishment of a garden to grow native plants with cultural significance to the 

Cheyenne, Ute and Arapaho Tribes. There is also potential for the Property to be an area of cultural learning 

for both Broomfield residents and local urban native persons. If the proposed name is approved, interpretive 

signage explaining the story of the Property’s naming process, history, and natural characteristics will be 

incorporated into the open space management process. The proposed Property name will also be written in 

the Arapaho, Cheyenne and Ute languages. Several of the other names suggested in the poll could also be 

used for trails or other improvements such as a shade pavilion. 

 

Financial Considerations 

As shown in the sources and uses of funds summary below, the project can be completed within the 

budgeted amount. If the proposed name is approved, several open space identification signs will be installed 

on the Property.  

Sources and Uses of Funds Amount 

Signage Account (22-70060-55600) Project Code: 0AZ0036 $216,604 

 

Fabrication and installation of three Identification signs at $5,124 per 

sign 

-15,372 

Projected Balance $201,232 

 

Prior Council or Other Entity Actions 

On May 24, 2011, Council approved Guidelines for Naming Public Facilities.  

 

Boards and Commissions Prior Actions and Recommendations 

On October 24, 2024, OSTAC reviewed and supported the polling process. 

On January 23, 2025, OSTAC recommended the proposed name, “Water Runs Back” unanimously. 

 

OSTAC has collaborated previously with the Cheyenne, Arapaho and Ute tribes on the Open Space and Trails 

Land Acknowledgement (2022) and interpretive sign at Shep’s Crossing (2022). OSTAC also participated in 

the Soil Exchange with the Arapaho and Cheyenne tribes (2023). 

 

Proposed Actions / Recommendations 

If Council desires to approve the name, the appropriate motion is... 

That Resolution 2025-49 be adopted. 

 

2 
Item 7C Page 2

https://drive.google.com/file/d/154u_i95log_Nbe_1FJ3dN5sVZGkDVM05/view?usp=sharing


 

Alternatives 

Council could decide not to approve the proposed name or identify another name. 

3 
Item 7C Page 3



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-49 

 

A Resolution Approving the Name “Water Runs Back Open Space” for the Property Located at 

18100 County Road 7 

Be it resolved by the City Council of the City and County of Broomfield, Colorado: 

 

Section 1.   

 

The proposed name ”Water Runs Back Open Space” for the property located at 18100 County 

Road 7 is hereby approved by City Council. 

 

Section 2. 

 

This resolution is effective upon its approval by the City Council. 

 

 Approved on March 25, 2025 

 

The City and County of Broomfield, Colorado 

 

 

 

        

Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

       

Office of the City and County Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

NCR 
        

City and County Attorney 

Page 1 

Revised 3/2025 

Item 7C Page 1



City and County of Broomfield

City Council Regular Meeting

F. Proposed Resolution for Authorized Spending for On Demand Services under Master Services Agreements

Meeting

Tuesday, March 25, 2025, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Action Items Item: 7F.

Presented By

David Acevedo-Yates

Community Goals

Overview

View Correspondence 

View Presentation

The Procurement Division is requesting approval of on-call, on demand and emergency expenditures in excess of
$200,000 through the use of master service agreements 

 

 

Attachments

Memo for Master Services Agreements.pdf
Resolution 2025-59 for Authorized Spending under Master Services Agreements.pdf

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F677d6134abff6900544427bf%2FMemo%20for%20Master%20Services%20Agreements.pdf?alt=media&token=8424f4c3-b661-452b-8ba1-1daa7327834f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F677d6134abff6900544427bf%2FMemo%20for%20Master%20Services%20Agreements.pdf?alt=media&token=8424f4c3-b661-452b-8ba1-1daa7327834f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F677d6134abff6900544427bf%2FMemo%20for%20Master%20Services%20Agreements.pdf?alt=media&token=8424f4c3-b661-452b-8ba1-1daa7327834f
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F677d6134abff6900544427bf%2FResolution%202025-59%20for%20Authorized%20Spending%20under%20Master%20Services%20Agreements.pdf?alt=media&token=49199eef-da24-4d17-9308-768b1d331968
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F677d6134abff6900544427bf%2FResolution%202025-59%20for%20Authorized%20Spending%20under%20Master%20Services%20Agreements.pdf?alt=media&token=49199eef-da24-4d17-9308-768b1d331968
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/broomfield%2Factions%2F677d6134abff6900544427bf%2FResolution%202025-59%20for%20Authorized%20Spending%20under%20Master%20Services%20Agreements.pdf?alt=media&token=49199eef-da24-4d17-9308-768b1d331968


Memo for Process Improvements and Authorized Spending for On Demand Services under Master Services Agreements 
Prepared By: Tracy Stibitz, Procurement Contracts Administrator 

Summary 

View Correspondence 

View Presentation 

The Procurement Division has been working with the City Attorney’s Office and departments on 

process improvements for on-call, on demand and emergency goods and services for over one year. 

The result of this collaborative and intentional process is the development of Master Service 

Agreements. The use of Master Service Agreements, combined with the delegation of authorization 

for budget-approved spending is a more efficient and streamlined process for these types of 

services.  

Staff is requesting City Council delegate authority to the City and County Manager to authorize 

expenditures of on-call, on demand and emergency expenditure through the use of Master Service 

Agreements in excess of $200,000, including:  

● Landscape and Irrigation Services with the following vendors: Colorado Design Scapes, Elite 

Industries, Grandview Landscape, LTA Lawn Service, Richdell Construction, and Western 

States Reclamation 

● Bridge and Guardrail repair services with the following vendors: ABCO Contracting and 

Hallmark, Inc. 

● Vehicle Body Work Services with the following vendors:  Diversified Body Shop and 

McCandless Truck Center 

Resolution No. 2025-59 would authorize the City and County Manager, or designee, to approve 

purchase orders up to the approved budget amount of on-call, on demand and emergency 

expenditures based on the Department’s authorized budget. Master service agreements with no 

dollar value have already been entered with each vendor.  This resolution is specific to the 

spending authority for the City and County Manager. This is a needed process improvement and will 

increase efficiency for these types of expenditures. 

The use of master services agreements are initially non-encumbering (zero-sum) contracts, and 

have Broomfield’s standard terms and conditions. Encumbrances of funds occur when any on-call, 

on demand or emergency services are identified and purchase orders are issued confirming the 

work, and at that time encumbering any funds. Under the Broomfield Municipal Code, any 

individual purchase agreement or aggregate purchase agreements in a calendar year over $200,000 

must be approved by Council.  By using the master services agreement along with this specific 

spending authority, staff will not have to return to Council for each expenditure for these specific 

high-need and on demand vendors. 

Financial Considerations 

There are no financial considerations for this item, as any work shall occur on an on-call, on 

demand or emergency basis, through the use of master services agreements, for which the budget 

has already been appropriated as part of the 2025 budget process. 

                 

1 

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1H3C5Duwv4J7OiWZ7_9fBn8fPbUZJB46m
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1dQECA38Xo6O-G_PF4e2pgTlW6GzWIO82


 

Staff is requesting City Council delegate authority to the City and County Manager to approve 

purchase orders for expenditures in excess of $200,000, including those which may exceed 

aggregate spend thresholds, up to and not to exceed the appropriated budgeted amounts for the 

services identified.  

 

Sources and Uses of Funds for Multiple Projects Amount 

Various Dept Accounts – Landscaping and Irrigation Budget Line 

Item  

$830,000 

Various Dept Accounts  - Bridge and Guardrail Repair Budget Line 

Item  

$2,492,545 

01-30200-52790, R&M Vehicles - Vehicle Body Work Services 

Budget Line Item  

$462,350 

 

Any funding over and above the funding identified in the existing budget will still require future 

reviews and approvals from the City Council.   

Prior Council or Other Entity Actions 

N/A 

Boards and Commissions Prior Actions and Recommendations 

N/A 

Proposed Actions / Recommendations 

If Council desires to approve the authorization for the City and County Manager to approve 

purchase orders up to the approved budget amount of any Department’s authorized budget, the 

appropriate motion is 

That Resolution 2025-59 be adopted. 

Alternatives 

Do not provide the City and County Manager this delegated authority. Staff will continue with the 

current process of encumbering funding with each contract.  

 

Background 

As part of its regular business, the City and County of Broomfield enters into contracts with vendors 

for on-demand, recurring on-call, and unplanned services. These types of services may not have an 

intended project but may be regular purchases of materials, services or goods, repair services to 

Broomfield equipment and public areas, or unknown emergency services.  

2 



 

Often Broomfield is repeatedly requesting these services on an as needed or emergency situation, 

which can impact employee time and the availability of vendors to accommodate the project. Cost 

may also be inconsistent, as they will be based upon the market rates at the time of contracting. 

Staff has identified this as an opportunity to improve our current process with the intent to save 

time and money by prequalifying vendors for these on-demand services. 

An example of this is our bridge and guardrail repairs; currently each individual project requires us 

to complete a formal solicitation. This process can take between two to four months depending on 

the complexity of the work and the contract negotiations. If the project exceeds $200,000, an 

additional five weeks is needed for the Council approval process. Therefore, a single project for a 

bridge repair could take four to six months before we can move forward, and can result in vastly 

different costs for similar projects. Similarly, with our fleet vehicles, an incident such as hail 

damage exceeding $200,000, would require approval from Council, and create the need to wait six 

weeks or more before repair work could begin.  

Additionally, entering into contracts for unknown or speculative services on an as needed basis, 

requires departments to encumber funding for the unknown services at the time of contracting, 

impacting the budget within the department.  

To address this issue, the Procurement Division, in collaboration with the Attorney’s Office and 

Departments, developed a prequalification process to enter into agreements with vendors for these 

on demand, on-call services through the use of master services agreements.  

The prequalification process is widely regarded as a best practice among government entities 

nationally and within Colorado. By implementing this process, entities can save both time and 

money while ensuring that vendors meet any required standards. The prequalification process 

involves a formal procurement procedure where vendors are evaluated for their ability to deliver 

services and the quality of their work, and who have demonstrated their capability and reliability. 

As a result, the risk to the entity is reduced.  Additionally, negotiating pricing upfront for on-call, 

emergency services helps to control costs, making budgeting more predictable. 

While the use of prequalified vendors is permitted under Broomfield Municipal Code 3-20-170, the 

developed prequalification process, along with the master services agreements allow staff to 

create a more robust evaluation to qualify vendors including negotiated pricing. The master service 

agreements will be evaluated to identify the continued need, at the end of the four year term of 

the contracts, or as necessary to onboard additional prequalified vendors arise.  

Process Improvements 

The Master Service Agreements (“MSA”) is an agreement which allows Broomfield to contract for 

on-demand, on-call services with a vendor for a prequalified set of services at pre-set pricing. 

These types of agreements include terms for engagement, expectations for services levels, and our 

standard Broomfield contracting terms.  

The use of an MSA still requires a competitive solicitation process to be utilized to identify 

Broomfield’s needs of service or goods, expectations of work, and warranty, which then allows 

vendors to provide a proposal for the work they are able to offer and pricing for those services. 

3 



 

Utilizing this master service agreement approach allows Broomfield to have multiple vendors 

available to contract with to provide services and goods at pre-established, on demand rates, 

rather than on a project-by-project basis. Providing the departments with a consistent pricing to 

better maintain their budgets.  

Through the MSA approach, when a department defines a need, they choose from their prequalified 

vendors, and request a quote based on the negotiated pricing. Utilizing our purchase order process 

and the MSA, the department identifies clearly the services, time, expectations and costs, which is 

then sent to the vendor confirming the approval to proceed with the approved work, and 

encumbering the funds within their allocated budget amount. 

As the vendors and rates are all prequalified and contracted, this allows for our purchase orders to 

become the mechanism for acceptance of the quotes, while not exceeding Department budgets. 

This process enables departments to pursue work in a seamless and timely manner, through the 

action of a purchase order to commit to the work. 

MSA’s also are written to allow multiple departments to utilize the same vendors and contracts 

without duplicating the procurement process. Through the MSA approach  we are able to set 

consistent costs across the organization, creating economies of scale by allowing multiple 

departments to obtain better pricing from vendors and reducing overall costs to the City and 

County of Broomfield.  Additionally, the MSA contracts have the option to renew the agreement, 

and update pricing only once per year, for multiple years using our standard base plus three 

additional renewal years. This saves Broomfield time, and money as costs are known on a yearly 

basis, rather than a per project basis.  

Next Steps 

Master Service Agreements (MSAs) enable departments to work efficiently within approved budgets 

while calculating expected costs for services and goods. This process allows departments to 

respond promptly to unexpected needs and emergency situations while maintaining appropriate use 

of taxpayer funds. Department feedback has been positive, and the Procurement Division continues 

collaborating with staff to identify additional areas where MSAs could be beneficial. 

Any additional future MSAs will be brought forward to City Council for consideration when the 

budget for these expenditures is expected to exceed $200,000. Additionally, any cost which would 

exceed a Department’s approved budget will be brought to Council for approval.  

List Of Awarded Master Services Agreements 

The following solicitations and master service agreements are for budgets whose expenditures are 

expected to exceed $200,000. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4 



 

Solicitation 

 

#24-IFB-PW-013 On-Demand Landscape and Irrigation Services for on-call, on-demand services for 

landscaping and irrigation installation of City park areas. 

Awarded To 

 

Colorado Designscapes 

Elite Industries 

Grandview Landscape 

LTA Lawn Service 

Richdell Construction 

Western States Reclamation 

 

Solicitation 

 

#24-IFB-PW-015 Vehicle Body Work Services for on demand body work. 

Awarded To 

 

Diversified Body Shop 

McCandless Truck Center 

Solicitation 

 

#24-IFB-PW-014 Bridge and Guardrail Repair on-call, on-demand services for repair and 

replacement operations associated with bridge construction. 

Awarded To 

 

ABCO Contracting 

Hallmark, Inc. 

 

 

5 

https://www.bidnetdirect.com/colorado/city-and-county-of-broomfield/solicitations/On-Demand-Landscape-and-Irrigation-Services/0000366029?purchasingGroupId=8409951&origin=1
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1INBiBWvr2jGtUpzSaflHKsTxe1TlAxNh/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1LoHh0oOitOnUF8_vPkPBNJG5wlbJXOk2/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1vX-DbN8UeM0SiMYKV9vYN6YQWw0J_CW0/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1OMjUmaoYSUfKoKGZTgQjnktZ29-AtlHf/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1-XzaZbKZh8KyK5mPfUifX8L_1k9CsfFH/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1xOpVXpPb9qWpZpoHhdVMxPAagSgYykx0/view?usp=sharing
https://www.bidnetdirect.com/colorado/city-and-county-of-broomfield/solicitations/Vehicle-Body-Work-Services/0000365122?purchasingGroupId=8409951&origin=1
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1gKJ9tj0ykNFeXah6EOe4M4BqrrtMFekK/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1AUOSvUue9kqEzhMuI2McoI7vtIC450zn/view?usp=sharing
https://www.bidnetdirect.com/colorado/city-and-county-of-broomfield/solicitations/Bridge-and-Guardrail-Construction-and-Repair-Services/0000365326?purchasingGroupId=8409951&origin=1
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1l68wFwUZSsaltPpwlpuDSliYOazxqreG/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1s5IP9BkB9aErSWE10zNMyWunxOEcGERb/view?usp=sharing


RESOLUTION NO. 2025-59 

A resolution approving authorization for spending under master services agreements for 

landscaping and irrigations services, vehicle body work services and bridge and guardrail 

repair with various contractors 

Recitals. 

Whereas, the Procurement Division has worked with various departments to complete 

the competitive solicitation of prequalified vendors for landscaping and irrigation services, 

vehicle body work services, and bridge and guardrail repair and entered into non-encumbering 

contracts with the parties identified below; and  

 

Whereas, the aggregate amount of landscaping and irrigation services, vehicle body 

work services, and bridge and guardrail repair could each exceed $200,000 in any given year 

and staff desires that City Council delegate authority to the City and County Manager to 

authorize such expenditures up to the amount of annual budget appropriation for each given 

service; and 

 

Whereas, Master Service Agreements, which will govern the rights and obligations 

between the parties, have been entered into with each of these vendors; and 

 

Whereas, the Master Service Agreements do not obligate Broomfield to make any 

specific payment or service request. The actual encumbrances of funds occur when any 

on-call, on demand or emergency services are identified and purchase orders are issued under 

the authority provided by this resolution confirming the work.   

 

Now, therefore, be it resolved by the City Council of the City and County of Broomfield, 

Colorado: 

Section 1. 

The City and County Manager or a designee is authorized to approve expenditures up to the 

amount indicated in the annual budget appropriation for the following referenced Master 

Services Agreements:  

 

A. Master On-Call Construction Agreements for Bridge and Guardrail Construction 

and Repairs Services with:  

1. ABCO Contracting 

2. Hallmark, Inc. 

B. Master On-Call Services Agreement for Vehicle Body Work Services with:  

Page 1 

Revised 11/2024 



1. Diversified Body Shop 

2. McCandless Truck Center 

C. Master On-Call Construction Agreement for Landscaping and Irrigation Services 

with:  

1. Colorado Design Scapes 

2. Elite Industries 

3. Grandview Landscape 

4. LTA Lawn Service 

5. Richdell Construction 

6. Western States Reclamation 

Section 2. 

The City and County Manager or a designee is authorized to amend and renew the agreements 

for three additional one-year periods and issue purchase orders up to the amount indicated in 

the annual budget appropriation for each type of service in each of the next three budget 

years. 

Section 3. 

This resolution is effective upon its approval by the City Council. 

 

 Approved on March 25, 2025. 

 

The City and County of Broomfield, Colorado 

 

 

 

        

Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

       

Office of the City and County Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

NCR 
 

        

City and County Attorney 

Page 2 

Revised 11/2024 


	CityCouncilRegularMeeting-2025-03-26
	Item 2B. 
	Memo - World Tai Chi and Qigong Day 2025
	World Tai Chi and Qigong Day Proclamation 2025
	Item 2C. 
	Council Memo Child Abuse Proclamation Memo 2025-03-25 (1)
	Proclamation Child Abuse Awareness Month 3-25-25 (1)
	Item 6A. 
	Draft Minutes 03-11-25
	Item 6B. 
	Memo for Electronic Benefit Transfers for 4th Quarter 2024 (1)
	Resolution No. 2025-66-BSS (1)
	Attachment 1 TANF 12.31.24
	Attachment 2 SNAP 12.31.24
	Attachment 3 Medicaid 12.31.24
	Attachment 4 CCCAP 12.31.24
	Attachment 5 Core Services Expenditures SFY
	Item 6C. 
	Proposed Resolution No_ 2025-56, First Amendment to Agreement with High Point Networks
	High Point Networks Resolution 2025-56  
	First Amendment to High Point Network Inc. Agreement - 3.25.2025
	Item 6D. 
	Memo for Adams County MOU Emergency Relocation Procedures
	Resolution No. 2025-16 Adams County MOU Emergency Relocation Procedures
	MOU Broomfield
	Item 6E. 
	Memo for Moratorium and Ordinances No 2266 and 2267 Related to Marijuana
	Resolution No. 2025-64 Temporary Moratorium Resolution for Marijuana Cultivation_Manufacturing
	Ordinance No. 2266 Related to Marijuana
	Ordinance No. 2267 to Permit Non-Marijuana Infused Food and Drink Sales 1st Reading
	Item 7A. 
	Broomfield Town Square BID Formation 2nd Reading (2)
	Ordinance No. 2263 Broomfield Town Square BID Formation 3-25-2025
	BTS -- Petition to form BID FINAL SIGNED 2-20-2025
	BTS -- Petition to form BID DRAFT 2-14-2025
	Item 7B. 
	Memo - Urban Renewal Area Plan and Related Tax Sharing Agreements for Broomfield Town Square 3-25-2025
	Resolution No. 2025-69 Broomfield Town Square URA
	Resolution No. 2025-70 Substantial Modification Broomfield Plaza Civic Center URA
	BTS -- Urban Renewal Plan FINAL 3-25-2025
	Broomfield Plaza Civic Center URA - Amended Plan Area FINAL
	Property Conditions Assessment (Blight Study) June 2029
	Item 7C. 
	Memo - Urban Renewal Area Plan and Related Tax Sharing Agreements for Broomfield Town Square 3-25-2025
	Resolution No. 2025-71-UR Certain Tax Increment Revenue Agreements Related to Broomfield Town Square 3-25-2025
	BTS - Boulder Valley School District TIF Agreement FINAL 3-25-2025
	BTS - North Metro Fire District TIF Agreement FINAL 3-25-2025
	BTS - Northern Water TIF Agreement FINAL 3-25-2025
	BTS - SAMPLE Mile High Flood District TIF Letter Agreement 3-25-2025
	Item 7D. 
	11961 Quay Street (TLC Car Wash) Rezoning and USR - 1st Reading City Council Memo
	11961 Quay Street CC Resolution USR
	11961 Quay Street Ordinance - Rezoning 1st Reading
	Item 7E. 
	Memo for Naming Water Runs Back Open Space
	Resolution 2025-49 Approving the Name “Water Runs Back Open Space” for the Property Located at 18100 County Road 7 
	Item 7F. 
	Memo for Master Services Agreements
	Resolution 2025-59 for Authorized Spending under Master Services Agreements

